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Corporate Profile
NGIlLM

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (‘Hanhua Financial”’, “Hanhua”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”,
“we”, “our” or “us”) (Stock Code: 3903) is the first inclusive
financial institution in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”
or “China”) listed in Hong Kong that has integrated two major
businesses of credit guarantee and small and medium-sized

enterprise (“SME”) lending.

Hanhua Financial is focused on providing diversified and
comprehensive financial services such as credit guarantee, small
loans, internet finance, financial factoring, capital management and
financing leases to micro and SMEs in China. We are a privately
owned financing guarantee company with the largest geographical
coverage and the third largest SME lending service provider in
China.

Hanhua Financial is a vice-chairman unit of the China National
Credit Guarantee Association (FEIERZEWE) and the China
Microfinance Association (FEI/NEEEFAFIHE), the two most
influential self-governing associations in the industry. We possess
vastly experienced and proactive management and execution
teams, strong financial and operational capabilities, extensive
branch network, outstanding risk control capabilities, and have also
obtained the highest AA+ capital market credit rating for privately
owned corporates within the industry. We have established trust
with various financial institutions across China and maintained
close business relationships with them, allowing us to provide
comprehensive financial services to micro and SMEs and fulfilling
their diversified financing and business needs.

Since our listing, the capital strength of the Group has been further
enhanced, its financing and risk resistance capabilities continued
to grow, its financing channels continued to expand, and overall
competitiveness grew constantly, which allowed us to further grasp
market opportunities and lay a solid foundation for continuous
enhancement in profitability.
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Corporate Information
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HEAD OFFICES IN THE PRC

1/F, A Building, No. 2 Fortune Tower
No. 15 Caifu Avenue

Chongaing

PRC

and

13/F, East Tower, World Financial Center
No. 1 East Third Ring Middle Road
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Beijing

PRC

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
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Wanchai
Hong Kong
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China Construction Bank Corporation (Headquarters)
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Corporate Information

NEEHR

China Development Bank Corporation (Headquarters)
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Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC
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PRC

AUDITOR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY (AS TO
HONG KONG AND UNITED STATES LAW)

Jones Day

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.hanhua.com
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Summary of Accounting Data and Financial Indicators

S BENPBEESRE

MAREBETIIR)

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) (B3 A LR -

% Increase/

(decrease)
of the current
reporting period
compared
with the same
2015 2014 period last year 2013 2012 2011
TREHL
20156 20145 LEREBECA)%  2013%F  2012%F  2011%
Operating results fExE
Operating income BEUA 1,7520  2,000.8 (12.4) 15767 11433 870.3
- Net guarantee and consulting fee income  — ERREZAHEZRA 765.0 958.3 (20.2) 913.1 7845 452.7
— Net interest and handling fee income -MERFEEFHA 987.0  1,0425 (5.3) 663.6 358.8 476
(Reversal)/Provisions for BERER (8E)/
guarantee losses ROERBEEES (110.9) 72.1 (253.8) 149.0 51.7 123.9
Impairment losses BERERR 515.5 4317 19.4 294.4 130.1 435
Operating expenses HEXH 893.4 851.2 5.0 703.9 356.4 249.4
Net profit HE 352.1 507.4 (30.6) 356.7 517.8 476.2
— Net profit attributable to shareholders - BERALRARRR
of the Company R 303.0 432.0 (29.9) 279.7 199.3 185.2
Profitability indicators BRlgEniEE
Return on average total assets'” FHBEERREN 2.7% 4.9% (2.2) 5.2% 10.8% 13.1%
Return on average shareholder equity” FHRRERERE 4.7% 7.8% (3.1) 9.0% 22.9% 29.2%
Cost to income ratio RABRALD 46.3% 37.7% 8.6 39.8% 26.2% 24.1%
Scale indicators REEE
Total assets EERE 13,961.0 11,9383 169 86280 49679 46172
- Total cash and cash equivalents - EREL 0T 28039  2,531.1 10.8 940.5 2544 528.5
- Total restricted bank deposits -FhiREC LR 1,400.1 21245 (34.1) 22932 22072 22331
- Gross loans and advances to customers  — EMERREFESE 74701 6,286.0 188 47774 20456  1,665.3
Total liabilities BiaBE 6,515.5 4,361.9 49.4 3,169.6 2,459.9 2,612.6
Owner’s Equity FEERR 74455 75764 (1.7) 54584 25080 20045
Notes: AR
(1) Net profit divided by average balance of total assets as at the (1) FFEBRABYRERNFHREESRTE -
beginning and end of the year.
(2)  Net profit divided by average balance of total equity as at the beginning (2)  FFERR DA B I HA R 9 19 AR R M A 2R
and end of the year. ¥ o
(3) Operating expenses after deducting business tax and surcharges (3) HBR[EEBESRWIN] WEEZL - BRI
divided by operating income. = OND
(4)  For comparison purpose, some historical figures are restated on new @) AHELR  BOHELBERE LB

calculation basis or logic.

HOESEEETERIIR -
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Financial Highlights
B E

The financial information set out in this annual report was prepared

on a consolidated basis according to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). Unless otherwise stated, the
financial information of the Group is expressed in RMB million.

REEREFBBBEERTIAGHEER
SEA(EEMBHREE
Al &/ BRAETHIN
ERHAARBEBETIIR

REBHBER

7N 5% [ HY B 7

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

2015 2014
20154 2014%F
% of net % of net
fee and fee and
interest interest
Amount income Amount income
FFEE R FEE
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 8 RFAEHRA 28 RFIEWA
(BREBEFZHIN - LARBEETLIIT) % %
Operating results REXRE
Net guarantee and consulting &R &5 A8 F A
fee income 765.0 43.7 958.3 47.9
Net interest and handling M B RFEBFWA
fee income 987.0 56.3 1,042.5 52.1
Net fee and FFEERFEBA
interest income 1,752.0 100.0 2,000.8 100.0
Other revenue =N 34.0 1.9 29.5 1.5
Reversal/(Provisions) for #m ($2E)
guarantee losses EREELEES 110.9 6.3 (72.1) (3.6)
Impairment losses BERERK (515.5) (29.3) (431.7) (21.6)
Operating expenses EiE Y (893.4) (51.0) (851.2) (42.5)
Other net expenses 57 O FR (1.7) (0.1) (10.8) (0.5)
Profit before taxation Gy IRAbE 486.3 27.8 664.5 33.3
Income tax FTiS i (134.2) (7.7) (157.1) (7.9)
Net profit FF 352.1 20.1 507.4 25.4

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our net profit was
RMB352.1 million, representing a decrease of 30.6% compared
with RMB507.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, our net profit margin (net profit/
net fee and interest income) was 20.1%, 5.3 percentage points
lower than 25.4% for the year ended 31 December 2014, which

HZE2015F12A31HIEFE - HMKFEF
HAARMEIS2IEE L - WEE20145F
12A31B EFEFFMBEARKS748 8
JC v P& 1830.6% : B E2015F12H31H Lt
FE - BMOFFBEE CERBFFE&
BRABWA) £20.1% @ BE E2014F

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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was mainly attributable to the decline in revenue of SME lending
business and guarantee business. The combined effect from
increasing downward pressure on macro-economy, the increase in
impairment losses for loan assets and default payment receivable
assets as a result of our continued adoption of prudent accounting
estimates, and the increase in operating expenses after the new
business segments started, resulted in a drop of net profit.

° In 2015, our net fee and interest income was RMB1,752.0
million in total, down by 12.4% as compared with RMB2,000.8
million in 2014. The decrease was mainly because of the
20.2% decrease in net guarantee and consulting fee income
and 5.3% decrease in net interest and handling fee income.

In 2015, net guarantee and consulting fee income in our credit
guarantee business was RMB765.0 million, representing a
decrease of RMB193.3 million or 20.2% as compared with
RMB958.3 million in 2014. In 2015, downward pressure on
the domestic economy intensified, and the credit default risk
of some SME customers increased accordingly. Against such
backdrop, we proactively adjusted the structure of our credit
guarantee business. On one hand, we gradually reduced
traditional financing guarantee business with comparatively
higher default risks; on the other hand, we continuously
enhanced promotion on bond guarantee business and capital
preservation fund business with lower credit risks. With such
adjustments in the structure of the business, the outstanding
bond guarantee and capital preservation fund guarantee
business increased by 108.5% from RMB5,966.4 million as at
31 December 2014 to RMB12,440.7 million as at 31 December
2015, accounting for 47.9% of the guaranteed amount.
The balance for traditional financing guarantee declined by
30.0% from RMB16,737.6 million as at 31 December 2014
to RMB11,719.0 million as at 31 December 2015, accounting
for 45.1% of the guaranteed amount. At the same time, we
conducted differentiated pricing according to different credit
levels of the customers, leading to a slightly downward trend
in the overall fee rate.

Financial Highlights
BB HE

12A31 A I EF R E%25.4% T [#5.31E
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Financial Highlights
B E
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In 2015, the net interest and handling fee income was
RMB987.0 million, representing a decrease of RMB55.5 million
or 5.3% as compared with RMB1,042.5 million in 2014. In
2015, we successfully issued two tranches of corporate bonds
in the PRC and continuously engaging in transfers of loan
assets rights as a mean of expanding our financing channels
to obtain more capital for the development and sustainable
growth of our SME loan business. SME loans increased by
18.8% from RMB6,286.0 million as at 31 December 2014
to RMB7,470.1 million as at 31 December 2015. Meanwhile,
monthly average balance for SME loan assets increased by
11.3% from RMB5,677.4 million in 2014 to RMB6,321.0
million in 2015. However, the average rate of return for SME
loan business declined from 21.3% in 2014 to 18.3% in 2015.
Since the decline in the average rate of returns for the loan
business has exceeded the growth of the average balance of
loan business, the total interest and handling fee income of
the loan assets in 2015 fell by 4.2% as compared with that
in 2014.

At the same time, we adopted flexible cash management
strategies, leading to a steady rise of profits from cash
assets. Total income from bank deposit interests in 2015 was
RMB49.3 million, representing an increase of RMB12.5 million
or 34.0% as compared with RMB36.8 million in 2014.

2015 « HRMMF B RFEEFI
ABARIS7.05 BT © 8K2014F
MARB104256B8 T TRAR
#¥55.58 & 7T ' [% 185.3% ° 20155
BPIK AR EBRAEITRER QA
EH - ARFEREEREERSE
HRETREREESESZES MU
ARFANEEEREBHER - /)
TEEFREBRERELER - /D
(B REBHREN2014F128318
A R #6,286.08 & JT 1 i 20154
12A318 AR ¥E7,47018 & T 18
1818.8% : MK + P/ NDEEREE
ERFHHEBEOH2014FHN AR
5677.48 B L MZE2015F AR
6,321.08 87T * HEIRE11.3% ° B
PEEEREB TR EEAH2014
F/21.3% T £ £2015F B18.3% °
BHREREB TR SR TREIEE
MBERERFTHBRBEREREE
FR2015FEFEEEEENF B R
FHEBWABEER2014FHD4.2% o

A BMAEDBESENRSER
KE - FRERASBEEAENRERES L
T+ 2015F RITHFERFBEWALER
ARBA49.3FE T - B2014F #1717
RFBWABTEARKIEEETL
BRARKEA25BE T © #1834.0% °
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In 2015, due to the increasing downward pressure on macro-
economy, credit default risks of SMEs intensified. As a result,
we made provision of RMB515.5 million for default payment for
our credit guarantee business and asset impairment for SME
loans, representing an increase of RMB83.8 million or 19.4%
as compared with RMB431.7 million in 2014.

In 2015, we continued a comprehensive upgrade of our
business mode and expansion of branch agencies. We
developed from a single business of financing guarantee
and small loan business to a comprehensive financial
platform covering diversified services of internet finance,
financial factoring, capital management and finance lease.
During the expansion of the business segments, operation
networks and scale expansion, we kept enhancing operational
management and cost control. However, these new business
segments required new sales persons at the initial stage
of commencement, which increased our labor cost and
relevant operation cost. In 2015, operating expenses after
deducting business taxes and surcharges was RMB811.6
million, representing an increase of 7.6% or RMB57.4 million
compared with that in 2014.

Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYFH

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of Hanhua Financial, | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Company from 1 January 2015 up to 31 December 2015.

REVIEW FOR 2015

The year 2015 was a critical year for the Company to fully
improve the inclusive financial service and operating ability after
listing, and for the Company to achieve continuous growth going
forward. Hanhua financial is commencing a full-scale upgrade
through platform finance, partnership finance and internet financial
strategies.

In 2015, China’s GDP growth rate decreased to below 7% and
economic growth changed to new normal status. Faced with the
new situation, the PRC government has put forward supply-side
reforms to tackle overcapacity and push ahead with optimization
and reorganization and has encouraged the development of
strategic emerging industries and modern service industry. With
the promotion of the change of the internet technology, traditional
financial institutions were vigorously restructuring and upgrading to
look for breakthrough. Besides, non-traditional financial institutions
have also entered the market for competition, therefore, the
inclusive finance in China has also entered into a magnificent
development stage. We believe that under this external environment,
opportunities and challenges co-exist in the current new situation,
and the opportunities outweigh the challenges.

BHHRAIRR

RAMAREDESHES([EE)) 2
(EEE]) 2®RALQFBE2015F181H
HE2015F12 A31BFE#RE

2015 [

B E2015 IR BESIE L MR EHIR
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F R ARIBMEM - 5L MK KA &
—F - BATESR BHSRMEEAE
TR BESHIAZEARENF

20155 B RAEE#E (GDP) 1§ & [%
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BT E AR X - Nz BB
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NERAL  SHRERZE  FEHREH
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NEBHEANBERERE - BRMRATER
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Looking back on the history of Hanhua Financial, being innovative
and making breakthroughs have been rooted in the culture of
Hanhua; we seized every opportunity arising from changes of
external environments, adapted ourselves to government reform and
economic development, and adjusted our development strategy,
all the above played an integral part in the culture of Hanhua
Financial. Over the previous year, we adopted to the economic
development trends and kept improving and we started the all-
round transformation and upgraded from being a supplier of a single
type of financial service to that of integrated financial services by
applying our strategies of platform finance, partnership finance and
internet finance, with our core concepts being partnership finance.
Apart from the two traditional businesses, namely, guarantee
and credits, we were also preparing for the commencement of
new businesses for which we have obtained business licenses,
including factoring, internet finance, capital and lease. With the
co-development of the several major business sectors, a strategic
landscape, with partnership finance clusters as the core and micro
and small enterprises finances and internet finance as the “two
wings”, has been initially formed; and the service targets of such
businesses ranged from individuals, micro and small enterprises
to SME clusters.

In the first half of 2015, Hanhua proposed and established the
“Partnership Finance” strategy. With the further development of such
a strategy, a series of strategic cooperation agreements on inclusive
finance have been entered into between us and the Shenyang
Municipal Government and Liaoning Finance Office (B Z 4 & gi%),
successively, in 2015. During the year, we established the Henghua
Fund with Shenyang Municipal Government and made the capital
contribution to Liaoning Hanhua Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd. (&
I ERAR A R)), whose registered capital was increased
to RMB700 million; and founded Rong’an Property Insurance
Company (8% 81 ERE Q7)) by collaborating with 6 companies.
In November 2015, Hanhua Financial became a shareholder of
Shandong Financial Assets Exchange Co., Ltd., which represented
the development of another innovative cooperation model with
private sector financial institutions’ participation in the operation
and management of a local financial assets exchange.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYE

In term of fund-sourcing, we have been constantly developing and
diversifying financing channels in 2015. In 2015, we raised more
than RMBS3 billion in total by issuing asset securitization products
and corporate bonds. In May 2015, we started the plan of returning
to the A share market, which is a step forward for our capital market
layout.

In term of internet financial services, the aggregate amount of
transactions conducted through our asset information services
platform “Hanhua Yun” amounted to more than RMB5 billion; we
formally participated in the internet insurance industry through the
acquisition of Zhongli Insurance Sales Limited* (f FI{RERIEE B R
~Al).

Through a series of above layout. Hanhua Financial is steadily
entering into the inclusive finance 3.0 era.

* For identification purpose only
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PROSPECTS FOR 2016

The central government’s Leading Group of Comprehensive and
Thorough Reforms passed the Inclusive Finance Development Plan
(year 2016-2020) ( (#EEESRIZFEREI(2016—2020%)) ) (the
“Plan”) in early November 2015, formulating the roadmap for
developing inclusive finance in the state. In view of this, from having
the idea of the state’s policy to an action roadmap, it is a natural
course of development that the state’s structural transformation
of the economy will be successful with the drive of inclusive
finance. The Plan has provided a clear roadmap, “The goal of
developing inclusive finance is to raise the coverage, accessibility
and satisfaction of financial services in order to cater for the
growing financial need of the people.”

Apart from that, an array of beneficial policies such as the Guiding
Opinions on Promoting the Sound Development of Internet Finance,
Administrative Measures for the Online Payment Business of Non-
Banking Payment Institutions (Consultation Paper), Regulations for
“Administration of Financing Guarantee Corporation” (Consultation
Paper), Regulations on Non-deposit Lending Organizations
(Consultation Paper), Opinions on Deepening Reform of Insurance
Intermediary Market and the Guiding Opinions on Promoting the
Sound Development of Financial Leasing Industry were released
successively in the second half of 2015. China is now embracing
this once-in-a-century opportunity to develop inclusive finance.

China is the world’s largest market for inclusive finance. While this
market has just emerged, it has already shown explosive growth
potential. As long as we insist on serving medium, small and micro
sized economic entities with the three inclusive finance principles:
being inclusive, mutually beneficial and comprehensive. In virtue of
the beneficial policy, Hanhua Financial aims to lead the trend and
march on to the golden era of inclusive finance.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYFH

In the future, we will hold on to this golden development period
with steadfast confidence and belief to uphold our aspiration.
By focusing on clients and reforms, Hanhua strives to achieve
advantages in credit services with the spirit and courage to reform.
With innovative thinking and actions, we are well-prepared and
more than ready to continue our journey.

For this, we will carry out transformation and upgrading in an
earnest way by applying “Addition, Subtraction, Multiplication and
Division”.

“Addition” refers to acquiring licenses and integrate into mainstream
finance, driving the adjustment in organizational structure through
business transformation, upgrading our business trend through
equity investment and optimizing assets allocation through
acquisition and reorganization;

“Subtraction” refers to reducing redundancy in order to improve
client experience, invigorating our clients’ assets through inclusive
finance, using innovative means to acquire new clients to achieve
increase in clients’ assets, and improving the operating efficiency
with synergy;

“Multiplication” refers to releasing the power of total factor through
sharing openly, building capacity to match the upgrade of business
model and maximizing core competency through innovative system;
and

“Division” refers to stepping up the upgrade of management model
through horizontal organization, reinforcing product development
through rapid replication and strengthening high level cooperation
mode through being market-oriented;

By transforming and upgrading through the use of “Addition,
Subtraction, Multiplication and Division”, we are forging a vibrant
Hanhua with better organization structure, higher internal drive and
more choices of platform resources; an innovative Hanhua that is
more harmonised, more open, more proactive; a Hanhua of quality
with higher cost-effectiveness, more diversified services and greater
opportunities that we can leverage.
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In practice, Hanhua Financial will focus on making breakthroughs
in the following aspects in 2016:

By integrating resources of various platforms, the value of
the platforms can be improved and the cooperation level can
be enhanced. As we continue to strengthen various ways of
platform cooperation between the government and financial
institutions, among financial institutions and between industries
and financial institutions, we can build an inclusive finance
ecosystem.

We will fully enter the mainstream finance by applying for and
obtaining new financial licenses in order to enrich the integrated
financial ecosystem; grasp the business opportunities in
mainstream finance through equity investment and acquisition
and reorganization to establish a diversified inclusive finance
service group.

We will work on returning to the A share market and open up
a greater channel for market financing through equity activities,
further improving the credit value of the Hanhua brand.

We will promote transformation and upgrades extensively and
take partnership finance, platform finance and internet finance
as our direction to optimize the investment and financing
structure and establish innovative relationships between
financial institutions and enterprises; seize the opportunity of
bond market reform and develop business in the bond market.

We will refine our management standard and enhance our
organizational effectiveness; create an innovative incentive
system and build a professional team focusing on inclusive
finance; prioritize client experience and improve the quality of
our inclusive finance service.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYFH

6. We will reorganize the structure of the Group and continue
to improve our business structure, human resources
structure, organization structure and governance structure
in order to reshape our corporate culture. We will push
forward the business model transformation by taking finance
partnership as the main direction together with small and
micro finance and internet finance; foster multi-disciplinary
and complementary talents and uphold the values of integrity,
diligence, learning and responsibility; establish both business
and operation, supplementing, collaborating and sharing
with each other; reshape the culture of Hanhua in respective
to risk management, partner, partnership, innovation and
responsibility.

The new normal will for sure nurture new environment which means
a new future. We believe, real credit is never too much, real service
is never too much, and real creativity is never too much! In 2016
and the next couple of years, Hanhua Financial will enter into new
platforms such as finance lease and assets management and march
towards being the leading, fully licensed inclusive finance group.
Following the opening up of the financial market and economic
development in China, we will stride forward to the leading and
comprehensive inclusive finance 3.0 era.

| hereby express my sincere gratitude to all the Shareholders,
the members of the Board, management, all the employees and
partners.

By order of the Board

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
Zhang Guoxiang

Chairman of the Board

28 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2015, the strength of global economy recovery continued
to be weak, with differences in paces of recovery in different
economies. The growth impetus of traditional industries faded out,
the industrial expansion slowed down, and the global economic
structure entered the phase of adjustment. The U.S. showed a
relative good trend of recovery, the economy witnessed solid
growth, and the unemployment rate dropped to the lowest since
May 2008, the U.S. GDP grew at a 2.1% annual rate in the third
quarter of 2015 , and the growth is expected to reach 2.5% for the
whole year; the Eurozone economy maintained a moderate trend of
recovery, benefiting from the low oil price, negative interest rate and
quantitative easing and other favorable factors, the unemployment
rate in December 2015 dropped to 10.4%, the lowest level since
November 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERETRE
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Under the influence of the pace and intensity of the U.S. Federal
Reserve policy of raising the interest rate and other uncertainty
factors, most of non-US principal currencies including Euro, Yen,
Pound Sterling, Australia Dollar and Rouble devaluated to different
degrees, and the price of staple commodities including crude oil,
gold and cooper experienced sharp drop.

Under the intricate world economic environment, China maintained
a relatively high speed of economic development, and was still
considered as one of the major fastest-growing economies in
the world, with economic growth more balanced and economic
structure having tended to optimize. In 2015, the domestic
economy was stable with good progress and performance, under
the economic situation of “new normal”, the China GDP growth
throughout the year recorded 6.9% from the last year.

In 2015, China continued to adopt the prudent monetary policy,
providing proper monetary and financial environment for economic
development. In addition, with the gradual launching of structural
reform policy at supply side and the need for transition of China’s
economic structure, China is bound to strengthen the supporting
force to the development of medium-sized and small enterprises,
and will continue to push forward the establishment of inclusive
financial system. On 31 December 2015, the State Councile
issued Planning for Promoting the Development of Inclusive
Finance System (2016-2020). As China’s first state-level strategic
planning for the development of inclusive finance system, the
Planning establishes the guiding thinking, basic principle and
goal of development for promoting the development of inclusive
finance system. In the coming several years, with China’s economic
development having entered the new normal, the inclusive finance
system will usher a period of strategic opportunities in historic
development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With China’s economic development and the unceasingly increase
of private loan requirement, the number and business scale
of financing guarantee companies have surged. On 7 August
2015, the State Council issued Opinions of the State Council on
Accelerating the Development of the Financing Guarantee Industry,
suggesting that the government to provide strong support to the
financing guarantee businesses which serve the general areas
including the micro & small enterprises and the “three rural” and are
related to the national economic development and social stability; to
accelerate the law construction of the financing guarantee industry,
and promote scientific surveillance; to insist on the development
orientation, promote development through standardization, and
grasp well the balance between regulated operation and innovative
development. Encouraging and supporting from state level should
be given to the financing guarantee industry ensure its healthy
development, thus a great historic opportunity for transformation
and upgrading is ushered for the industry in the new normal of
economic development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In recent years, under the influence of national policy and the rapid
development of internet economy, the microfinance industry shows
the new trend of development, featuring with diversified business
model, cluster of service objects and industrial cluster, more and
more small loan companies form interests community centered on
industrial chain and clients in order to seek for financial-industrial
combination and common development. As at the end of 2015,
there were 8,910 small loan companies across China, with the loan
balance amounted to RMB941.2 billion, RMB loans decreased by
RMB2 billion for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

China internet financial industry is currently at the stage of
high-speed development. According to iResefoot statistics, the
overall revenue of China cybereconomy recorded RMB870.62
billion yuan in 2014, up by 47.0% compared with the last year,
the cybereconomy will keep a fast growth speed in the coming
several years, it is expected that by 2018 the size of cybereconomy
will break RMB2 trillion to reach RMB2.02026 trillion. The rapid
development of internet finance has created favorable transaction
environment for the development of internet financing guarantee
and internet small loan. On 18 July 2015, ten ministries and
commissions jointly issued the Guiding Opinions on Promoting
Sound Development of Internet Financing (Yinfa [2015] no. 221),
these Opinions affirm the rationality and legality of the internet
financial industry, delineate the subdivision mode and regulatory
responsibilities of the internet financial industry, put forward the
supervision concept of encouraging and innovation, insist on
the market-oriented development of internet finance to promote
the healthy development of internet finance. It also put forward
requirements on supervision coordination and data statistical
monitoring and other aspects. At present, a large number of
enterprises or transaction platforms have emerged in China internet
financial industry, including Ant Financial, Lakala, LUFAX, and
Wangjinshe and so on. During the period from the end of 2015
to the beginning of 2016, the related department handled several
serious cases in accordance with the law, including the case of
illegal fund-raising by “Ezubao”, the standards and supervision in
internet financial field will be further reinforced in near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

The factoring business starts relatively late in China, and develops
relatively slow at the early stage. After 2012, the number of
commercial factoring companies began to increase rapidly,
the liberalization of enrollment policy promotes the number of
commercial factoring companies to surge, according to the
statistics of Commercial Factory Expertise Committee of CATIS,
there were 200 new factoring companies registered in 2013 solely,
which resulted in a number of 284 registered commercial factoring
enterprises in China at the end of 2013, up by 4.5 times over
the last year. As at the end of December 2013, the number of
commercial factoring companies in China recorded 287, up by 4.5
times compared with that at the end of 2012; the total registered
capital of all factoring enterprises exceeded RMB29.3 billion. In view
of the great development potential of the industry, the total scale of
China factoring business is expected to reach RMB3.48383 trillion
in 2014, up by 23.1% compared with the last period. In recent
years, both the commercial banks and the factoring companies are
optimistic at the potential of the factoring market and are engaged
in fierce competition in this field, making the factoring industry
gradually become a new growth point of profit in the financial
industry.

Under the background of accelerated macro-economic downturn
and economic transformation, the finance leasing industry, as a
beneficial supplement for financing channels of enterprises and an
effective means for activating stock assets, is experiencing constant
increase in market demands. According to the statistics from China
Leasing Alliance, as at the end of 2015, there were approximately
4,508 financial leasing enterprises in China, with a registered
capital of approximately RMB1.5165 trillion in the industry. In
September 2015, the State Council issued the Guiding Opinions
for Accelerating the Development of Financial Leasing Industry and
the Guiding Opinions for Promoting the Healthy Development of
Financial Leasing Industry, these policies point out the development
direction for financial leasing industry which is ushering in the
golden age of development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & 4= 30
CREDIT GUARANTEE BUSINESS ERERER

TREIXFAIRFEAREREREB SR
RS R IEIR

The following table sets forth the crucial business indicators of the
guarantee business of the Group for the periods indicated:

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2015 2014 Change
20155 20144 L)
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BREBFREN  UAREEETLIIT) E ] Ear-c %
Guarantee and consulting EREZHAERA
fee income 765.0 958.3 (20.2)
Default rate RE=R 1.9% 1.9%
Default payments BRI 489.5 478.7 2.3
Guarantees released TERERIER 25,685.3 24,443.8 5.1
Provision rate BiE=R 1.5% 2.1%
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEEES 390.3 501.3 (22.1)
Total outstanding guarantees balance BIEIRAREE 25,082.8 23,566.5 10.3
Loss ratio BERE 1.5% 1.0%
Impairment losses for receivables EUWREZH
for default payments BEREEX 376.2 250.3 50.3
Guarantees released TERBRIER 25,685.3 24,443.8 5.1
Recovery rate =] U e R 16.5% 12.4%
Recovered amount B & &8 81.0 59.5 36.1
Default payments JER OINEN 489.5 478.7 2.3
Leverage ratio EERREE 4.4 4.7 (6.4)
Outstanding balance of financing
guarantee BB ERAE 16,784.0 18,117.3 (7.4)
Net assets of the credit guarantee
business EREREKFEE 3,841.5 3,827.1 0.4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

AT

ERETRE

In 2015, increasing downward pressure on the domestic economy
increased the credit default risk of SMEs gradually. Under such
circumstances, the Group actively adjusted the structure of its
guarantee business and gradually reduced marketing efforts for
the traditional financing guarantee business, but kept strengthening
promotion of its bond guarantee business and capital preservation
funds guarantee business with comparatively low credit risk. As
at 31 December 2015, the Group’s outstanding credit guarantee
balance was RMB25,982.8 million, representing an increase of
RMB2,416.3 million or 10.3% as compared with that as at 31
December 2014. As at 31 December 2015, the balance of the
bond guarantee and capital preservation fund guarantee business
was RMB12,440.7 million, representing a growth of RMB6,474.3
million or 108.5% as compared with that as at 31 December 2014.
The outstanding bond guarantee and capital preservation fund
guarantee, as a percentage of the total credit guarantee, increased
to 47.9% as at 31 December 2015 (compared with 25.3% as at
31 December 2014).

As at 31 December 2015, net assets of credit guarantee business
was RMB3,841.5 million, representing an increase of RMB14.4
million or 0.4% as compared with RMB3,827.1 million as at
31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2015, our financing
guarantee balance was RMB16,784.0 million, representing
a decrease of RMB1,333.3 million or 7.4% as compared with
RMB18,117.3 million as at 31 December 2014. The leverage ratio
was 4.4 as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December 2014: 4.7).

20155 - BIRASE TITE NHFE M A
FEERNEEEREORBRES EFH - 1T
ERAT  AREEZHHABERERE
B BAREHERREEREBNSHE
NE - BERFEMAERRRESRENE
HFEREL  RAESEREBNZHE S
€ - R2015F12A31H  AEEEAER
EBERHBEHAREK25082.86E T -
B2014F12A31AERAKFIL INARKE
2,416.38 &7t BIRE103%  HP R
20156 12H31H ' EHFEREBMIRAE
EREGHERRE R ARK12,440.7
BEIL R2014F12 A31 B EREREE LN
AR ®6,474.38 &L - B IBE108.5%
EEEFEREBNRAESCEREY
BEMEAERESHRENLI LEAZE
2015912831 H K47.9% (720145128
31H : 25.3%) °

M20155F12A31H - ERAEREBFFE
EAANRE3841.568 BT @ 82014F12
AB1HMFEEARKES 27 1B E T  #
MAR14.45 8T » #5180.4% ° 742015
F12A318 - BRMHRMERRBELAAR
#:16,784.08 BT * ®2014F12H31H W
MERERBBAREISI173EE T &
D ANR¥1,333.3E BT BBRIR7.4% °
It - 2015912 A31H @ 18R K 4.4
(R2014F12831H : 4.7) °
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EEENWED

Our overall default rate shows the quality of our guarantee portfolio.
In 2015, our default rate was 1.9%, basically at the same level
as that in 2014. In 2015, the Group conducted a comprehensive
screening review of existing customers and enhanced post-
guarantee management as well as the corresponding management
frequency and efforts, so as to prevent and resolve risks in
advance and provide more support to customers with good
contract performance. This is aimed at minimizing the default risk
of customers. For new customers, the Group, in the market survey
phase, raised the access standards for customers, and enhanced
management and on-site investigation of their uncertainty risks and
collateral. With these measures, our default payment to customers
was RMB489.5 million in 2015, basically the same as RMB478.7
million in 2014. The default rate of our customers still stayed at a
rather low level as compared with the rest of the industry.

For customers that defaulted, we stepped up management on
collateral and appropriation of non-performing assets so as to
rapidly recoup funds. In 2015, we recovered RMB81.0 million from
defaulting customers; thanks to our effective management, the
recovery rate of credit guarantee business improved from 12.4%
in 2014 to 16.5% in 2015.

Our provision rate is used to calculate the provision for potential
losses based on our total guaranteed balance. Given the increasing
downward pressure on the domestic economy, we still adopted
prudent accounting estimate strategy. As at 31 December 2015, the
provision rate of our credit guarantee business was 1.5%, a decline
of 0.6 percentage points compared to 2.1% as at 31 December
2014. The decrease was mainly because we actively adjusted
operation strategies and cooperated with financing corporations,
reduced traditional banking financing guarantee business with
comparatively higher risk and increased bond guarantee and capital
preservation fund guarantee with lower risks, which led to changes
in the potential risks of the credit guarantee portfolio.

BMOEEREXEREMOERES D
E o 20155 © HMAIREER1.9% @ 6
2014F EHAFHF - 2016F AKBEHGFTER
FETEZEEEMFE  2EARLCREE
B EIREEERNERMAE - RATH
W LERERR - WHEHNRTHEFMNA
B URANEREREPHNENRR -
HNEERP,  EMBAMER  Ba%
FRENZE - Jiog {8 BT R R
RS AAMBERYERNE o AL
HEES2015F R M AR P XNTEHFIE
BAR®E489.58 BT - H2014F BT
YNEHFEARKEL478.7TEETTERT
FoRMANEPHENETRETENER
BIEKTE o

HRENER B KEHRmEREN
FTREERENE  UHRREEESD -
20156  BRMRENEP R R ERA
R¥81.0B8T: ARERMOBRERE
FE5{EAERESDNRR Y E2014F B
12.4%IE S E2015FM16.5% °

M EEE - AU ERBRMOEE
RATE  RELEBEMELNREEKT -
MARBALEETT TITEDRBENKN - &K
AR AFERN G5 EFH SRR - 72015
F12A318 - BMEAEREBOREER
51.5% ° B2014F12A318 M92.1% ~ [&
06EEDE TERRARMEBFAREL
EIRIEMBE S IEHRE RO RBRAHKR
SMERRITRERREY - RRENE
BHRHRENEFETER REAESE
RE FEHEAEREBEAGHNETRAR
BHEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

Despite the increasing downward pressure on the domestic macro-
economy, we adopted more prudent risk management strategies;
in the meantime, we maintained sufficient cash and flexible capital
management strategies to meet urgent demand for liquidity
payment. We believe that the difficult times in the industry will
provide more development opportunities for companies with good
reputation, strong financial strength and standardized operation.

The following table sets forth the outstanding balance of the various
guarantee businesses of the Group as for the dates indicated:

BERRNZBEETTENFEMK - &K
PIERENE pNREE ) R b B IR SR M - [RRR{R
RATHNREMETETEENESRE - U
HEESHORBEZ TR - HMBERE - &
FBITHEHMREARE  H$HEERT - &N
EEERERENCEREEANERE
Ml e

TERHINFREHAREZHEERED
MEREERRRER

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2015 2014 Change
20154 20144 &

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BRBHEFEEIN - LARBEELIITR) B THE %
Bank financing guarantees RITREE IR 9,674.7 14,561.4 (33.6)
Other non-bank financing guarantees HIERITREE AR 2,044.3 2,176.2 6.1)
Bond guarantee BFER 5,065.0 1,379.7 267.1
Financing guarantee subtotal BMEERDE 16,784.0 18,117.3 (7.4)
Non-financing guarantees FERE IR 9,198.8 5,449.2 68.8
— Guarantee of capital preservation funds — {RANE SR 7,375.7 4,586.7 60.8
Total outstanding guarantees ERBEST 25,982.8 23,566.5 10.3

In terms of the development of the guarantee business, the Group
adhered to the principles of compliant operations and “protection
and suppression”, and effectively integrated the macroeconomic
control policies and industry policies of the government to develop
the guarantee business in a prudent, steady and appropriate
manner. As at 31 December 2015, our outstanding guarantee
liability was RMB25,982.8 million, which grew by 10.3% compared
with RMB23,566.5 million for the same period in 2014. This was
mainly due to the rapid development of the bond guarantee and
capital preservation fund guarantee businesses.

REEBRRFKEGREE  BRFIERE
B WRA - BREERRREFZEBRM
EXEREK FE BE BENBRER
X7 o )M2015F 1273318 - BREMEHE
B ARM25082.8F &L - 820144 [ Hj
MEREMHTEARB23,566.58& T
EIE103%  EXZE:NEMESFER
EBMRAESEREFNIRRBER o
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EEENWED

The Group kept improving product portfolio based on the
macroeconomic environment, market conditions and the demands
for business development in the future, to provide more diversified
product support for business marketing. At the same time, the
Group revised and optimized some of the existing products to meet
market changes, and continuously improved product popularity and
competitiveness. In addition, the Group will continue with product
innovation. Such strategies will promote constant improvement in
the Group’s business product portfolio. Our guarantee products
have gradually improved to mainly include providing guarantee for
direct financing and sale under repurchase agreement transactions
through bank and other financing channels; providing guarantees
for bonds issued on the stock exchange market, inter-bank markets
and other channels; providing performance guarantee for capital
preservation fund products managed by mutual fund management
companies, and other forms of non-financing guarantees such as
engineering contract bond and attachment bond.

Bank and non-bank financing guarantee

In 2015, downward pressure on the domestic economy intensified,
leading to a decline in the subjective financing demands of SME
customers; meanwhile, the credit default risk of some SME
customers gradually increased. We also adjusted business
cooperation channels to reduce our reliance on a single product
or channel. As a result, the overall outstanding liabilities of our
traditional bank financing guarantee business and non-bank
financing guarantee business fell from RMB16,737.6 million as at
31 December 2014 to RMB11,719.0 million as at 31 December
2015, representing a decline of 30.0%. In terms of customer
selection, we lowered fee rates to attract customers of better quality
and effectively mitigated risk. With such measures, the fee rate for
our traditional bank and non-bank financing guarantee products
declined slightly from 4.6% in 2014 to 4.4% in 2015.

Bond guarantee

With our gradual brand building in the domestic capital market,

we began to vigorously develop guarantee business in the bond
market.

AEERBEBEERRENMISNRN - &
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RABESEERREENRAES EH
BAER  AREME AN TIZREE
R REFEREIFEBMEER -
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In 2012, we started to guarantee bonds issued by SMEs in China
and publically offered municipal bonds, whereby we guarantee the
scheduled payments of interest and principal on the bonds in the
event of a default by the issuer. Bond guarantee is a form of “credit
enhancement,” which generally increases the credit rating of the
bonds issued and reduces the interest rate, making them more
appealing to investors.

As at 31 December 2015, we provided guarantees for the bonds
issued by 21 customers, with the outstanding guarantee balance
reaching RMB5.07 billion. The fee rates for this product ranged
from 0.6% to 1.5%.

The level of credit enhancement we provide to bond offerings
usually depends on our own credit rating.

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Shanghai Brilliance Credit Rating & Investors Service
Co., Ltd. in September 2014;

and

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Lianhe Credit Rating Co., Ltd in December 2014;

and
We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Dagong Global Credit Rating Co., Ltd. in March 2015;
and

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Pengyuan Credit Rating Co., Ltd. in October 2015;

and
We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive

outlook from China Chengxin Securities Credit Rating Company
Limited in December 2015.
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Non-financing Guarantee

We offer non-financing guarantees in our credit guarantee business
whereby we act as guarantor to promise to pay one party (i.e. the
obligor) a certain amount if another party, (i.e. the principal), fails to
meet certain obligations, (such as fulfilling the terms of a contract).
To reduce our credit risks, we require business owners or controlling
persons of the principal to provide counter-guarantees, which
make them jointly and severally liable together with the principal
when we incur a loss. These mainly include capital preservation
fund guarantee, engineering contract bond and litigation guarantee.

We consider the provision of non-financing guarantees can enhance
the efficiency of capital utilization as such business is not subject to
any net asset leverage ratio requirements in our financing guarantee
business.

The Group began to engage in guarantee business for capital
preservation funds in 2014. As at 31 December 2015, we provided
services to 10 fund products managed by 6 fund management
companies, with outstanding guarantee liability of RMB7.38 billion.
Fee rate charged for such product ranged from 0.15% to 0.20%.

Capital preservation public funds are fund products offered for
public subscription which guarantee the return of principal at the
maturity date and are managed through various capital preservation
investment strategies. Under this new guarantee product, we
typically guarantee the payment of any shortfall between the net
asset value of a particular capital preservation public fund at its
maturity date and its principal value when initially launched. Capital
preservation funds utilize interest or an extremely small proportion
of assets to conduct high risk investments, while the majority of
assets are used for fixed return investments, which means the value
of the fund will not be lower than its guaranteed price regardless
of the market decline in which the fund is invested, thereby
achieving capital preservation (i.e. the Constant Proportion Portfolio
Insurance (CPPI) investment strategy). In terms of the entire capital
preservation fund market, there is not a single fund that was unable
to preserve its capital at the maturity date.
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Distribution of collateral for guarantee business BRREBNEERY DM
The following table sets forth the distribution of the collateral of our TREFN AR B BNBREREAESERD
outstanding guarantee business (excluding capital preservation fund BEREBERMNOIKE R MHER

guarantees) as at the dates indicated:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
20154 2014%F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRSBTS - UARBEETIIR) 28 154888 % THE 15485 %
Unsecured guarantee ERRER 3,041.7 16.3 8,529.9 44.9
Secured guarantee BEBER 15,565.4 83.7 10,449.9 55.1
- Land and buildings — T REF 10,383.3 55.8 10,439.9 55.0
- Accounts receivable and — FEER R
equity interests i 5,182.1 27.9 10.0 0.1
Total &t 18,607.1 100.0 18,979.8 100.0

We still adhered to the operating principle of “Trust, Simplicity, FAPGTISRERIE [SFH o f85 o [REL | HaEE
Happiness” to serve customers with higher efficiency. As there was ES UWENMSRRMARP RS - AR

greater downward pressure on macro-economy, the operations of RERENTREODEAFE SR/ N DERHRE
SMEs were also affected. Therefore, we increased the collateral BARRASTHE AN EEFBEERRED

ratio of financing guarantees during the course of our business, BAIMAREERPIEPELO - #2014
which rose from 55.1% as at 31 December 2014 to 83.7% as at F12 31 HH55.1 %125 2201512 A 31
31 December 2015. HH83.7% °

32 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Industry distribution of the guarantee business

The following table sets forth the industry distribution of the

BREBNITRDM

RN REBMEREHTEOME

guarantee business as for the dates indicated: I
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBEFBAIN - UARBEETIITR) 28 145488 % Sl 1 A8 58 %
Capital preservation fund RAESVER
guarantees 7,375.7 28.4 4,5686.7 19.5
Construction industry EE 7,179.4 27.6 4,936.3 20.9
Manufacturing and 2IER
processing industry IINEES 3,797.1 14.7 5,112.5 21.7
Commercial services mE 3,637.8 14.0 4,917.7 20.9
Household goods e 2,007.9 7.7 2,188.1 9.3
Others Hit 1,984.9 7.6 1,825.2 7.7
Total &t 25,982.8 100.0 23,566.5 100.0

We persisted with the concept of “industry diversification” to avoid
over reliance on a single industry. Also, in order to effectively
diversify risk, our credit guarantee business focused on the principle
of “catering to the livelihood of people and providing concrete
services to SMEs”, to provide active support for the development of
SMEs. In 2015, the guarantees business mainly concentrated in the
capital preservation fund guarantee, construction, manufacturing
and processing industry, commercial services, the household goods
and other industries, which accounted for 28.4%, 27.6%, 14.7%,
14.0%, 7.7% and 7.6% of the guarantee business of the Group
respectively. There was no over-reliance on a single industry and
the situation remained relatively stable.

BIPAREE [T WIES - By
BE-1TENBEKE RERTERDE
Rk - HAEREREGZERES RO
R4 BUIER - REBHDEE]OER
BEETHHHRNPEENER 2015
FEREFIZETERAEZSER 2
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Distribution of guarantees by risk exposure

The following table sets forth the distribution of outstanding

guarantee balances by risk exposure as for the dates indicated:

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated)

ZEBBOE D WEREL DM

TERHIIN PR B B E R D &0 H 7E

REERRED M -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
20155 20144
Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BRBHEFEEIN - LARBEELIITR) 28 154888 % ZBE 1 48 58 %
Up to RMB3 million 0EARMIEET 2,278.5 8.8 2,236.1 9.5
Over RMB3 million to ARBIEETLIAL

RMBS5 million EARKBSEET 2,434.3 9.4 3,552.1 15.1
Over RMB5 million to ARBSEETTIA L

RMB10 million EAREI0BETT 2,989.8 11.5 4,387.0 18.6
Over RMB10 million to ARBA0EETLU L

RMB30 million EAREI0HEET 3,130.7 12.0 5,329.9 22.6
Over RMB30 million ARBI0EETLU L 15,149.5 58.3 8,061.4 34.2
Total &% 25,982.8 100.0 23,566.5 100.0

As the Group continued to focus on the cooperation with quality

SME customers, it also enhanced cooperation with quality

companies such as “Top 100 Companies”, industry leading

companies and government institutions. As at 31 December

2015, outstanding balance for SME customers with a guaranteed

amount below RMB10 million was RMB7,702.6 million, accounting

for 29.7% of the outstanding guarantee balance, the amount of

which fell 24.3% compared with that of 2014. For single projects

with amounts exceeding RMB10 million, 68.1% were guarantees

provided for bonds and capital preservation funds.

AEBEEBERHINEBERNRERP
EERFER - fiseE [FabE | FEEDh
¥ OTEEHECENBAERBNAE - B
2015F12A31H » NEBEEREMTHREL
AR, 0008 A TR R PDEEREFERS
BMABARE7 7026 8T ERHGBRL
29.7% * & FE2014F /N @ T fE24.3% ©
FEEoERR ARE,0008 Ty EE
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the remaining
maturity of the guarantee business as at the dates indicated:

TRETIR PR BB RE TSR 622 6
B eiIER

As at 31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(REBEFAN UARBEETIIT) ZEE 154888 % Ea] A8 B %
Due within six months 61E A AR 6,190.3 23.8 9,251.7 39.3
Due over six months up to 6IEAN L=

12 months 14 10,140.2 39.0 10,925.8 46.3
Due over one year up to 1FAEE

two years 26 4,449.3 17.2 1,479.4 6.3
Due over two years up to 2FAEE

three years 3F 656.9 2.5 641.4 2.7
Due over three years 3FEL 4,546.1 17.5 1,268.2 5.4
Total &t 25,982.8 100.0 23,566.5 100.0

We focus on providing short-term guarantees to minimize our risk
exposure and, as a result, a substantial majority of our outstanding
guarantees to customers have a maturity of not more than one
year. Among the projects with the guarantee period of over 1 year,
77.6% of the projects are the guarantee provided by us for bonds
and capital preservation funds.

Channel establishment

The Group continued to reinforce the establishment of cooperation
channels with various financial institutions and have entered into
Strategic Cooperation Agreements with various banks and financial
service companies for broader development of guarantee business.
In 2015, the Group kept strengthening liquidity management,
maintained good solvency and won support from many financial
institutions. As at 31 December 2015, the Group has cooperated
with 65 banks and was granted over RMB40 billion of credit. The
Group has also cooperated with 44 non-bank financial institutions,
and was granted over RMB20 billion of credit. Of which, 13 new
institutions were newly added in 2015, acquiring new credit up to
RMBS billion.

BPEERMEBER - AR D R R K
0 Bt R TFEPHBABMER
BHOEMBETZR —F - ZRER —FIN
EOEBEH - 77.6%% HMIE W E S MR
AESIRHEIELR -

AEEFENRRASHESREENEER
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T(EBEIER®) AEEEZMERE
BEE - 2015%F » REBIBFEME KB M
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The following table sets forth the top ten credit granting banks:

AT

TREFF T AIRERTT

Item Cooperating bank Credit granting method Amount of credit granted
=2 BERIT BEAFR RERE
1 China Merchants Bank Total credit RMBS5 billion
BRERIT mERE XI5 ARES5018
2 China Construction Bank Total credit RMB4 billion
ERRIRTT mERE RiEARKL0E
3 Chongaging Rural Commercial Bank Independent credit RMB4 billion
BERNEEIRT B RIE RiE AR08
4 Postal Savings Bank of China Total credit RMB2.4 billion
EERTT BERE RiE ARE24(8
5 Bank of Tianjin Total credit RMB2 billion
RABIRTT BERE R AR2018
6 Bank of Chengdu Total credit RMB2 billion
BCERIRTT BEBRE RiEARKE20(E
7 Bank of Ningxia Independent credit RMB1.5 billion
BEERT B RIE RiEARK15(8
8 Bank of Chongging Total credit RMB1.2 billion
BERIT BERE RiEARK12(8
9 Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Total credit RMB1 billion
A IRTT mERE RIEARK108
10 Shenyang Rural Commercial bank Independent credit RMB1 billion
EBSRNEERIT BRI RIEARK1018

By constantly expanding cooperation channels, the Group recorded
a stable development of the guarantee business, providing favorable
conditions for the growth of the scale of the guarantee business

of the Group.

THARNEIERE  EREREHBNU
REMARE  bRARNEEEFREBRENE
INRIE T A A GRAF o
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Market coverage

Our credit guarantee network, consisting of 4 credit guarantee
subsidiaries and 26 credit guarantee branch offices, has provided
credit guarantee business in 22 regions/provinces across China,
including Chongging, Sichuan, Yunnan, Hubei, Shaanxi, Gansu,
Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shandong,
Jiangsu, Shanghai, Anhui, Hunan, Guizhou, Guangxi, Guangdong,
Fujian and Zhejiang.
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The following table sets forth our guarantee amounts by
geographical regions as for the dates indicated:

TREHNNPR B - RAPVRATE S
DEFREHE

As at 31 December

12H31H

2015 2014

20154 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBEFEHEIN - LARBEELIIT) 28 154888 % ZEE 154858 %
Beijing Headquarters b aeEp 9,364.9 36.0 5,936.4 25.2
Chongaing Ey 6,845.2 26.4 8,086.8 34.3
Sichuan al 2,190.2 8.4 3,436.0 14.6
Liaoning B 1,611.5 6.2 1,205.3 5.1
Others Hh 5,971.0 23.0 4,902.0 20.8
Total a5 25,082.8 100.0 23,566.5 100.0

As the Beijing headquarters launched the debt and capital
preservation fund businesses, its business scale grew more
substantially and accounted for a greater proportion of business. As
at 31 December 2015, the outstanding business balance of Beijing
headquarters was RMB9,364.9 million, representing an increase
of RMBS3,428.5 million or 57.8% compared with the outstanding
balance of last year.

Customer base
In 2015, we served approximately 4,500 guarantee customers,

representing a slight decrease as compared with approximately
5,000 guarantee customers in 2014.

ERLEREBHEGCEERMRAESSE
2% L REBEBRBEERREA - 14
Lt BE 2 180 - 2015 12H31H » 1t
FAAMEBRTEARKEII4IEET &
201412 A31H & i A R #3,428.55 B
JT + 181857.8% °

EFER

R2015F - HZPIEARBEREZFHE A

4,5008:F » B20144F iR 7% & F 85,0006
FREE T -
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MICRO AND SMALL LOANS BUSINESS

Micro and small loan business products

At present, we provide services to the customers through
subsidiaries established in Chongqging, Chengdu, Tianjin, Shenyang,
Nanning, Changchun, Xi’an, Kunming, Guiyang, Nanjing and Harbin.
The small loan companies in Chongging and Heilongjiang have
acquired the qualification for internet lending. This has broken the
previous regional restriction. The Group now has the qualification for
lending in all regions across the mainland China, which is beneficial
to the further expansion of credit loan business of the Group.

The micro and small loan business product portfolio and structure
continued to be optimized. The Group continuously optimized the
product portfolio according to macroeconomic conditions and
features of the financial industry and after taking into consideration
future business development requirements, which provided more
diversified product support for business sales.

Depending on our loan size and customer group, we classify
our micro and small loan products into two categories, namely
micro loans and small loans: we principally made loans to micro
enterprises and individuals which range from RMB50,000 to
RMB500,000; and we principally made loans to small enterprises
which range from RMBO0.5 million to RMB3.0 million.

We offer various micro and small loan products with different and
flexible terms that suit different customers. In 2015, our principal
micro and small loan products newly launched include the following:

° Fangjie Loan: it is a secured small loan product. Its target
customer is the individual that provide real estate as mortgage.
Principal of this loan product ranges between RMBO0.2 million
and RMB3.0 million, and the expiry date is between 1 and 12
months.
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MEE - AEERBEZBLBEREMNE R
TERBH BARREBERTE - TH
TEEMBR  REBLHEREREEMNZT
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500,000t 2 : ®BMIEZE WP ERME
HNEEFRNTARBOSEBLEARKE
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Lexiang Jin: it is an unsecured micro loan product. Its target
customers are official employees of national administrative
organizations or units, public schools or hospitals and listed
companies, and those individuals that have housing mortgage,
social security, retirement fund and fixed salary in banking
card. Principal of this loan product generally ranges between
RMB10,000 and RMB500,000, and its expiry date is 1 to 36
months.

Pingtai Loan: it is a small loan product. Its target customers
are the small and micro companies or individual consumers.
Pingtai Loan will usually involve external partners. Participation
method includes the external partners assisting us on
marketing, providing historical operation and consumption
records of customers and assist in controlling of risk. Principal
of such loan product generally ranges between RMBO0.04
million to RMB2.0 million. Its expiry date is 3 to 36 months.

The following table sets forth the capital base and outstanding
balances of the micro and small loan business as at the dates
indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

s RTH: AEBEMMABRER &
BEHEBBRRITHREEEMN - AL
BRER - EMRESRRIMER
BI UEkBRBE - R 2K
¢ BEEITRIEMAR - WERE
BAEZ BN TFARBKI0BARKE
50.08 7 BB NF12I361EA -

e FHRE:AINHERER RBEHZ%
BIHEENBEABEESE - FTEE—
BEBIINBEERENSE - 287
ABEHIINEERHEHBRMET
i RHERPESLEMBEER
8 BHEHRRE - WERERAN
BN TARKE04EARKE2.08
ST o BB N F3RI36MEA -

TEREBINNARBRNREREBNELR
EBEMERERIE N -

As at 31 December

12A31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014
(REAFBEIN  UARBEETIIR) 20155 20144
Paid-in capital of the micro and INIE FRETER

small loan business T UE KR 3,150.0 3,000.0
Outstanding balance of micro and

small loans NMABE TR 4,377.5 4,114.3
Leverage ratio &Rt 3 1.4 1.4

As at 31 December 2015, the capital base of our micro and small
loans business was RMB3.15 billion, representing an increase of
5.0% or RMBO0.15 billion as compared with RMB3.00 billion as at
31 December 2014.

M20155F12 4318 VNI EREHH
BEARER A ANRES15ET © 82014412
AS1HEARER AREI.OETEMAR
#&1.51870 - 1E185.0% °
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The following table sets forth the average interest and handling
fee rate of the micro and small loan business as for the periods
indicated:

TREVRPARERENHEREBNTFH
MERTFEERX:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2015 2014 Change
20155 20144 #E)
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BB BN - UARBE&ETIITR) k] i %
Micro and small loans NEERK
Interest and handling fee income FMERFEERA 685.5 738.5 (7.2)
Average outstanding balance of
micro and small loans IINRE A YRR 4,171.6 3,551.5 17.5
Average interest and handling
fee rate FHMNERFEEX 16.4% 20.8%

The interest and handling fee rates of our micro and small loans
depend on various factors, including credit and category of the
borrower, whether the loan is secured, and the quality of the
collateral and the maturity date of the loan. In response to the
call from the government to practically alleviate the problem of
expensive financing facing SMEs, we lowered fee rates of the
micro and small loan business. Therefore, in 2015, the interest and
handling fee rate of our micro and small loan business ranged from
8.0% to 21.6%.

At the same time, we calculated interests daily according to
principle of accounting on accrual basis. For prudence purpose,
we referred to usual practice of commercial banks. For loans with
more than 90 days overdue, we stopped accruing interests on the
balance sheet and wrote off interests unpaid but confirmed on
the balance sheet. As at 31 December 2015, the micro and small
loans balance overdue for more than 90 days was RMB271.9
million, representing an increase of RMB158.9 million or 140.6%
as compared to RMB113.0 million as at 31 December 2014. Due
to increase in non-interest-bearing loan assets, the average interest
and handling fee rate declined.

BRI E R I A BN FEE KR
RRZERE BEEBERANERRE
Al - ERREGAEM EARNEENE
FOEHE - BT ERBFRALDER
ER/NEX[RESE]MWHEE BAXD
PRAKNRERE W E X - 2015 » 3
PINEEREBOMNERTFEERERR
8.0%%21.6% °

A BMEBEIEEESRIZARER
FEWA - BEBEUHZEE  KM2EEHE
IRITHBEME  HRBEXRIL EME
FoFIEFREANE - AR EE LR
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The following table sets forth the distribution of micro and small
loans as for the date indicated:

TREFRPR BB NMIERDMHIER -

As at 31 December

12831H

2015 2014

20154 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBEFHEIN  UAREBETIIR) LHE 154855 % e 154855 %
Micro and small loans PNHEER 4,377.5 100.0 4,114.3 100.0
Micro loans AV E R 1,746.9 39.9 1,349.0 32.8
Small loans NRVE R 2,630.6 60.1 2,765.3 67.2

In 2015, the proportions of our micro loan and small loan business
remained stable with no significant changes.

The following table sets forth the distribution of guarantee methods
of the micro and small loan business as for the dates indicated:

20155  HAIMEL E RN EREK
HLLRIFIRE - WMEAEL -

TEREBIRAR BN REREBRES
A HER

As at 31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BRBEFEEI - LARBEELIIT) e 15485 % TR 154858 %
Credit loan ERER 1,442.6 33.0 1,051.5 25.6
Guaranteed loans REER 2,513.2 57.4 2,409.9 58.6
— Guaranteed by intra-group —BHEBRRNARME
guarantors R AER 972.8 22.2 1,507.0 36.7
— Guaranteed by non-related — BB E=7
parties ERABER 1,540.4 35.2 902.9 21.9
Secured loans EEBER 421.7 9.6 652.9 15.8
Total = 4,377.5 100.0 4,114.3 100.0
Due to healthy business policies, the micro and small loans ERBREOEBBR  PMERERE—

business further optimized product structure, and the proportion
of credit loans and guaranteed loans further increased to 90.4%,
representing an increase of 6.2 percentage points as compared with
last year. The absolute balance grew to RMB3.96 billion.

FEICERER ERAEFRNRIBERG
LbiE — IR - fh LR A EQ0.4% - B &
FIREC2ETHE  BEBRTEREEAR
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Structure of the micro and small loans business

The micro and small loans business developed moderately. As at
31 December 2015, balance of the micro and small loans business
reached RMB4,377.5 million, representing a growth of RMB263.2
million or 6.4% as compared with RMB4,114.3 million as at 31
December 2014.

The following table sets forth the industry distribution of the micro
and small loans business as for the dates indicated:

PHREREBER

NN ERERRBERE - 72015912 31
B MEEREBRBIEEDARKL4377.5
BE T MN2014FE12A31B #45E AR K

4114.35%8 )0 A R #263.2F & T ° # 18
6.4% °

TR RFR BB R R
HHER

As at 31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
20155 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRSBTS - UARBEETIIR) =8 154858 % -] 15 4B 5E %
Wholesale and retail HENTE 2,336.7 53.4 1,752.7 42.6
Manufacturing and processing £ & h1 T % 910.1 20.8 692.3 16.8
Construction FREER 518.2 11.8 880.2 21.4
Household goods RE 69.5 1.6 20.6 0.5
Others HA 543.0 12.4 768.5 18.7
Total &5t 4,377.5 100.0 4,114.3 100.0

In terms of industry structure of the micro and small loans business,
the Group focused on the principle of “catering to the livelihoods of
people and providing concrete services to SME” to provide active
support for the development of SMEs. In 2015, the micro and
small loans business was mainly concentrated on the wholesale
and retail, manufacturing and processing, construction, household
goods and other industries, which account for 53.4%, 20.8%,
11.8%, 1.6% and 12.4% respectively of the micro and small loans
business of the Group.

ENREREBNTEEB L A&EER
EESBORE MOBX] B
BEEPHHHRNEENER 2015
FIEEREBNTEIHEIEBIBAH
MEE HERNIE ZEX K6
REMITE  DRMESEENREREBHD
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the business TREINAFR BB NEEREBRBO D
exposure of micro and small loans as for the dates indicated: mIER

As at 31 December

12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(REBEERAN UARBEETIIT) 2 154888 % Ea-d 154855 %
Up to RMB100,000 0EARKI08TT 174.6 4.0 164.8 4.0
Over RMB100,000 to ARB10E LU L
RMB500,000 EARKS08TT 1,216.5 27.8 964.1 23.4
Over RMB500,000 to ARBES0E LA £
RMB1 million EARBIEET 787.6 18.0 569.7 13.8
Over RMB1 million to ARBE1EETTE
RMB3 million EARBIEETL 1,156.5 26.4 1,082.0 26.3
Over RMB3 million ARMIEETLIA L 1,042.3 23.8 1,333.7 325
Total a5t 4,377.5 100.0 4,114.3 100.0

The Group devoted its efforts to serving quality SME customers. REBRHIRBRBEEEFR/NEERTR - R
As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding balance of micro and 2015F12A31H  AEEEFBRBELEAR
small loans of customers with loans under RMB3 million was HI00E LU TH/ NI EREPHREARKE
RMB3,335.2 million, accounting for 76.2% of the outstanding 3,335.2H & T #RFIGL76.2% » 82014
balance, representing an increase of 8.7 percentage points as F12A31 B1EL67.5% /NMBE MN8.7E 7 5

compared with 67.5% as at 31 December 2014. 2 o
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the outstanding
balance of micro and small loans by geographical region as for the
dates indicated:

TREINRPR AR EE D0 N HE
RERRE D

As at 31 December

12831H

2015 2014

20155 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRZBTRAIN - MARBBEETTIIR) 28 1548 8E % b 1 4B 5E %
Chongaing ) 1,788.2 40.9 1,428.7 34.7
Chengdu &R 748.8 17.2 1,270.7 30.9
Shenyang B[S 320.2 7.3 345.7 8.4
Nanning [y 305.5 7.0 254.7 6.2
Tianjin KE 264.7 6.0 234.2 5.7
Xi’an % 260.3 5.9 245.3 6.0
Kunming £ 194.4 4.4 100.4 2.4
Nanjing 2B 167.4 3.8 44.6 1.1
Guiyang E55 153.1 3.5 86.0 2.1
Harbin BERE 123.4 2.8 13.7 0.3
Changchun =& 51.5 1.2 90.3 2.2
Total a&t 4,377.5 100.0 4,114.3 100.0
Except Chengdu, Changchun and Shenyang, the micro and BrACED - REFILIG 25 - Efb iR )/

small loan business of other regions showed a growing trend,
especially in Kunming, Nanjing, Guiyang and Harbin, thanks to
accumulative effect from our continuous efforts on marketing and
brand promotion in those regions.

Customer base
In 2015, we had about 16,000 micro and small loan customers, a

slight increase as compared with approximately 15,000 customers
in 2014.

MEFREBH2EREY  LEHREH
MR BERLREE EEaRNAKEAE
bR ERFEEHE N R EREENRE
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Maturity of business

The following table indicates remaining maturity of the outstanding
balance of micro and small loans as at the dates indicated:

EBRNeREHA

TREIIR PR B BN R KRR ERR R T
HABR

As at 31 December

12H31H
2015 2014
20154 2014%

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBEFREN  UARBEBEETIIR) TH 154858 % TEE 1544 58 %
Due within three months 31E A A EHf 1,665.0 38.0 1,547.9 37.6
Due between three months

and six months 3Z61E A 2|5 1,309.1 29.9 982.3 23.9
Due between six months

and one year 61& A =1 FEIH 1,363.9 31.2 1,542.4 37.5
Due after than a year 15618 288 39.5 0.9 41.7 1.0
Total &t 4,377.5 100.0 4,114.3 100.0

We focus on providing short-term loans to minimize our risk
exposure and accelerate liquidity and, as a result, substantially all
of our loans have a maturity of within one year.

Entrusted loans

We also provide entrusted loans to fulfill the demands of customers
of receiving short-term financing and relatively large amount loans
(mainly small-to-medium loans between RMBO0.5 million to RMB50.0
million) within a short period of time.

In the entrusted loan business, our guarantee subsidiary and asset
management company use their own funds to commence business
of transfer and repurchase of loan benefit rights and reinvesting in
the entrusted loan business. The entrusted loan business is also
one of our liquidity management measures, whereby we are able
to actively adjust the size of entrusted loan portfolio and manage
the funds available.

BRAFERHEEHER - IR R R A
MNEER RS - At HARTEFH
BABMERENIHMAE—FUA -

BPERHEAET AR R TP FERER
FMNESEHREMRGHRYBRASEE
R(EEBNMRARBOSEETEZEARY
50.0B &THF/NELER) MFBEK

ZAEEREHERBRMNERNE QR
MNAEEREES URAEEEARMNA
EHEAESYRRERKaEEROBE
BRAEZABRRERZTEREBEN
Be¥EK - ZREREBORERMAR T
EEfER —  BULRMENBRBETEA
EXAERAEGNRETEAAIHERE
% o
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We act as the principal in entrusted loan arrangements and deposit
capital in intermediary banks, which will lend the relevant amounts
to the ultimate borrowers. After receiving the principal and interest
of the loan, the intermediary bank will return the relevant amounts
to us.

The following table sets forth the main operating data of the
entrusted loan business of the Company as for the periods
indicated:

BALERTERLHRNZTA - M
AFRNRITEAESR  BRATNRITEHE
FRIAEE THREERA - RIKBIEFHAR
ERMEBR  FNRITBEEERERRE
=R

TERBIIRFREEARTE R RES
GESTE TR

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2015 2014 Change
20155 20144 &
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) ] THE %
Entrusted loans EXEX
Interest and handling fee income FERFEBIA 473.1 470.6 0.5
Monthly average balance of
entrusted loans L ERA % 2,149.4 2,125.9 1.1
Average interest and handling
fee rate FHFERFEEX 22.0% 22.1%
Outstanding balance REEHRTE 3,092.6 2,171.7 42.4

In 2015, the interest and handling fee income generated by our
entrusted loan business was RMB473.1 million, which grew by
0.5% or RMB2.5 million as compared with that of 2014. The
increase was due to the slight growth of the monthly average
entrusted loans balance from RMB2,125.9 million in 2014 to
RMB2,149.4 million in 2015, representing a growth of 1.1%.
The average interest and handling fee rate of our entrusted loan
business was relatively stable.

As at 31 December 2015, our entrusted loans balance was
RMB3,092.6 million, up by RMB920.9 million or 42.4% as compared
with the balance of RMB2,171.7 million as at 31 December 2014.
The increase was mainly attributable to our issuance of corporate
bonds, the cooperation with other financial institutions to sell
the benefit rights of loans under repurchase agreements through
financial asset exchanges at various locations and other asset
management planning channels to obtain capital and serving more
small and medium customers.

2015%F » MM ETLEREBELENF
BRFEBWNABARBATZATEE L
Bo014F IR AR B25B &L E1iE
05% ZERFERHEZTERAFHEA
2014 F ARE2,125 08 B L/ MEIE K
EAR®E2149.485 87T - #HBIE1.1% : £5T
BERESHNEANNERTFEERRESRY

R2015F 128318 » HANZALERHEE
B ARMES,092.68 & 7T 820145127
STHBRBARE2ATITEETERARE
920.9B BJL c EI§42.4%  TEBEBFZRHK
MEBETAGES  HEMSREBEEIE -
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BHERE AREFRKEREHOEE
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EXEERBRED M

Distribution of the scale of entrusted loans

The following table sets forth the distribution of business exposure TERESN AR BB IREZERH A DMHIE
as at the dates indicated: A

As at 31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBBEFEN  UAREEETYIR) 28 1548 % TR 15 A EE %
Up to RMB5 million 0Z500& 7T 256.1 8.3 148.1 6.8
Over RMB5 million to 5008 7T A £
RMB10 million Z£1,0008 7T 346.6 11.2 243.0 11.2
Over RMB10 million to 1,0008 T
RMB30 million Z£3,000& 7T 1,056.8 34.2 487.6 22.5
Over RMB30 million to 38,0008 A £
RMB50 million %£5,0008 7T 811.5 26.2 179.0 8.2
Over RMB50 million 5,000& 7T A 621.6 20.1 1,114.0 51.3
Total &5t 3,092.6 100.0 2,171.7 100.0

TREIAFR B BEEEFT G F 445 H
loans as at the dates indicated: =K =

The following table sets forth the remaining maturity of entrusted

As at 31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
20155 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRSBTS - UARBEETIIR) - 154858 % -] 15485 %
Due within three months 3fE A REIH 785.7 25.3 986.8 45.4

Due between three months
and six months 3Z61E A 2 & 889.2 28.8 626.1 28.8
Due between six months

and one year 61E A =1 F2H 1,028.3 33.3 458.8 21.1
Due after one year 1 1% B 8 389.4 12.6 100.0 4.7
Total &5t 3,092.6 100.0 2,171.7 100.0

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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We focus on providing short-term entrusted loans to minimize our
risk exposure and, as a result, majority of our entrusted loans has
a maturity of less than one year.

Provisions for loan losses

For the SME lending business, we adopted a risk categorization
method for loans according to the Guideline for Loan Credit
Risk Classification promulgated by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission to monitor the risk of the loans and advances portfolio.
Loans and advances are classified into five categories: normal,
special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss according to the
risk, of which the last three categories are deemed as impaired
loans and advances. When one or more event has occurred proving
the existence of objective impairment evidence, and that a loss may
be incurred, the loan and advance is classified as impaired loans
and advances. Provisions for impairment losses of impaired loans
and advances will be assessed as part of a portfolio or individually
according to circumstances.

The core definitions of each loan category are as follows:

Normal: The borrower can fulfill the terms of the loan, and there
is insufficient reason to doubt the principal and interest of the loan
cannot be repaid in full on time.

Special concern: Although the borrower is currently able to repay
the principal and interest of the loan, there exist some factors which
may have an adverse effect on the repayment.

Substandard: There is an apparent problem in the repayment
ability of the borrower who is unable to repay the principal and
interest of the loan in full with its normal income. Some losses may
be incurred even if the guarantee is exercised.

Doubtful: The borrower is unable to repay the principal and interest
of the loan in full. Relatively big losses will be incurred even if the
guarantee is exercised.

Loss: After taking all possible measures or all necessary legal
proceedings by us, the interest and principal cannot be recovered
or only an extremely small portion can be recovered.
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BPMEESSHEANEREENEES
BETEHNEN HERAREEAESNE
E G ZMEEERBERBZREFHEERX
BANETERENESRE - £ H8
By HMaFeLREERMEARLR
KBEEIRHIRD

We regularly review the quality of individual significant financial
assets. For assets for which an allowance for impairment loss is
provided individually, the amount is determined after assessing the
incurred loss at the balance sheet date on a case-by-case basis.
In making such assessments, the Group considers the value of
collateral held and expected future cash flows from the asset.

TREIINPIRBHARA R PNEEER
EBNERZEELERR

The following table sets forth the major asset quality indicators of
the SME lending business as at the dates indicated:

As at 31 December

50

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014
(BRZBETAIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20154 20144
Impaired loan ratio BEERL R 3.0% 3.6%
— Micro and small loans — MEER 3.7% 2.6%
— Entrusted loans —ZFEX 2.2% 5.5%
Outstanding balance of impaired loans BEE R 227.5 228.3
— Micro and small loans — IMEER 159.8 107.9
— Entrusted loans — ZER 67.7 120.4
Outstanding balance of loans EX&E 7,470.1 6,286.0
- Micro and small loans — IMEREK 4,377.5 4,114.3
— Entrusted loans — ZEX 3,092.6 2,171.7
Provision coverage rate BREBEX 146.1% 126.5%
— Micro and small loans — INMEER 150.9% 179.0%
— Entrusted loans —ZFER 134.7% 79.6%
Allowance for impairment losses BRI EEE 332.3 288.9
- Micro and small loans — /NMEER 241.1 193.1
— Entrusted loans — ZER 91.2 95.8
Outstanding balance of impaired loans E B R ERER 227.5 228.3
- Micro and small loans — IMERER 159.8 107.9
— Entrusted loans — ZER 67.7 120.4
Provision rate BE=R 4.4% 4.6%

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARIE
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Although the downward pressure on the domestic economy
intensified, we improved slightly the quality of our credit assets as
at 31 December 2015 as compared with that as at 31 December
2014, by easing pressures of the non-performing assets through
enhanced disposal of non-performing loans and other measures
such as write-off and transfer since 2014. The outstanding balance
of impaired loans fell by RMB0.8 million or 0.4% from RMB228.3
million as at 31 December 2014 to RMB227.5 million as at 31
December 2015. Also, our impaired loans ratio dropped from
3.6% as at 31 December 2014 to 3.0% as at 31 December 2015.
Although the impaired loans of the micro and small loan business
increased, the total impaired loans and the impaired loans ratio
decreased due to improving quality of the entrusted loan business.

In 2015, we continued to adopt prudent accounting estimates and
considered the changes in loan quality. Overall provision coverage
rate went up from 126.5% as at 31 December 2014 to 146.1% as
at 31 December 2015.

Internet Financial Services

At the beginning of 2015, we established an internet financial group.
Our internet financial business and our traditional financial business
complemented each other and developed together as an integrated
group. Currently, we provide services to clients through “Hanhua
Yun”, our asset information services platform.

“Hanhua Yun”, our asset information services platform

“Hanhua Yun” platform (www.hanhuayun.com) is the first financial
asset information services platform with a focus on inclusive finance
in the PRC developed and independently operated by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. “Hanhua Yun” provides open,
transparent, safe and highly effective financial asset information
services for financial service institutions with strong overall
competitiveness. By utilizing professional division of labor and the
principle of complimentary advantages, “Hanhua Yun” platform
can increase information sharing and information flow between
financial institutions, bringing a positive effect to the enhancement
of the value and expansion of inclusive financial services and
reconstruction of the value chain of inclusive finance transactions.
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“Hanhua Yun” leverages on the credit technology and risk control
system developed through our 10-year dedication to developing
inclusive finance and a nationwide offline service network. The
platform conducts stringent assessment on the financial service
institution partners and select institutions with competitive strength,
standardized operations and sound management capabilities. All
financial institutions can conveniently, efficiently and continuously
issue or receive various types of quality asset information and
professional value-added services. On “Hanhua Yun” platform,
financers can continuously and steadily receive capital at a
reasonable cost from various financing channels. Investors can
obtain safer and better investment opportunities. The problem of
asymmetric information exists between financial institutions and
between financiers and investors can then be minimized by “Hanhua
Yun” while the platform can effectively lower the borrowing risk and
financing cost, and enhance the efficiency of internet investment
and financing, ultimately benefitting financers and investors.

Currently, the core services that “Hanhua Yun” provides include
account management, asset information management and asset
information matching services. We will develop value-added
services such as asset evaluation and rating, supporting services to
product design and asset-backed securities products in the future.
Currently, we provide matching services for transactions through
our dedicated channel. We will develop various types of services
such as online bids and online auction.

“Hanhua Yun” platform was launched on 28 December 2014. As
at 31 December 2015, “Hanhua Yun” platform had 57 institutional
partners, including 36 financing institutions and 20 asset institutions.
As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of matched
transactions was RMB5.33 billion.
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Financial Factoring

Changjiang Factoring is the first professional company engaging in
financial factoring business with approval from financial regulatory
authorities in China. It provides integrated services of financial
factoring, bill factoring, commercial factoring, re-factoring, lease
factoring and international factoring on internet platform.

Changjiang Factoring provides financial solutions to the
existing clients. Meanwhile, it strives to promote collaboration
and consolidation of the industrial chain and facilitate orderly
development of corporations with innovative and comprehensive
financial solutions.

In 2015, Changjiang Factoring has realized aggregated transactions
of RMB1.07 billion. As at 31 December 2015, Changjiang Factoring
has a total balance of assets of RMB380 million and 72 existing
projects, and achieved profit before taxation of RMB21.3 million.

Capital Investment and Management

In early 2015, we started to engage in capital investment and
management business. We worked together with external
organizations that serve SMEs to raise capital by way of funds.
We provide small capital investment services to leading SMEs in
their respective industries with stable operating and management
teams and positive growth prospect.

In 2015, we have successfully established two funds respectively
with RMB120.0 million and RMB400.0 million, by cooperating with
other external investors.
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Finance leasing

In the second half of 2015, we established the leasing business
group in Tianjin, mainly serving fields encouraged by the state
such as automobile, healthcare, energy saving and environment
protection, education, people’s livelihood and high-end
manufacturing, through flexible service modes including leaseback,
direct leasing, vendor leasing and operating lease.

Since commencement of its business in November 2015, the
leasing group has made various innovation and breakthrough in
the investment projects in the leasing industry, and will continue
to provide to clients the solutions for capacity expansion and
upgrading and asset-liability structure optimization in a specialized
and characteristic way. Meanwhile, it will assist its partners to
achieve long-term sustainable development.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our finance leasing
business has outstanding advances of RMB70.0 million in total.
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In 2015, the Company persisted with the principle of integrating
information technology with business strategies information
technology and formulated the informatization planning of the
Group, optimized the management structure of information
technology, established information technology infrastructure and
important information systems according to the business strategies
of the Company, ensuring the stable operations of information
systems and providing strong support for the control and business
innovation of the Group.

Information Technology Management

An informatization establishment leadership team has been set
up among senior management to coordinate and monitor major
decisions and projects, creating a normalized decision making
mechanism for informatization establishment.

Informatization Planning

By focusing on the strategic objectives of the Company and on
the basis of existing informatization plans, a rolling work plan has
been implemented. In 2015 and 2016, the focus has been placed
on the establishment of platforms such as the group management
information platform, group capital finance, financing guarantee and
small credit business platform and the internet finance business
platform, which supported the strategic implementation of the
Group and reinforced its control and operating efficiency.
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Establishment of Information Systems

In 2015, the Company has stepped up the building of the information
system in accordance with the needs of the Group’s management
activities, business development and customer service. In order to
be in line with the development strategy of finance business of our
partners, we have upgraded and reformed the existing guarantee
business platform and the need of business operation is further
supported by strengthening the customer management function,
flexible allocation system and convenient access of mobile devices.
In order to be in line with the development strategy of our inclusive
finance, an established market system and management philosophy
were introduced to build a brand new platform for credit business
and customer management. At the same time, the upgrade and
reform of Hanhua Tong system have been completed, setting up
the fundamental business process of internet credit.

For further advancing the establishment of the Group’s human
resources management information system based on PeopleSoft
HCM platform, informatization has been implemented for the core
personnel and the management of remuneration, providing a
self-service access platform to all Hanhua employees in order to
enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the management and
services of human resources. Through the establishment of the
Group’s funding system platform, we achieved allocation of funds
and management of the capital pool through banks and enterprises.
In order to cater for the raised standard of the Group’s financial
management requirement, we have promoted the upgrade of the
Group’s financial system platform.

Establishment of Information Technology Infrastructure

In 2015, the infrastructure platform link was optimized to expand
the resources such as the memory and storage of the existing
infrastructure platform equipment, catering for the development
need of the Company’s business platform. We have also optimized
the internet strategy and enhanced the scope of protection under
the security strategy and allowed more branches to have access
to intranet and video conference.
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Information Technology Management Capabilities

In 2015, by establishing sound and relevant policy and procedures,
the Company have set specific requirements for workflow including
the research and development of information system, online
connection of our system, maintenance of system operation,
system emergency measures, system procedures and user
authorization management, and we have reviewed the project
operation procedures, supporting the business management
procedures of the Company in all aspects. We introduce tools for
projects and transactions tracking, test cases management and
continuous integration in order to enhance the standardization
of developing information construction. The ensured quality of
information construction can then support the business of the
Company and achieve highly effective and low-cost operation
under the systematic platform. We established the applicable work
specification of operation and maintenance and standard operating
manual for the operation system, ensuring that the Company can
obtain support service in a timely manner when it is using the
operating system during operation, which the information system
will further realizing continuous security for the operation of the
Company. Risk control has been carried out through increasing
jumpserver equipment, upgrading anti-spam gateway and anti-virus
system, monitoring platform of infrastructure system and security
audit equipment.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Basic information of employees

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of employees of the
Group was 2,389.

According to academic qualification: undergraduate and above:
1,981, accounting for 82.9%; post-secondary education and below:
408, accounting for 17.1%.
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Overall management work of human resources

As talents are the most valuable assets of Hanhua Financial,
Hanhua has been adopting a series of measures in areas at
corporate culture building, employee development and overall
remuneration improvement.

The Company attaches great importance to the construction,
publicity and implementation of its corporate culture and a culture
of “trust, simplicity and happiness” has hence been established with
its constant development and long-term accumulation. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, human resources department of the
Company planned and organized a range of activities with focuses
on public welfare, entertainment and health, which improved the
corporate image and enhanced the sense of happiness of the
employees.

In terms of employees’ career development, the employees’ career
choice is enriched by the extension of “professional sequence”
channels to maximize the individual potential. Meanwhile, by
clarifying the employment standards of all sequences and position
levels, selection, cultivation and incentive of talents become more
targeted, which is beneficial to the development and reserve of
more professional and compound talents to improve our echeloned
building of talents.

In terms of compensation performance, we introduced two kinds
of assessment indicators, namely, performance and capability,
to support works such as checking, reserving and succession
to maintain overall vitality of the Company through healthy
competition; the comprehensive compensation system and market
competitive salary levels greatly improved employees’ compensation
satisfaction.

Meanwhile, the Company strengthened the popularity of business
knowledge and skills upgrading, and increased training and
development of middle-to-senior employees, optimized the
management training framework and courses, creating a benevolent
culture and atmosphere which respects knowledge and talent and
attaches importance to the growth and development of employees.
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Also, by integrating the concept of promoting the mobile
internet, the Company launched the development of the human
resources informatization system. The phased implementation of
data electronization, process electronization and management
electronization was carried out. Data electronization and process
electronization were gradually completed, which combined
mathematical models with information management models to
conduct optimization and strategic analysis of human resources
management, providing effective support for corporate management
and decision making.
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Operation analysis of segments

The contribution of our internet finance, capital investment and
management, financial factoring and finance lease business to the
operation of the Group was relatively small, therefore, the analysis
on which is not included herein. For more information on the key

Bt 75 1o R
7 EEEBR D

AEENERETR EAREREE -
TRARELBEHEXRBHAEENLE
BEME RN Btk BEEBROTE
TEREESE - ARLES BN ERL

operation data of these segments, please refer to pages 51 to 54 EHBBL2HAREFES1 B R4 TN
of this report. N

The following table sets forth the segment information of credit
guarantee and micro and small loan business for the year ended

31 December 2015:

TREFIBRFEE2015FE12A831H ILEE
EAERENMIEREB S IBEL

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2015 2014
20155 20144
% of net % of net
fee and fee and
interest interest
income income
1FFE WFFE
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount ERAE Amount BRFE
(BREBEFEHEI - LARBEELIIT) 28 HKA% ZEE WA %
Credit Guarantee ERER
Net guarantee and consulting
fee income BEREBREFBA 765.0 43.7 958.3 47.9
Net interest and handling
fee income FMERFEEFRA 374.1 21.4 363.0 18.1
Subtotal NEE 1,139.1 65.1 1,321.3 66.0
Micro and small loan NEERK
Net interest and handling
fee income MERFEEFRA 605.6 34.6 675.9 33.8
Subtotal et 605.6 34.6 675.9 33.8

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The following table sets forth our profit and profit margin by TREHFATF2015F #2520 E 2 59 F) E
segments in 2015: EFE=

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETIIR) 2015% 20144 EE) (%)
Segment profit 73 #B
Credit guarantee business ERERER 403.9 465.9 (13.3)
Micro and small loan business INRERERE 334.6 373.7 (10.5)
Profit margin by segment 3 B AE =
Credit guarantee business ERERER 35.5% 35.3% 0.2
Micro and small loan business INAERER 55.3% 55.3% -

Note: In 2014, we evaluated the incorporation of relevant operation data 2014 B 2 ER ] EFAHERK

of the “Entrusted Loans” business into our “SME Lending” business SHEMA TR NCEER] 250 0T
segment. However, in 2015, due to the restructuring of the Group EE 2015  ERAEBANIEBEE
business and change of the evaluation method, we evaluated the BHAREZFANE - NEBW Ll 5N
“Entrusted Loans” business to be categorized as part of “Credit ANERER] ¥BoMETEE - WHEE
Guarantee” business, and have adjusted certain data in 2014 to FEE2014F L BREE - UAE BTHE-

facilitate your reading.
Credit Guarantee Business Segment: EREREH S -

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the income of credit B F2015F12A31H L FE - HMH1E
guarantee segment was RMB1,139.1 million, which decreased by BERSHFEBBABARE1,13018E8
RMB182.2 million or 13.8% as compared to RMB1,321.3 million 7T B2014FWAANRK1,321.38& T -
in 2014. The profit of credit guarantee business was RMB403.9 M ARE1822H 8T [£1813.8% : [
million, representing a reduction of RMB62.0 million or 13.3% as B BRMERAEREBEENIERAR
compared to that in 2014. #403.98 BT B2014F FER AR

e —

¥62.08 BT © F£1813.3% °
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The revenue and profit from credit guarantee business decreased
due to the decline of guarantee and consulting fee income of credit
guarantee business, as well as the increased assets impairment
losses for receivables for default payments and entrusted loans.
The decrease was mainly because of the increasing downward
pressure on the domestic economy, a decline in the subjective
financing demands of SME customers and our active adjustment
of business which led to a decline in our traditional financing
guarantee business of relatively higher fee rate.

In 2015, due to increased downward pressure on China’s economy,
the default risks of our SME customers intensified, resulting in
default payment of RMB489.5 million. For such payment, we made
provision of impairment loss of RMB376.2 million. Besides, we
made provision of RMB26.8 million for impairment losses for new
entrusted loan business.

In 2015, the profit margin of credit guarantee business was 35.5%,
remaining generally stable compared to that in 2014.

For more details on our credit guarantee business segment, please
refer to pages 25 to 38 of this report.

Micro and Small Loan Business Segment:

In 2015, net interest and handling fee income of our micro and small
loan business was RMB605.6 million, representing a decrease of
RMB70.3 million or 10.4% from RMB675.9 million in 2014. Also in
2015, the profit of our micro and small loan business segment was
RMB334.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB39.1 million or
10.5% as compared with RMB373.7 million in 2014.

The decline in revenue and profit of the micro and small loan
business segment was mainly because the decline in the average
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return of micro and small loan business exceeded the growth of
average balance. In 2015, the average interest and handling fee
rate of micro and small loan business was 16.4%, 4.4 percentage
points lower than 20.8% in 2014. In 2015, the monthly average
balance of the micro and small loan business was RMB4,171.6
million, representing a growth of RMB620.1 million or 17.5% as
compared with RMB3,551.5 million in 2014.

The average interest and handling fee rate declined for the two
reasons below:

e  With declining external financing cost and in response to the
call from the government to practically alleviate the problem of
expensive financing facing SMEs, we actively lowered fee rates
of the micro and small loan business. As a result, the average
interest and handling fee rate of such business showed a
slightly declining trend to a range between 8.0% and 21.6%
in 2015; and

e According to the accounting standard, we calculated the
interest on a daily accrual basis, and categorized interest
into interest income and interest receivables. For prudence
purpose, we referred to usual practice of commercial banks.
For loans with more than 90 days overdue, we stopped
accruing interests on the balance sheet and wrote off
interests unpaid but confirmed on the balance sheet. As at 31
December 2015, the micro and small loans balance overdue
for more than 90 days was RMB271.9 million, representing
an increase of RMB158.9 million or 140.6% as compared to
RMB113.0 million as at 31 December 2014. Due to increase
in non-interest-bearing loan assets, the average interest and
handling fee rate declined.

In 2015, the profit margin of micro and small loan business was
55.3%, remaining generally stable compared to that in 2014.

For more details on our credit SME lending business segment,
please refer to pages 39 to 51 of this report.
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SELECTED ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

Guarantee and consulting fee income

The following table sets forth our guarantee and consulting fee
income by products for 2015:

ERSHAIERER

BREFABRA

TREINRPIN2016F 4R E f &l 5 K 1R
RBABBA

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20154 20144 (%)
Guarantee and consulting KELUTEERN

fee income from BREBABRA
Bank financing guarantee IRITRVE R 544.9 798.6 (31.8)
Bond guarantee BEHER 52.0 16.0 225.0
Other financing guarantee Hith g & R 154.7 137.5 12.5
Financing guarantee RE R 751.6 952.1 (21.1)
Non-financing guarantee FEBMEER 15.3 7.9 93.7
Guarantee and consulting fee

income subtotal BRRBEAEWRA NG 766.9 960.0 (20.1)
Less: Re-guarantee expenses B BERER (1.9 (1.7) 11.8
Net guarantee and consulting

fee income BREBRAEFRA 765.0 958.3 (20.2)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In 2015, our net guarantee and consulting fee income was
RMB765.0 million, which decreased by RMB193.3 million or 20.2%
as compared with the RMB958.3 million in 2014, of which:

1. In 2015, the guarantee and consulting fee income generated
from our bank financing guarantee business was RMB544.9
million, representing a decrease of RMB253.7 million or
31.8% as compared with that in 2014. The decrease was
mainly because downward pressure on the domestic economy
intensified, leading to a decline in the subjective financing
demands of SME customers; and our proactive adjustment of
operating strategies and cooperating financing institutions to
reduce our reliance on traditional financial institutions, which
caused the fee scale of such business to fall;

2. In 2015, the guarantee and consulting fee income generated
from our bond guarantee business was RMB52.0 million,
up by RMB36.0 million or 225.0% as compared with 2014
The increase was mainly attributable to the utilization of our
growing brand reputation and proactive adjustment of our
operation strategies to expand our guarantee business for
capital market bond issuances with relatively lower credit risk.
In 2015, we provided guarantee for 17 new clients, with newly
added guarantee amount of RMB4,385.0 million;

3. In 2015, the income generated from our other financing
guarantee businesses was RMB154.7 million, representing
an increase of RMB17.2 million or 12.5% compared with
2014. The increase was mainly attributable to our adjustment
of operating strategies, active strengthening of cooperation
with new financial institutions such as micro and small loan
companies to provide guarantee services to a wider range of
customers; and

4. In 2015, the income generated from our non-financing
guarantee businesses was RMB15.3 million, up by RMB7.4
million or 93.7% as compared with 2014. The increase was
caused by our adjustment of our operating strategies and
stepped up marketing on capital preservation fund and other
non-financing guarantee products with lower credit risks.

R2015%F - HMIMERLBHBEFRAR
ARBE765.08 8 T H2014F R K&
AEFWRAAREISSIEE L THRAR

e —

#193.3B&E T * & 1820.2% + EHr ¢
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Net interest and handling fee income

The following table sets forth our interest and handling fee income

by products in 2015:

MNERFEEBFERA

TREHNHFIN2015F L E m o BRF S
RFEEWARA -

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REAFTHEIN LARBEETLIIR) 20154 201445 (%)
Interest and handling REUTIZFENFE

fee income from RFEERA
Loans and advances to customers BRER MR 1,158.6 1,209.1 (4.2)

— Micro and small loan business — MR ER 685.5 738.5 (7.2)

— Entrusted Loans —ZFAER 473.1 470.6 0.5
Cash at banks RITER 49.3 36.8 34.0
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES 21.6 38.6 (44.0)
Internet finance S B 8.1 - -
Finance lease RERE 3.5 - -
Total interest and handling

fee income FMERFEBWALE 1,241.1 1,284.5 (3.4)
Interest and commission REUTHIZENRE

expenses from RFEESH
Borrowings from banks and

non-bank institutions 1T R IEMITHIBE R (38.1) (65.2) (41.6)
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements BEHOESEE (104.5) (157.5) (33.7)
Commission paid to agents FEERASI T (21.9) (19.3) 13.5
Debts securities issued ERES (61.3) - -
Other interest-bearing liabilities Hibzt 8 8@ (28.3) - -
Total interest and commission

fee expenses FMERFEEL HBE (254.1) (242.0) 5.0
Net interest and handling

fee income FERFEEZBA 987.0 1,042.5 (5.3)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In 2015, our net interest and handling fee income was RMB987.0
million, down by RMB55.5 million or 5.3% from the RMB1,042.5
million of 2014. The decline was mainly attributable to the decrease
in interest and handling fee income of micro and small loan and
entrusted loans as well as the increase in interest and commission
fee expenses, of which:

1. In 2015, the interest and handling fee income from our micro
and small loan business was RMB685.5 million, down by
RMB53.0 million or 7.2% compared with that in 2014. The
decline was mainly due to the fact that the decline in the
average return of micro and small loan business exceeded
the growth of the average balance. In 2015, the average
interest and handling fee rate of micro and small loan business
was 16.4% (2014: 20.8%). In 2015, the monthly average
balance of micro and small loan business was RMB4,171.6
million, representing a growth of RMB620.1 million or 17.5%
compared to RMB3,551.5 million in 2014;

The decline in the average return of micro and small loan
business is mainly attributable to the following two reasons:

e With declining external financing cost and in response to
the call from the government to practically alleviate the
problem of expensive financing facing SMEs, we actively
lowered fee rates of the micro and small loan business.
As a result, the average interest and handling fee rate
of such business showed a slightly declining trend to a
range between 8.0% and 21.6% in 2015; and

M2015%F - BRPIMFBRFEEBFHAN A
ARM987.08 BT » B2014FF E X F
BEZWAARET1,042558 7T B A
RH¥55.58 87T [#185.3% - iz EE
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BRATRUERMERFEESL HERA
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e According to the accounting standard, we calculated
the interest on an daily accrual basis, and categorized
interest into interest income and interest receivables.
For prudence purpose, we referred to usual practice of
commercial banks. For loans with more than 90 days
overdue, we stopped accruing interests on the balance
sheet and wrote off interests unpaid but confirmed on the
balance sheet. As at 31 December 2015, the micro and
small loans balance overdue for more than 90 days was
RMB271.9 million, representing an increase of RMB158.9
million or 140.6% as compared to RMB113.0 million as
at 31 December 2014. Due to increase in non-interest-
bearing loan assets, the average interest and handling fee
rate declined;

In 2015, interest and handling fee income of our entrusted loan
business was RMB473.1 million, up by RMB2.5 million or 0.5%
compared with 2014. The increase was due to the monthly
average outstanding balance of entrusted loans growing by
1.1% from RMB2,125.9 million in 2014 to RMB2,149.4 million
in 2015. The average return of entrusted loans remained
relatively stable;

In 2015, the interest income from our bank deposits was
RMB49.3 million, which increased by RMB12.5 million or
34.0% as compared with 2014. The increase was mainly
attributable to our adoption of more flexible cash management
strategies and investment in time deposits and capital
preservation wealth management products with relatively
higher returns on the prerequisite of maintaining sufficient
liquidity;

In 2015, the interest income from our restricted bank deposits
was RMB21.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB17.0
million or 44.0% as compared with 2014. The decrease
was mainly attributable to our active adjustment of the
guarantee business structure and gradual reduction of the
bank financing guarantee business. As a result, the guarantee
balance dropped by 34.1% from RMB2,124.5 million as at 31
December 2014 to RMB1,400.1 million as at 31 December
2015; and

o IREREFERIMESR - BIIAESR
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MERE BM2EHERTOHRA
BiOE  WREEORUN EHE
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R#271.98 & 7T - 20145124
S1TAARB113.0EETEMAR
#¥158.9B &L ' AkIE140.6% *
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FEERNTRE
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5. In 2015, our interest and commission expense was RMB254.1 5 20155 - BRPIWFAERFEEZ L

million, which increased by RMB12.1 million or 5.0% as RARME2541BETT - B2014F K
compared with 2014. The increase was mainly attributable to ARBI121BEL - E85.0% - £ &
our issuance of corporate bonds, the cooperation with other ERMBAETARES  HEEMH
financial institutions to sell the benefit rights of loans under themEBEaERRERN A EEE
repurchase agreements to expand financing channels to HEBEEESBARMERE  FA
obtain capital for development of loan business, which slightly BEEEESEZESANERER
increased the overall interest and commission expenses. MER FEEBINELFEEID

BE A 3800 -

Other business income HAa R WA

The following table sets forth our income from other businesses R B F I 520155 B E 2 75 Uk A BF
in 2015: A

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(B BBEREIN  UARBEETLIITR) 20154 20144 BE)(%)
Government subsidies and tax refund  FfT# Bh R RLUGR 8 26.4 28.9 (8.7)
Others Hith 7.6 0.6 1,166.7
Total a5t 34.0 29.5 15.3

In 2015, income from other businesses was RMB34.0 million, which R2015%F » HPIMEMEFKAABARE
increased by RMB4.5 million as compared with 2014 and was 34.0BETT  B014FWIMARBA5EE
mainly attributable to the increase of rental income. T TERRAAEERE AL INEE -

Annual Report 2015
Zenerm 09



70

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

Impairment losses

The following table sets forth impairment losses in 2015:

EERERX

TR FAPIR2015F K & B R (A 18 K AP
4 -

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(RZBEFTHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20154 20144 EH)(%)
Impairment losses for receivables MR B

for default payments BERMERXK 376.2 250.3 50.3
Impairment losses for loans and BERE R R

advances to customers BERBRELX 138.9 181.4 (23.4)
Impairment losses for receivables FEBIRIEREE

for factoring business VEREEEES 0.4 - -
Total a5 515.5 431.7 19.4

In 2015, our impairment losses were RMB515.5 million, which
increased by RMB83.8 million or 19.4% as compared to RMB431.7
million in 2014, of which:

1. In 2015, we paid RMB489.5 million to the cooperating
financial institutions for the defaults of our customers which
we had guaranteed. For this repayment, we made provision
of RMB376.2 million for impairment losses; and

2. Impairment losses of the micro and small loans and entrusted
loans decreased from RMB181.4 million in 2014 to RMB138.9
million in 2015. Although the downward pressure on the
domestic economy intensified, we improved slightly the quality
of our credit assets as at 31 December 2015 as compared
with that as at 31 December 2014, by easing pressures of
non-performing assets through enhanced disposal of non-
performing loans and other measures such as write-off and
transfer since 2014.

For details regarding the asset quality of the guarantee business
and the micro and small loan business, please refer to the section
pages 25 to 51 headed “Business Overview” in this report.

20156 - RMWEERBEBABARE
515.5H BT » BR014FEERMEEBXA
RE431.7B8 &L BMARMKS3.8EH
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EEXH

Operating expenses
TREHNERFIN2015FHNEEL H ¢

The following table sets forth our operating expenses in 2015:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2015 2014
20155 20144
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(RS BEFRI - MARBE&ETIITR) =8 15 % -] 1t %
Staff costs 8 T % 451.5 50.5 405.4 47.6
- Non-cash share-based —UEREERN
payment A7 Sz A+t 81.1 9.1 120.9 14.2

Business taxes and surcharges & %754 & i AN 81.8 9.2 97.0 11.4
Operating lease charges in

respect of buildings FELEHEER 90.5 10.1 75.8 8.9
Depreciation and

amortization expenses rERBHFAX 31.6 3.5 41.8 4.9
Others HAftb 238.0 26.7 231.2 27.2
Total aF 893.4 100.0 851.2 100.0

In 2015, the operating expenses reached RMB893.4 million, which
grew by RMB42.2 million or 5.0% compared with RMB851.2 million
in 2014. The increase was mainly attributable to the business
expansion which led to an increase in staff costs and related
operating expenses. In 2015, we continued with comprehensive
upgrade of the business mode and expansion of branch agencies.
We developed from a single business of financing guarantee
and small loan business to a comprehensive financial platform
covering diversified services of internet finance, financial factoring,
capital management and finance lease. In the expansion of the
business segment, operation networks and scale expansion, we
kept enhancing operation management and cost control. However,
these new business segments employed new sales persons at the
beginning, which increased the labor cost and relevant operation
cost. of which:

20155 - ZMWEEIRARARE
893.4H BT ' B2014F AR¥S851.2H &
TL EIMARB42 288 T 0 #H185.0% ¢
FTEREBHBEIRRFESE IR AMAE
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In 2015, total staff cost was RMB451.5 million, up by RMB46.1
million or 11.4% compared with 2014. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in the number of staff from 2,076
as at 31 December 2014 to 2,389 as at 31 December 2015,
which caused an increase in salaries, bonuses, subsidies,
other benefits and related social insurance expenses;

In 2015, business taxes and surcharges was RMB81.8 million,
down by RMB15.2 million or 15.7% from 2014. The decrease
was consistent with the decline in taxable income of the credit
guarantee and SME lending businesses;

In 2015, total operating lease expenses in respect of buildings
and depreciation and amortization expenses reached
RMB122.1 million, up by RMB4.5 million or 3.8% compared
with 2014. The increase was closely related to the increase
in business outlets and new institutions due to business
expansion; and

In 2015, total other operating expense was RMB238.0 million,
grew by RMB6.8 million or 2.9% compared with 2014. We
continued to adopt optimization management measures
to control expenses including travelling, selling, IT system
development and operating maintenance expenses incurred
during the course of our rapid business expansion at a
relatively stable level.

© R2015%F - P B THMAREA A

R#451.58 87T - B2014FBMAR
A6 1B BT - EIE11.4%  TEHR
B T A& Hh2014F12H31H 192,076
# 12 N £2015F12[31H 2,389
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SELECTED ITEMS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The following table sets forth the summary extracted from our
consolidated cash flow statement in 2015:

BRSHRASRERIAR

TREFIEMNR2015FNEHRSRER
MFEME

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEFE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(BRREFAI  UARBBEETIIT) 20154 20144 BE)(%)
Net cash used in operating activities REEHMAME ST (793.2) (626.3) 26.6
Net cash used in investing activities BEEHMANRE (166.6) (467.2) (64.3)
Net cash generated from financing activites Z&FEEENES FEE 1,232.6 2,691.5 (54.2)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ & ELIEIIEE 272.8 1,598.0 (82.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the year FUNERESHE 2,531.1 940.5 169.1
Change in exchange rate ffE & B 5) - (7.4) (100.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end

of the year FREWETHE 2,803.9 2,531.1 10.8

Net cash used in operating activities

In 2015, net cash used in operating activities was RMB793.2
million, of which mainly include:

1. Guarantee and consulting fee received from the credit
guarantee business was RMB763.4 million;

2. Interest and handling fee income received from the SME
lending business was RMB1,094.0 million;

3. Loans and advances to customers granted by the SME lending
business was RMB1,358.1 million;

4. Staff costs and related insurance and benefit expenses paid
were RMB342.5 million; and

5. Enterprise income tax, business tax and surcharges paid were
RMB266.9 million.

REFTBHMANR SRR

R20156%F » RPN EEABPHAANRE
FHER/ARKTR2AEET  TERKE:

1 BRMAEREREBWKEERE MK
HEFTARKTIG3.A4BET
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FEBARE1 0406887
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Net cash used in investing activities

In 2015, net cash used in investing activities was RMB166.6 million,
of which mainly include:

1. RMB77.0 million was used to purchase fixed assets and
intangible assets;

2. RMB169.7 million was used to invest in affiliated and
associated enterprises and available-for-sale financial assets;

3. The amount recovered from matured financing products was
RMB146.0 million in total; and

4. RMB66.0 million was used to purchase minority equity
interests.

Net cash generated from financing activities

In 2015, net cash generated from financing activities was
RMB1,232.6 million, of which mainly include:

1. Net cash raised from corporate bond issuance in 2015 was
RMB2,380.8 million.

2. There was a net decrease of RMB1,309.5 million in funds raised
from borrowings and sale of benefit rights of assets under
repurchase agreements from banking financial institutions and
other non-banking financial institutions; and

3. RMB504.8 million of dividend was paid.

RETEHFTANREFE

R2016%F » AN EEZE T AR
THEBER/RARKI66EET TER
E

1 ARBEBRTEE BREESHEB
BETEBAAREIT0OBE T

2 HEEDHE SEDE AJHEES
BEERESNNRESETESEAA
R¥169.78E T

3 -EBHERIBKENSESTEAR
¥146.05 87T &

4 BELBBERBEES N ARE66.08
Bt
BETHELENRSFE

R2015%F » MR EBEIFIEEN
Be FHAaARK1 232688 T2
BIE

1 R2015FRBARMEITRRESES
FEAHET AR K2 380.8F BT

2 BARITECRKE  AREHMEE
AEMERBEETUARBEEERSE
HELHOEXKEEESFRIER
AR®1,309.5B8T &

FCRUAM P ST 3R & ARM504.88

N
=)

FI \
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following table sets forth a summary of our assets and liabilities

as at the dates indicated:

ERS M BARRRITE

TREJHFPRAREHNEENAGH

g8 -

o
As at 31 December
M12A31A8

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(BREAFHN  MARBBEETIIT) 20155 20145 HE) (%)
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents FES 2,803.9 2,531.1 10.8
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES 1,400.1 2,124.5 (34.1)
Trade and other receivables FE Ui N B A E U ke 1,262.2 404.3 212.2
Receivables for factoring business FEUIRIB TR 218.0 - -
Loans and advances to customers BHERRER 7,137.8 5,997.1 19.0
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 106.9 157.8 (32.3)
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEKREE 432.7 386.7 11.9
Intangible assets EVEE 4.2 4.8 (12.5)
Interest in associate RERERE — B 60.0 - -
Interest in joint venture RERERE - A& % 10.0 - -
Goodwill FEES 11.2 - -
Deferred tax assets BEEFEHEE 349.5 315.8 10.7
Repossessed assets KEEE 94.8 16.2 485.2
Finance lease receivable JEmERER 69.7 - -
Total assets BEE 13,961.0 11,938.3 16.9
Liabilities &
Interest-bearing borrowings STEER 300.0 815.6 (63.2)
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreement BEHEECREE 1,388.5 2,182.4 (36.4)
Deferred income REBEFLEES 385.8 410.9 6.1)
Provisions for guarantee losses BREEEES 390.3 501.3 (22.1)
Customer pledged deposits FARES 27.1 27.1 -
Accruals and other payables [T R E o JE 5 5K 1,498.1 276.4 442.0
Current tax liabilities BHMEHARE 143.5 148.2 3.2)
Debt securities issued EES 2,382.2 - -
Total liabilities meE 6,515.5 4,361.9 49.4
Net assets EERE 7,445.5 7,576.4 (1.7)
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Cash and cash equivalents

The following table sets forth our cash and cash equivalents as at
the dates indicated:

ERES

TREVBPARARERNERES ¢

As at 31 December

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REAFTHEIN LARBEETLIIR) 20154 20144 (%)
Cash in hand BEFRS 0.1 0.1 -
Cash in banks RITHFER 2,803.8 2,631.0 10.8
Total a5 2,803.9 2,5631.1 10.8

Cash and cash equivalents include our cash in hand and cash
in banks. As at 31 December 2015, the balance of our cash
and cash equivalents was RMB2,803.9 million, up by RMB272.8
million or 10.8% as compared with RMB2,531.1 million on 31
December 2014. In 2015, we raised capital through our issuance
of corporate bonds, the cooperation with other financial institutions
to sell the benefit rights of loans under repurchase agreements
and issuance of asset securitization products in stock exchanges.
We also adopted flexible cash management strategies to fulfil the
requirements of liquidity management. Both of these factors caused
the balance of cash and cash equivalents to rise.

EMESTEREBRMNEFR S RIRIT
BT e 2015612 A31H - HFIHEKE
S A AREK2,803.95HE T © BK20144F
12A31AKBBEARK2531188 T K
ARH272.8B & T - 1£1810.8% ° 742015
FRMBAFTARES  HEMESH
BESIFHEEREAERERE L OEE
B EEFRIMBTEERHLER
E5Ee ARKMADMBEEZZENES
BIEERE - URERBUERESR K =&
HAFEZFSEKESHRE LA -
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Restricted bank deposits

The following table sets forth restricted bank deposits as at the
dates indicated:

TR FAFIR AR BT ERERE
T HRAAR :

As at 31 December

M12A318

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(BREEFRIN - UARBEETIIR) 2015% 20144 H5)(%)
Security deposit RESD 840.0 1,429.9 (41.3)
Cash deposits or certificates of

deposit for fully secured bank BEEANRITREE

financing guarantees REIR S TR TT N E 560.1 694.6 (19.4)
Total &t 1,400.1 2,124.5 (34.1)

We strived to maintain positive relationships with cooperating
financial institutions, and make security deposits according to a
certain ratio of the actual guarantee amount (between 0 to 20%)
as the basis of carrying out our obligation. As the bank financing
guarantee balance of RMB9.67 billion as at 31 December 2015
fell significantly by 33.6% compared to RMB14.56 billion as at
31 December 2014, our restricted bank deposits fell greatly by
34.1%. Except for the security deposits required for bank financing
guarantee services, the Group holds no liability to pay other
cooperative organization with deposits.

BPM—ERNRMEIESREERTERLT
MEERE  WIEBRERERHEN—T
LE I (5 IRO0ZE20%.2 [H) TFiREE & « 1E
BEHHER - R2015F12 31 BHRTT
BB ERGE AR 7(E T - 82014F
12A318 &8 AR 145680 K18 T f&
33.6%  EMEMOTFLHERRESKIE
TF434.1% - RIBHIRITRIEZRRBH
ZREERITHFEREZERI  AEERHE
MmEERENSIEOEZHNRESR °
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ERETRE

Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables mainly consist of default payment
receivables of our credit guarantee business, various forms of
prepayments and interest receivable. The following table sets forth
our trade and other receivables as at the dates indicated:

P W K% L At FE W SR TR

T APT & B Mo B B At B R IR B B FE H
MEMREREBOEBYCEZONR - 2B
A TR IR R KA E » TREIEK
IR T 7R B R A Ui B B ftb i W 3k IR ) B
A

As at 31 December

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REAFTHEIN UARBEETIIR) 20154 20144 (%)
Default payment receivables FEUIZ A9 3R 1,143.0 734.5 55.6
Trade receivables FEMBRSR 4.8 2.8 71.4
Less: provisions for default
payment receivables B REMGE BN R (652.3) (449.2) 45.2
Subtotal PNEE 495.5 288.1 72.0
Interest receivables FEULF & 115.9 59.8 93.8
Other prepayments, deposits and EMiENFE  #Be R
other receivables H b U Fi1E 650.8 56.4 1,053.9
Subtotal PNEE 766.7 116.2 559.8
Total et 1,262.2 404.3 212.2

In 2015, our guarantee business continued to expand. As
downward pressure on the domestic economy increased and the
credit condition of real economy represented by micro and small
enterprises did not show significant improvement, non-performing
loan and our default payments increased. As at 31 December
2015, the default payment receivables was RMB1,143.0 million,
representing an increase of 55.6% as compared with RMB734.5
million as at 31 December 2014. In 2015, we paid RMB489.5
million on behalf of defaulting customers, remaining the same level
as RMB478.7 million in 2014.

2015  RPIMBEREBFERER X
BB RIS ERENTEE - UG
XARENERBLSELCEERRARMKRLZ
ERENE SR TREREBEMHER - F
BHERMAMEVRESTEEE LA - K2015
F12A318 - EREBHNNRBRERARE
1,143.05 & 7T * %2014 128318 E I
BHONZTBBAREIAHEL  BEE
55.6% ° 2015%F * AP HFTRENEFR
ARESEATAARKIZSEET B
2014F Rt RESBARKB4T8TEE T
BEARFFE -
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In 2015, we continued to reinforce the measures and frequency of risk
management measures targeting guarantee customers, strengthened
management of guarantors before, during and after granting guarantees,
and stepped up the management of counter guarantees and collaterals
and the collection of default payments. In 2015, the accumulated cash
collected from default customers was RMB81.0 million;

As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding balance of default
payment receivables was RMB1,143.0 million, and the
corresponding provisions was RMB652.3 million, overall provision
rate was 57.1%, which fell slightly by 4.1 percentage points
compared with the overall provision rate of 61.2% as at 31
December 2014. This was mainly attributable to the receipt of
sufficient collateral from defaulting customers, which raised the
collateral rate and expedited the disposal process; and

As at 31 December 2015, other prepayments, deposits and other
receivables was RMB650.8 million, up by RMB594.4 million or
1,053.9% as compared with RMB56.4 million as at 31 December
2014. It was mainly attributable to the receivables of RMB500.0
million generated from the transfer of relevant creditor’s right at
the end of 2015.

Receivables for factoring business

The following table sets forth receivables for factoring business as
at the dates indicated:

20155  HfIFHENAH B EREFLH
B\ E IR AMAE - {ERAT - RP - R
BEERMEERANMBRERE  WHRKR
ERY  HERYEBNRERODKT
F - 20155 - HPIRFLENT PRI
Re AR¥81.0B88T

M2015F12A31H  BWENNRHBRES
ARM1,143.08 870 - HENEESHRE
BARBE2IEETL BREHFESXA
57.1% @ B2014F12 A1 H B EBEFE S X
61.2%/NEB T M4AEEDE  EBEHM
MEONEPEWIMERY R - HE T
Kigm o WINREEERAE : &

M20155F12 4318 - EMIE[HKIE - e
Ko H B W SR IE )8R BB 8 AR 6650.88
BT B2014F 12831 He#AE AR K56.4
A& ERARBS4.4FE T HiE
1,053.9% * EZZHMN2015F K + HFIE
AR ERETERREEMARKES00.08
& T REWRIE o

FE W R 3 5K

TREIIFAPIR AR B B H EURIEZSK

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REAFBAIN  UARBEETIIR) 2015%F 20144 HE) (%)
Receivables for factoring business JFE U (R 38 FX 218.0 - -
Total &5t 218.0 - -

As at 31 December 2015, receivables for factoring business for the
factoring service the group provided for the clients was RMB218.0
million.

R2015F12A31H » AEEAHME P EMH
JE IR BR SRAR B AR 7% 25 AE MO B IR 32 TR BR KR
AARE218.08ETT °
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Loans and advances to customers

The following table sets forth our loans and advances to customer
by product as at the dates indicated:

BRERKBR

TR PR B BIRE @S 5 # 3
MER KRR

As at 31 December

MW128318

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(R EBEFAN  UARBEETIITR) 20154 20144 BE)(%)
Micro and small loans INIEE 4,377.5 4.114.3 6.4
Entrusted loans ZEEX 3,092.6 2,171.7 42.4
Gross loans and advances to

customers BHERRBFAEE 7,470.1 6,286.0 18.8
Allowances for impairment losses BERURBEERE (332.3) (288.9) 15.0
Net loans and advances to

customers BHERTRBEE 7,137.8 5,997.1 19.0

Our loans and advances to customers reflect in the total balance
of our loan portfolio (including micro and small loans and entrusted
loans). As at 31 December 2015, loans and advances granted
to customers was RMB7,470.1 million, which increased by
RMB1,184.1 million or 18.8% as compared with RMB6,286.0 million
as at 31 December 2014. This was attributable to our continuous
investment of capital raised from the initial public offering (the “IPO”)
into the micro and small loan business, as well as increase of the
capital base and expansion of the operation network, facilitating
the growth of the micro and small loan business. We also sold the
benefit rights of loans under repurchase agreements with other
financial institutions to gain more capital and serve more small-to-
middle sized customers.

We focus on providing short-term loans to minimize our risk
exposure and, as a result, a majority of our loans and advances to
customers have a maturity of less than one year.

For more details regarding loans, please refer to “Business
Overview” section of this report on pages 39 to 51.

BPMBERERRB2RREEMANEZE
& (BENMNMEZREEZETER WEHE
% o A2015F12A31H » BB HRE
REBRBEEBARET 470158 7T
82014F12A831H # 8 A K #6,286.08
B BRARB1184 158 IR
18.8% ' @B @R EBMFAKIIBEITHA
AESEECHBEREN MERER -
BB INERNEREMBETLEEY 58
INEEREBHMIER - BEIERF - RMARE
Hh e mgEaEARERKZEE H D
BEL U AESIRBHENESZDN
FNERS o

BPISE R MR B E AR D R I B A
BB - BB APIABE D BY 3R E R R B K
MEHIR DR —4F o

BRAESHANFE  F2HARE X5
iRt | SEIE39AES1H ©
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Available-for-sale financial assets

The following table sets forth our available-for-sale financial assets
as at the dates indicated:

IHHESRERE

TREIHMRAT BN HEEESR
BE -

As at 31 December

R12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REBEFAN KARBBETIIR) 20154 20144 ZE)(%)
Non-listed equity investments JE LR REEE 91.1 11.8 672.0
Wealth management product portfolio  I2BfE R4EA 15.8 146.0 (89.2)
Total &% 106.9 157.8 (32.3)

The non-listed equity investments were made by us on non-listed
entities (independent third party companies).

In 2015, we continued to enhance capital management, and
invested a small amount of short-term idle capital in wealth
management products of capital preservation issued by commercial
banks on the prerequisite of fulfilling liquidity requirements to raise
the utilization efficiency of capital.

Interest in associates

The following table sets forth our interest in associates as at the
dates indicated:

FLEMBRERERRMTENIF LT AR
(BIE=FRA) °

20165 - HFFEMABESER - W
RREBERKOAET - KOG EEH
BMEESCRENBERITREITHORAILE
MER MERESERRE -
REKRERE - BEhE

TREHEMARAR BB RHARER
B -Bedx:

As at 31 December

R12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REATHEIN  UARBEETIIR) 2015%F 20144 (%)
Interest in associate RHEIRERE —
B 60.0 - -
Total &t 60.0 - -
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In 2015, the Group signed the agreement of increased capital
contribution for Shandong Financial Assets Trade Center Co. Ltd
(“SFATC”) with 11 institutions in the PRC. The Group injected
RMB60.0 million into SFATC, for an equity share of 30%. Meanwhile,
the vice president of the Group, Mr. Wang Dayong, was elected as
a board member of SFATC. Since our activity exerts great influence
on SFATC, we will incorporate SFATC as our associate based on
equity method.

Interest in joint venture

The following table sets forth our interest in joint venture as at the
dates indicated:

20155 - WM ER AR EE LR T
JIWRESRMEEXZFOBRAT ([
R ) IEHEE - ARFIAARG0.0
BETHERXPLETHE AARES
RO REL OGS R PO EMRE AR
30% @ B AARBEEERTEABL
SEZTASXPLEEERE - HRAH
ME X LEMEMERNTE - KB
HeRPOMEARBE D ERBEREH#TT
%E o

REKRERE - S8h%

TREIIR MR AR B B R R
A-BEeE:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(BRBHEFEBEIN - LARBEEILIITR) 20155 20144 EE)(%)
Interest in joint venture RHRERE —
ABpE 10.0 - -
Total a5 10.0 - -
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In 2015, the Group and another company made capital contribution
of RMB10.0 million respectively to form a joint venture, with each
member holding 50% of equity.

Repossessed assets

The following table sets forth our repossessed assets as at the
dates indicated:

R2015%F « FHMTHEEMA
B10.0BE TR E & A
1550% o

AP RHEAR
A IRRELE %

BEEEE

TREHNBFNRFRERNEEEE -

As at 31 December

R12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETIIR) 20154 20144 H)(%)
House and buildings EE KEEY 94.8 16.2 485.2
Total &t 94.8 16.2 485.2

The repossessed assets were all houses and buildings recovered
from defaulting clients.

Finance lease receivable

The following table sets forth our finance lease receivable as at the
dates indicated:

BEEEZHNARMUERENETFPED
WS E RZEY -

FE s B & AR E K

TREINHFRFARAMNEREBERE

o
A

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(BRBAEFBAIN UARBEELIIR) 20154 20144 HE) (%)
Finance lease receivable Rl ETHER 69.7 - -
Total % 69.7 - -
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As at 31 December 2015, the finance lease receivable generated R20155F12 4318 » AEERMRE FRH
from the finance lease services we provided for our clients were AT E MR TS E A Y FE YL B TH & KRR
RMB69.7 million. RARKE.7TEETT

Interest-bearing borrowings FFEMER

A

As at 31 December 2015, total interest-bearing borrowings were R2015F12 4318 + HMKET BB
RMB300.0 million. The following table sets forth the interest-bearing ABANRMEZ00.08ETT © TREHIFKMAFT
borrowings as at the dates indicated: B EARIET BAE AR

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(BREEFRIN  UARBEETIIR) 20154 20144 H5)(%)
Bank borrowings RITEK
— Guaranteed by independent third — B EZHER
party - 115.0 (100.0)
— Secured by properties of the Group ~ — LAZRE= &1 2 /3K 37 81.0 91.0 (11.0)
Unsecured i 139.0 207.9 (33.1)
Subtotal NeT 220.0 413.9 (46.8)
Other borrowings HMER 80.0 401.7 (80.1)
Total &t 300.0 815.6 (63.2)
84 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The following table sets forth the maturities of the Group’s interest-
bearing borrowings as at the dates indicated:

TRENAEER AR B BE B AR
HA

As at 31 December

M12A318
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETIIR) 2015% 20144 EE) (%)
Within 1 year or on demand BEREEIIFUARN 219.0 619.4 (64.6)
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FE2F AR 81.0 105.2 (23.0)
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEESFLAN - 91.0 (100.0)
300.0 815.6 (63.2)

As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings in the amount of
RMB81.0 million were secured by the Group’s buildings held for
own use. The aggregate carrying value of the secured properties
amounted to RMB198.0 million (2014: RMB205.0 million) as at 31
December 2015.

The currency of interest-bearing borrowings is RMB. The borrowings
were used for replenishment of working capital. The interest-bearing
borrowing with fixed interest rate amounted to RMB200.0 million.

As financing channel sources gradually expanded, our bank interest-
bearing borrowings balance gradually decreased. In 2015, all our
interest-bearing borrowings have been repaid before the actual
due dates, and there are no records of default. On 31 December
2015, the annual interest rate of our outstanding interest-bearing
borrowings ranged between 4.8% and 9.0%.

For more detailed discussion on the interest rate risk of the Group,
please refer to note 35 to the financial statements.

M2015F12831H - @A ARKS1.08
BILMRITERANEE S EE BWEE
AR - 201512 A31H @ MW ELD
REAEAARE198.08 8T (20144 ¢
ARM205.0687T) °

BN EEREABARBER - B5A
BAEHTEEES HYBETHNERERA
ARE200.0BETT °

HARARMERBERRELSHAE - KMIORT
FPEERBRTEE A TE - R20155 - M
FIBEMF BEFYRERIREERRY
AEGE - WA EEE AR - 2015912
AB1H - HMAREE SEROMER X
NR4.8%FE.0% M e

BERAASENREREFENN® B2
BB 75 ¥R HY ES5 -
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Financial assets sold under repurchase agreement

The following table sets forth the financial assets sold under
repurchase agreement as at the dates indicated:

BEHOBESREE

THREJHMRAREHNELEBE SR
BE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REAFTHEIN LARBEETLIIR) 20154 20144 (%)
Benefit rights of loans and
advances to customers BEMER R 1,388.5 2,182.4 (36.4)
Total a5 1,388.5 2,182.4 (36.4)

On 31 December 2015, the balance of our benefit rights of loans
and advances to customers was RMB1,388.5 million, down by
RMB793.9 million or 36.4% as compared with that on 31 December
2014. It was mainly attributed to the bond issuing that reduced the
capital demand from other financing channels.

In 2015, we initiated Hanhua Small Loan Project No.1, financing
directly from market with the bonds issued by micro and small
loan companies located in Chongging that are listed in Shenzhen
Stock Exchange of a sum of RMB0.35 billion. Since we provided
the investors with joint and several liabilities for the principal of their
investment and we will directly purchase inferior product share,
therefore we included the item in “Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements” list.

M2015F12H31H  HMELLEESRE
EX#mEaARE1,388.58& 7T © 82014
F12A31IB TR ARK793.98 &8 T K&
18 /536.4%  TERAEBEBBEITAA
BHHRES RO THAMMERED

20165 - MPIKZEBER — BE/NE
ERBEFHEETENR  BEUREE
W NRERRBERINEZR ZHAETE
EBEHLEMAREILET  EATS
EERARS -@mRHEMEREERKS
BERENENABETERETUARR
MERBESRMEMDE  BHLHME
BHPFBHRRIEZERE [EHEESR
BE|%RE -
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Provisions for guarantee losses

The following table sets forth the provisions for guarantee losses
as at the dates indicated:

TREINRFRAREAREREEEES
HBRAA -

As at 31 December

R12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REEFAEIN KARBBETIIR) 2015% 20144 BE)(%)
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEEES 390.3 501.3 (22.1)
Total BEF 390.3 501.3 (22.1)

On 31 December 2015, our provisions for guarantee losses
was RMB390.3 million, down by RMB111.0 million or 22.1% as
compared with that in 2014. Of which:

1. On 31 December 2015, the size of our guarantee business
was RMB25,982.8 million, which increased by RMB2,416.3
million or 10.3% as compared with RMB23,566.5 million
on 31 Dec 2014. Due to the increasing downward pressure
on domestic economy, in 2014 we actively adjusted our
operating strategies, reducing traditional bank financing
guarantee business with higher-risk, and increasing bonds
issuing guarantee and capital preservation fund guarantee with
lower-risk. The overall risk has been lowered.

On 31 December 2015, the outstanding balance of bond
guarantee business and capital preservation fund guarantee
business was RMB12,440.7 million, which increased by
RMB6,474.3 million or 108.5% from the balance on 31
December 2014. The proportion of bond guarantee business
and capital preservation fund guarantee business to credit
guaranteed balance had increased to 47.9% on 31 December
2015 (As at 31 December 2014: 25.3%).

M2015F12H318 » BB EREBNER
BEEBESHRERAREI0IEET -
B2014F THRARB111.08 8L ' [Fig
22.1% o Hrp :

1+ R20156 128318 @ EREKBRIES
AR ®25082.8F & T © 8201412
HAB1HEREBREKE AR %23,566.5
ABETHEMARBE2416.388 T @
1812 /210.3% ° AR B AAEEIT 1T
EAHMAK - BRFPR2014F EF ALK
ERE - ROBEBRAHRSMHESR
TREERER W EEFEINEERE
HBREMNEFBTER RAESE
RE - eMmEEEERRASRKE -

M2015F12A31H » BHFIEREBHM
RAESEREBGHERABBRARKE
12,440.78 & 7T #2014F12A31H
ERBGEELEIINAREG,47438&E T
EIRE108.5% BB EHFERFEBMN
RAESEREBBRBHEABRES
BER L £ FHE20155F12A31H K
47.9% (2014512 A31H : 25.3%) °
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2. Our aggregate default payment made and default rates for
default customers in 2015 was generally the same as 2014.
However, due to the change in the restructure of guarantee
business products, the provision rate had declined from 2.1%
on 31 December 2014 to 1.5% on 31 December 2015.

Accruals and other payables

The following table sets forth accruals and other payables as at
the dates indicated:

2 HP2015FMEREBRITNESE
MR RE2014FEASFF - H2H
REREBEREBOEE  FEE
REBEEEBXH20145F12H31
B #2.1% T & £20159412A318 1
1.5% o

FESH R EAth FE A X

TERHIIRAFIR AR BB R AR
FREBRAT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(RBEFHEIN KARBBEETIIR) 20154 20144 2H)(%)
Other payables o fth R 3K 1,250.2 59.8 1,990.6
Receipts in advance TEURER X 158.1 154.6 2.3
Accrued staff cost JFE 1<t B T 357 89.8 62.0 44.8
Total A&t 1,498.1 276.4 442.0

On 31 December 2015, our accruals and other payables balance
was RMB1,498.1 million, up by RMB1,221.7 million or 442.0%
as compared with that on 31 December 2014. Of which: on 31
December 2015, other payables was RMB1,250.2 million, which
increased by RMB1,190.4 million as compared with that on 31
December 2014. The increase was mainly attributable to the
following reasons:

e On 14 October 2015, the Group signed a cooperation
framework agreement with Shenyang Municipal Government.
Shenyang Trust Investment Management Co. Ltd (“STIM”)
on behalf of Shenyang Municipal Government cooperated
with two subsidiary of the Group, Liaoning Hanhua Capital
Management Company Limited (“Hanhua Capital”) and
Hanhua Guarantee Company Limited (“Hanhua Guarantee”)
to establish Shenyang Henghua Investment Management
Center (“Henghua Investment”). All parties in this agreement

M2015F12 4318 » B AIERT & E b fE 1+
ez A AR, 498 1A BT 0 820144
12331 AEMARYEEA 221, 7HE T © 1E18
442.0% > H e B201594128318 - &
B R EREE A ARE1,250288 T ' &
2014F12H31H M A R#1,190.45 &
T RFEREARUATIE :

o 2015108148 HMEEB
BN HETEEER R  BHEER
EEBARAR ([BHRER] RE¥E
BB BAEAARWNBAREE
BELEAEEBRAA) ([(RERESL
X)) RBHERRBROERAR ([BE
BRRG)) KBREEREERSD
b (BRER)((BEEES]) 28K
FHEBEAREMEILIT 28T R A
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contributed capital of RMB400.0 million in total for capital
increase and expansion of Hanhua Guarantee. Hanhua Capital
would serve as general partner as well as an executive partner,
in charge of the operation of Henghua Investment. STIM, as
one of the limited co-partners, would inject RMB200.0 million
of fiscal fund as capital, and the return on this fund would be
based on the statutory deposit interest rate set by the People’s
Bank of China (excluded from the distribution of return on
Henghua Investment). Since STIM will gain constant return
from the fund, we thus include the RMB200.0 million capital
from STIM in “accruals and other payables” and consolidated
Henghua Investment into our consolidation scope.

e The RMB610.0 million was mainly attributed to the transfer
on some benefit rights of assets we made. However, we have
guaranteed the investors with certain principal and return, and
therefore we consolidated this business and accounted it as
“accruals and other payables”.

Debts securities issued

The following table sets forth debts securities issued as at the
dates indicated:

REAMBLAREEREREERBR
NANEERER  HPEBEREEANE
RERABRANEHRTEHERARR
BEESHEREFREETIF &S
BEERBRABAZ —NUHERES
ARB2ETHE - UHBARRITE
EERERNE A2 EHMENEBTE
EEROR (T2EEBEETHWED
FEMER) - ARNEGEESEIIRE
Yz - HAIBLBEEESHASH
#E - YHEGEELHENARE2E
TURE [ERT R E B3R 2 E -

e ARBGIBETEIEZRHRMEEK=ZE
EERVAERMNEE  BRMAARK
BERBERARB S AR - B
HEOERBEMAAHER - W& [+
REMENR] ZHE -

FEfS & 35

TREINFFIRAR B EEMESNBRA

As at 31 December

R12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETIIR) 20154 20144 H)(%)
Bonds eI & 25 2,382.2 - -
Total &t 2,382.2 - -

The Group issued bonds respectively in June 2015 and November
2015 for RMB1,500.0 million and RMB900.0 million. The coupon
rates are 6.1% and 5.6%. The raised fund was mainly used for
entrusted loans in subsidiaries, assisting the subsidiaries in debt
repayment to other financial institutions and replenishment of
working capital.

LR 2016F6 A 11 A BBEIT ARG
HEoREEEe ARBISEITLREAREIE
T ZEHMEHRIZ6.1%M5.6%  E&E
ZHRHEMNBARINETER  HEEE
BHSRKBERRBERECEELS -
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Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, our gearing
ratio (representing the total balance of interest-bearing borrowings
and financial assets sold under repurchase agreement and debts
securities issued, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity attributable to shareholders of the Company) (the
“Shareholder(s)”) was 18.7% and 6.8% respectively. The Group
issued bonds respectively in June 2015 and November 2015 for
RMB1.5 billion and RMBO0.9 billion, which caused the increase of
liabilities and gearing ratio.

Capital expenditures

The following table sets forth our capital expenditures for the dates
indicated:

BEERER

M2015%12 A31H k20146128318 * &
EAEX (AEFEER  BEHREoRERE
NENBEHEHRBREREEES  BRUR
NAIMRE ([RR]) EBLEE=RRE) 774
18.7%%6.8% ° 3 P 720155%F6 H K11 A
BRETRAGESFSIEEES ARKS
BRLEEARBOEL BT HEREMNE
EBEZRagm -

EXRX

TRESIRNAR AR PINE AR

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REBEFEAN KARBBEETIIR) 20154 201445 (%)
Capital expenditures = WiNE B 77.0 108.0 (28.7)

Our capital expenditures mainly consist of actual long-term rental
paid in the process of business expansion and setting up new
business outlets, and expenses incurred for the purchase of
information technology equipment and systems and vehicles.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS

Capital commitments
The following table sets forth our capital commitments for

acquisition of fixed assets, mainly property, equipment and vehicles,
as at the dates indicated:

BPMNEARXTEEREBRRREE
WEARBEPERINOERES B
ENEERMERBENRS  URBER
MR

BEXEAERENER
BREE
TERHINFRBEHERMABLKEETEE

(EERME - REIITE) HERAE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(REAEFTHEIN UARBEETLIIR) 20154 20144 HE) (%)
Commitments in respect of
purchase of fixed assets W B B E & EE FTYE Y
— contracted for AIE - BET4 7.8 9.7 (19.6)
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Our capital commitments as at 31 December 2015 were mainly
related to new information technology systems purchased during
business expansion. After considering our future business growth
and expansion of business outlets, we may incur additional capital
commitments in order to support business expansion.

Operating lease commitments

We lease a proportion of our office properties from third party
guarantors under non-cancellable operating leases. The following
table sets forth our future minimum lease payments payable under
non-cancellable operating leases as at the dates indicated:

KPR 2015F12A3IE M E KEEEE
AEBRRBERHBEGERINESRS
o KERBMARNEBERRE XM
BRIET - RN REE A BEIN A AR
AT S EBIER -

REHERE
BARBEAATREEEHEERSE =T ER
AMERDBHIEDE - TREIIRFATR
B EITR PR IB T AT BGH & 2 THE R #O R
KRS R

As at 31 December

M12A31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(BRZEFAIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20154 20144 BE)(%)
Due within one year

(including one year) —FLR (BE—F) 77.8 82.9 6.2)
Due after one year but within —FIEE=ZFLAR

three years (including three years) (BHE=F) 118.0 130.6 (9.6)
Due after three years =FLAE 9.8 54.9 (82.1)
Total &5t 205.6 268.4 (23.4)

On 31 December 2015, our operating lease commitments were
mainly related to our new established business outlets in the
process of business expansion. Its substantial growth was mainly
attributable to our expansion of business and outlets.

HAFIR2015F12 AT B L ERET
ZAXBERABRIMZEENLEEH -
HARBEBREZHEBKRE - LEEHD
BB -
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Intra-group liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, we guaranteed the following liabilities of
certain members of the Group:

1. an aggregate of RMB120.0 million of borrowings by our micro
and small loan subsidiaries;

2. an aggregate of RMB99.0 million of borrowings by our asset
management subsidiaries; and

3. an aggregate of RMB1,239.6 million of selling the benefit rights
of loans under repurchase agreements by our micro and small
loan and asset management subsidiaries.

In 2015, we issued asset securitization products in the amount of
RMB350.0 million on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange through our
micro and small loan company located in Chongging, including
senior asset securitization of RMB332.5 million, and subordinated
asset securitization of RMB17.5 million, of which, the subordinated
asset securitization are held by our micro and small loan company
(the original issuer), and Hanhua Financial provides guarantee for
the holder of the senior asset securitization.

As at 31 December 2015, none of the liabilities of our credit
guarantee subsidiaries were guaranteed by other entities within
the Group.

As the credit guarantee subsidiaries did not raise any capital from
other legal entities within the Group and since each of these credit
guarantee subsidiaries is a limited liability company under the PRC
laws, the Company is only liable for a credit guarantee subsidiary’s
debts to the extent of our equity contribution. Accordingly, our
obligations under outstanding guarantees will not adversely affect
the business and operations of other entities within the Group
should any of our credit guarantee subsidiaries fail to meet their
contingent liabilities under outstanding guarantees.

SERARERE

R2015F12HA31H » AEBETKE QA
AT EBEREMPIER :

1 BANHERHBRRNERERA
R#¥120.0B88 T :

2 HMEEEBEMBLRRMNMERERA
R¥99.088T: &

3 RPN HERMBAR EEEEHK
BARMEMNERKEESTE HEER
S ARYA1,230.6B8TT °

R2016%F - RFVBRBMREEN/ NMIUER
RAERYBEFRGAETEERHLE
mAREISET  BRELREEIRHE
HFREARMEZ325ETT » RMEEXFE
FRBARBOATSEIL - Hp » KREE
PR EFBRBEMANNMAERRA] (RAEEL
N R AR BESELSBEREEX
FSESFHAARBEREME -

MR2015%12 /8318 @ HFHEBIERHEE
ANANEBERERAEENEMERME
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MRERERNBARRAANASRERNEM
FREEBATMNES - MEAEEBER
MEARERTFEARBATHNEREER
A Bt ARREH -KERERMBELQ
AIMEBAEEE (UKRMORELER
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As at 31 December 2015, our credit guarantee subsidiaries provided
guarantee liabilities at a balance of RMB972.8 million (31 December
2014: RMB1,507.0 million) for the micro and small loans granted
by our micro and small loan subsidiaries. In our consolidated
financial statements, we accounted such loans granted by micro
and small loan subsidiaries as loans and advances to customers
in order to avoid double counting and exaggerating the overall
amount of credit risk taken by the Group, and then did not include
the above amounts into the calculation of the credit guarantee
balance of the Group. In case of liquidation and bankruptcy of credit
guarantee subsidiaries, such loan will no longer be guaranteed
and those subsidiaries will bear much higher potential credit risks.
As the amount for each case guaranteed by our credit guarantee
subsidiaries is relatively small and dispersed, we believe that it
would not materially affect the business and operations of our other
subsidiaries if any of these micro and small loans are no longer be
guaranteed by our credit guarantee subsidiaries.

Off-balance sheet arrangements

The following table sets forth the outstanding guarantee liabilities
of our credit guarantee subsidiaries:

20155128318 - MW ERERWE
NEl BB NEE R B R A
WERRHOERETHRBEAARKIT2.8
A& T (20145128318 « AR¥1,507.0
BET) ERMOEHMBHRERFT - M
BN E KB AR ERNZE)EE
FREERERRBAREEY - ABREE
HETSABRMOERERRARAESSE
WK e FEMARNEE S AERBER
FTAR o WA RBEERERNB A RS BNE
B ZEEFETHERER  mEMO/NE
BRWEARBESEARNBEEHARR
HAREIIERERHEARERNEREE
BEPHE) - RS E - BRMRBAMEMR
ZENBEFTHERMNEARRMEBA
AR BTEHEMNBARNESRE
BEREBATE o

EEREBERIZH

TRIVREAPUE BE RN B AR A E
REEHEBER

As at 31 December

M12A31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014 (%) Change
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 2015%F 20144 EE) (%)
Bank financing guarantees RITREER 9,674.7 14,561.4 (33.6)
Bond guarantees BEEER 5,065.0 1,379.7 267.1
Other non-bank financing guarantees ~ H b JER1TRL B ER 2,044.3 2,176.2 6.1)
Financing guarantee subtotal AEER D 16,784.0 18,117.3 (7.4)
Non-financing guarantees IERE ER 9,198.8 5,449.2 68.8
— Guarantee of capital

preservation funds —RBRRESER 7,375.7 4,586.7 60.8
Guaranteed balance total TEIREBRFESE 25,982.8 23,566.5 10.3
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CAPITAL FRAMEWORK, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Capital framework

As at 31 December 2015, the share capital of the Group was
RMB4,600.0 million, comprised of 3,430,000,000 domestic shares
(the “Domestic Share(s)”) and 1,170,000,000 H shares (the “H
Share(s)”), with the face value per share of RMB1.00.

For more information about capital management policy, please refer
to note 32 to the financial statements.

Liquidity and capital resources

We have funded our working capital and other capital requirements
primarily by equity contribution from shareholders, bank borrowings,
cash flows generated from operations and net proceeds from the
IPO. Our liquidity and capital requirements are primarily related to
granting micro and small loans and entrusted loans, making default
payments, maintaining security deposits at banks and other working
capital requirements.

The Group issued bonds respectively in June 2015 and November
2015 for RMB1,500.0 million and RMB900.0 million. The coupon
rates are 6.1% and 5.6%. The raised fund was mainly used for
entrusted loans in subsidiaries, assisting the subsidiaries in debt
repayment to other financial institutions, and replenishment of
working capital.

As at 31 December 2015, our cash and cash equivalents were
RMB2,803.9 million. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts business transactions principally in RMB and
is therefore not exposed to material foreign exchange risks.

BEXREE RBESRYBER

BEXRE
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Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2015, our total outstanding borrowings
amounted to RMB2,682.2 million, among which the borrowings
with fixed interest rate amounted to RMB2,582.2 million.

Major Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company invested
3 subsidiaries, mainly involving in the areas at consulting, capital
management, internet finance, with the aggregate investment
amount of RMB0.07 billion. The Company increased capital to 3
subsidiaries with the aggregate amount of RMBO0.52 billion.

Major acquisition and disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company undertook
four acquisitions. We completed the acquisition of Zhongli Insurance
Sales Limited* (# FJ{RE2 38 S B PR A 7)) through our wholly owned
subsidiary Hanhua Internet Finance Service (Shenzhen) Limited*
(WEGEHRBESRRS OFRJ) BR2AF]), upon the completion of
acquisition, the Company holds 95% of the equity interests in the
acquiree. We acquired the equity interests in our wholly owned
subsidiary Changchun Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd.* (K& B %
/NEBEF A PR A ) through our wholly owned subsidiary Chongaing
Hanhua Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (EEBEEEEEAR A
7)), upon the completion of acquisition, the Company holds 100%
of the equity interests in the acquiree. We acquired the equity
interests in Beijing Beiniu Technology Co., Ltd* (At B4R AR
A 7A]) through our wholly owned subsidiary Beijing Hanhua Network
Technology Co., Ltd.,* (LR BEMELRFZAERAF), upon the
completion of acquisition, the Company holds 100% of the equity
interests in the acquiree. And we made the capital contribution to
Shandong Financial Assets Exchange Co., Ltd.* (LR & EE
ZH1y), upon the completion of capital contribution,the Company
holds 30% of the equity interests in the acquiree.

The Company confirms that the aforementioned acquisitions do
not constitute a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, all the applicable percentage ratios for establishment
of the aforementioned acquisitions are less than 5% under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules.

Save for disclosed above, there were no other material acquisitions
and disposals of the Group, its associates or joint ventures for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

*

For identification purpose only

&%
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Pledge of assets

The Group’s buildings with a balance of RMB198.0 million as at 31
December 2015, are pledged as collateral under loan agreements
with commercial banks.

Contingent liabilities

Except for the off-balance sheet arrangements disclosed on page
93, the Group had no other significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2015.

PROSPECTS

The year 2015 is critical for the Company’s transformation and
upgrading. With the anticipation of the impact on inclusive finance
industry from “new normal” economy, the Company adjusted the
layout in advance and pushed forward transformation actively, thus
defined the three strategies, namely platform finance, partnership
finance and internet finance. The Company set up business
sector of leasing. The Company also made capital contribution to
Shandong Financial Assets Exchange, jointly established a property
insurance company, and moved toward the comprehensive and
mainstream finance gradually. The Company grew against the
trend of economic downturn and continued to consolidate and
improve its industry position as a national leading comprehensive
and inclusive finance group.

In 2016 and the next two to three years, the Company will continue
to promote the third upgrade of inclusive finance, and strive to build
up new platforms such as financial leasing and assets management
gradually, so as to move toward the age of full license and grasp
the initiative in the period of “13th Five Year Plan”, which is a golden
era for Chinese inclusive finance development.
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Benefiting from the changes in the industrial status (moving
forward the mainstream finance) resulting from the new license,
the Company will achieve overall improvements in operating model
and profit model, that is the transformation from product-oriented
to customer-oriented, from providing single financial products to
customized financial services, from single spread income model to
integrated high-yield model, from single funds operation to closed-
loop operation of both funds and assets, and from self-owned funds
and bank channels to diversified channels of funds allocation.

In 2016, on the sound basis in 2015, the Company will continue to
integrate the platform resources, improve the cooperation quality
and strengthen cooperation patterns on different platforms, such
as cooperation between government and financial institutions,
cooperation between financial institutions and cooperation between
industry and financial institutions to build an inclusive finance
ecosystem. The strategic cooperative agreement entered into
between Liaoning and Shenyang will be fully implemented, so
as to build the “prototype of Liaoning” that supports “massive
entrepreneurship and innovation by all”, and to achieve our essential
layout in northeast area. The Company will continue to deepen the
cooperation with insurance institutions and explore the new model
of inclusive finance supported with insurance funds.

In 2016, the Company will fully penetrate into the mainstream
finance, and enrich the financial industry and build a diversified
inclusive financial service group by applying new financial licenses,
equity investment and mergers and acquisitions.

In 2016, the Company will continue to work on the return of A share
market, and broaden a more extensive financing channel in markets
through capital management.
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In 2016, the Company will complete the overall integration and
optimization of business. The Company will energetically promote
internet finance and provide personal customers with loans and
investment products service. Small and micro loans are expected
to see an explosive growth by upgrading the credit system and
“Hanhua Tong”, which is a service platform for small loans and fully
improving service range and quality for small and micro customers.
The Company will change the profit model and improve profit
margin by implementing the partnering financial concept of “mutual
growing with customers”, and providing medium-small corporate
customers with custom-made comprehensive financing plan, such
as equity investments, guarantee, factoring and leasing.

The Company plans to double the capital size and the net assets
amount, and achieve a forward-leaping development and build itself
to be a Chinese example in inclusive finance in the world within 5
years.
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the members of the Board are as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang' (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Dayong (Vice Chairman)
(Appointed on 13 March 2016)

Mr. Cui Weilan?
Mr. Lin Feng
(Appointed on 13 March 2013,
resigned on 17 March 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua'
Mr. Duan Xiaohua?®
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang'
Ms. Liu Tingrong'
Ms. Wang Fangfei'
Mr. Feng Yongxiang'
Mr. Zhou Xinyu
(Appointed on 17 June 20183,
retired on 12 March 2016)
Mr. Liu Bolin®

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Qinxian’

Mr. Deng Zhaoyu'
Mr. Qian Shizheng?®
Mr. Ng Leung Sing?®
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin?®
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Notes:

1 Appointed on 13 March 2013 initially and then appointed/re-elected as
a member of the second session of the Board at the first extraordinary
general meeting in 2016 of the Company held on 3 March 2016. The
appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March 2016.

2 Appointed on 27 May 2015 initially and then appointed/re-elected as
a member of the second session of the Board at the first extraordinary
general meeting in 2016 of the Company held on 3 March 2016. The
appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March 2016.

3 Appointed on 17 June 2013 initially and then appointed/re-elected as
a member of the second session of the Board at the first extraordinary
general meeting in 2016 of the Company held on 3 March 2016. The
appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March 2016.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 51, has been the chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and the president of the Company
since March 2013. He joined the Group in August 2004. He has
been the chairman of the board of directors and the president of
Hanhua Guarantee Corporation Limited since August 2009. He
served as the president of Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd. from August
2004 to August 2009.

Mr. Zhang has been working in the Group since the Company’s
establishment in 2004. Mr. Zhang plays a pivotal role in the senior
management team. He is highly devoted to the establishment and
management of the Company’s business operations, commercial
decisions and strategic plan of the development of the Group. The
Company believes it is in the best interest of the Group to have him
act as the chairman of the Board and the president of the Company
at the same time.
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Mr. Zhang has been the chairman of the board of supervisors of
Loncin Motor Co. Ltd. since October 2010. He also held various
positions in China Merchants Bank, a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600036)
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 03968), from
November 1999 to August 2004, including the deputy general
manager of the risk management department of Chongging Branch
and the general manager of the bank department. He served as the
deputy general manager of the credit investigation department of
Chongaging Branch of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited from
October 1998 to October 1999, he also served in various positions
in Liaoning Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 601398) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 01398), from August 1988 to September 1998.

Mr. Zhang obtained his college diploma in finance from Shenyang
Television University (&f5mEKEERAS) in July 1992 and his
EMBA degree from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in September 2011. He was accredited as a PRC lawyer by Ministry
of Justice of the PRC in July 1996 and obtained the intermediate
level of financial qualification from Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the People’s Republic of China in October 1997.

Mr. Zhang has been the vice president of Chongging SME Credit
Guarantee Association (88 i H /M2 EAERHE) since 2005,
he acted as a member of the third committee of CPPCC of
Chongging from December 2007 to January 2013, he has been the
vice president of Chongging New Class Professional Union (& T #T
) and the expert in auditing and consulting of China Association
of Small and Medium Enterprises (F BIF /M ¥ 155®) since 2008. He
was elected as the tenth session member of Economy Committee
of China Federation of Industry & Commerce (£ & LiE#&ELZ B
) in November 2010. He has been the vice chairman of the first
council of China Micro-Credit Institution Association (1 B/ \Z8{2 &
HERERS [E2) since 2011 and a member of the executive committee
of Chongging Industrial and Commercial Union (£ ™ T & Ef) since
2012. He has been the vice chairman of China Financial Guarantee
Association (B EE R E) since January 2013, a member
of fourth committee of CPPCC of Chongging since 2013 and has
been the working advisor and intelligence expert of the People’s
Government of Shenyang City of the PRC since October 2015.
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Mr. Zhang was honored successively as the Leader for the SME
Credit Guarantee Companies in China (Ff B e/ b 2 {2 AR )
in 2009, “New Class-first Top Professional Talent of Chongging” (&7
fEEeEE H/ET1EH ) in 2010, The Third Commendation Meeting
of Excellent Constructors to Socialism with Chinese Characteristics
of Chongaing City (EEM# = BEBFFRFEH S ERFEEZRH)
in 2011, the “Person of the Year in Micro-credit Industry of China”
(PE/NEEEEEAY) in 2011, one of the “Top Ten Economic
Figures in Chongqing” (BT + A FE AL A ) in 2008 and 2011,
one of the “Top Ten Business People in Chongaing” (1 XJ&17&), one
of the 2015 Annual Brand Entrepreneur (20155 € 2 #5) and
one of the 2015 Annual Chinese Excellent Inclusive Financier (2015

FETHEEBREESHR).

Mr. Zhang resigned as the president of the Company on 28 March
2016, and remains as the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director with effective from 28 March 2016.

Mr. Zhang is one of our controlling shareholders.

Mr. Wang Dayong, aged 49, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013 and has been the vice-chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Company since March
2016. Mr. Wang joined the Group in October 2006 and held various
positions, including chief credit marketing officer and vice president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang held various positions in
China Securities Co., Ltd. from September 1998, including the
general manager of innovation business department of investment
banking headquarters. Prior to that, he had worked at the Planning
Department of Liaoning Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited from July 1988 to September 1998. Mr. Wang
served as the director of Shandong Financial Assets Exchange Co.,
Ltd. (LR EREER S FTERAF]) since September 2015.

Mr. Wang obtained his master’s degree in international finance from
the department of international economics of Liaoning University
in July 1998 and EMBA degree jointly held by National Taiwan
University and Fudan University in 2015. He is also accredited
as a senior economist by the Appraisal and Approval Committee
for Professional & Technical Competence of the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China.
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Mr. Cui Weilan, aged 44, has been the executive president of the
Company since March 2015, an executive Director of the Company
since May 2015 and the president of the Company since March
2016. Mr. Cui joined the Group in June 2006 and served in various
positions, including vice president, chief legal officer and secretary
of the board of directors. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cui had
been a practicing solicitor of Hebei Jimin Law Firm (A4t % R 20
FFEFT) from 1999 to 2006 and had worked for Hebei Management
Cadre College of Political Science and Law (] b % & 12 & 2R 22 [57)
(currently known as Hebei Professional College of Political Science
and Law (A b BUER 3 26t)) from July 1995 to March 2007.

Mr. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from the department
of political of Southwest Normal University (currently known as
Southwest University (FaFEI A E2)) in June 1995. He is also accredited
as a practicing solicitor by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC and
as an associate professor in law by Hebei Title Reform Leadership
Committee Bureau (AbEETEMEEE/\E). He completed the
postgraduate program in economic law from Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences in September 2003 and obtained his MBA degree
from China Europe International Business School (AP B BB T g 22
B) in September 2012.

Mr. Lin Feng, aged 43, has been the vice president and the
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined
the Group in September 2004 and served in various positions,
including the chief operating officer, director, vice president and
executive president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked for Chongging Branch
of China Merchants Bank from November 1998 to September
2004 and served as the deputy manager of the fund planning
department from February 2004. He worked in the Yubei sub-
branch of Chongging Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China from July 19983 to November 1998. He is currently the legal
representative of Chongqing Association of Micro-credit companies
(EERTNEERRFHE).
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Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor’s degree in statistics from Chongging
Business College (EEZ263) (currently known as Chongging
Technology and Business University (& L AZ)) in July 1993
and MBA degree from Chongqging University in June 2006. He
was accredited as an intermediate statistician by National Bureau
of Statistics of China in October 2002. He was also qualified as a
security professional by the Securities Association of China (FR
BHEWE) in February 2004.

Mr. Lin resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 17
March 2015.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua, aged 52, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013.

Mr. Tu has been the chairman of the board of directors of Loncin
Holdings previously, in the period from December 2002 to June
2010 and since February 2013. He has been the director of Loncin
Motor Co., Ltd. (BZBAE) & H BB A F]) since October 2010,
a company whose shares have been listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 603766) since August 2012.

Mr. Tu served as the non-executive director of Chongging Rural
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3618), from June
2008 to December 2011. He served as the chairman of the board
of directors of Locin Group since February 1996 and has served as
an executive director and chairman of the board of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited since April 2015.

Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th and the 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the Second and Third
Chongaing Municipal People’s Congress and the vice president
of Chongging West China Education Promotion Association (&
TS B R #2). He currently serves as the deputy to the Fourth
Chongaing Municipal People’s Congress.

Mr. Tu is the cousin of Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (one of our non-executive
Directors). Mr. Tu is one of our controlling shareholders.
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Mr. Duan Xiaohua, aged 41, joined the Group in June 2013 as a
non-executive Director of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Duan served as the chief financial
officer of Loncin Holdings from February 2012 to October 2012,
the chief financial officer and director of Shanghai Fenghwa Group
Co., (L/B&% (£H) RHAEMRAF]), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600615)
since October 2012.

Mr. Duan worked for Chengdu Fudi Property Co., Ltd. (5 #B1Ei
BEAMRAF]) from March 2008 to March 2012 and held various
positions, including financial manager, vice financial president and
financial president. From June 2007 to February 2008, he worked
for Hutchison Whampoa Property (Xi'an) Co., Ltd. (Fl&C & i 2=

(%) ARAF]). He also worked for Chongaing Taiji Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd (EEAREEBRAE]) from July 1998 to May
2007, a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600129). Mr. Duan has served as a non-
executive Director of USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. (AIE#%
BEEMR M BRAR) since April 2014, and has served as a non-
executive Director of Chongqging Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
since August 2014.

Mr. Duan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 1998 and
obtained his master’s degree in business administration from
Chongaing University in 2006. Mr. Duan was accredited as an
accountant and a certified internal auditor.

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, aged 37, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in August
2009 and has been a director of Hanhua Guarantee since then with
a non-executive role.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu served as the general manager
of Chongging Maohua Technology Co., Ltd. (BEESERTARA
7)) from October 2003 to August 2009.
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Ms. Liu obtained her bachelor’'s degree in economics from Saint
Petersburg State Polytechnical University in Russia in December
2003. Ms. Liu Jiaoyang is the cousin of Mr. Tu (one of our non-
executive Directors).

Ms. Liu Tingrong, aged 41, has been a non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in March
2011 and served as a director of Hanhua Guarantee with a non-
executive role.

Ms. Liu has been working for Chongging Taizheng Mining Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (EEREREERFAZER2AE]) since
September 1996 and become the assistant to the chairman of
board of directors since November 2007.

Ms. Wang Fangfei, aged 29, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in November
2010 and held various positions, including the project manager and
chief reviewing managers of business management section and
general management section of Hanhua Guarantee.

Ms. Wang holds 55% of the equity interests of Chongging Jiulong
Investment Co., Ltd. (EENERE BB AR, one of the minority
shareholders of the Company, and has also been the legal
representative of Chongqging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd. since
April 2011,

Ms. Wang obtained her master’s degree from Sheffield Hallam
University in October 2009, majoring in international business and
management. She obtained her junior college degree in business
administration from Chongqging University in July 2006.

Mr. Feng Yongxiang, aged 45, has been a non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in August
2009 and has been a director of Hanhua Guarantee since then with
a non-executive role.
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Feng has been the general manager
of Chongaing Puzhao Hengyi Investment Co., Ltd. (EE & JKEz
BB AT, one of the minority shareholders of our Company,
since February 2010. He worked for Chongqging Yayu Business
and Commerce Development Co., Ltd. (EEHIEHZEE Q7)) as
a deputy general manager from May 2005 to January 2010. He
worked as the senior relationship manager of the Chongging branch
of China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., a company whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600016)
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01988), from July
2003 to May 2005. He served as the senior relationship manager of
the Chongging branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co.,
Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600000), from March 2000 to July 2003.
He worked for Yangjiaping Sub-branch of China Construction Bank
Corporation, a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601939) and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 0939), from July 1991 to February 2000.

Mr. Zhou Xinyu, aged 44, joined the Group in June 2013 as a
non-executive Director of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has been the assistant to
general manager of Hua Rong Securities Company Limited (ZE &l :&
H AP AR A 7)) since January 2013. From June 2008 to November
2012, he worked at Guosen Securities Co., Ltd. (B{ZEHF DGR
72 a@]). From January 2008 to May 2008, he served as the deputy
general manager of the capital market department of Hua Rong
Securities Company Limited (FEFFEFRHOERAF). He also
previously served as the senior deputy manager of the investment
department of China Huarong Asset Management Corporation (1
Bl R E FEE IR A A)).

Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering mechanics
from Xi’an Jiaotong University in July 1993 and obtained his
master’s degree in economics (majoring in finance) from Central
University of Finance and Economics in March 2001. He obtained
his doctorate degree in economics (majoring in domestic economy)
from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in July 2006. Mr. Zhou
obtained the qualification of senior economist from the senior
assessment committee of China Huarong Asset Management
Corporation in December 2006.
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Mr. Zhou retired as a non-executive Director of the Company on
12 March 2016.

Mr. Liu Bolin, aged 30, joined the Group in June 2013 as a non-
executive Director of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Liu has been the general manager of Sichuan Hongrun Trading Co.,
Ltd. (181150 EEE B R AR, one of the minority shareholders of
the Company, since March 2013.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from Shenzhen University in June 2006 and obtained his master’s
degree in accounting from the State University of New York at
Binghamton in December 2008.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Qinxian, aged 75, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in
August 2009 and has been an independent non-executive director
of Hanhua Guarantee since then.

Mr. Bai has served in various domestic committees and societies,
including the member of the applied economics discipline appraisal
group of the Fourth and Fifth Session of Academic Degree
Commission of the State Council, the permanent member of
China Society for Finance and Banking (FEI & g2 S), and the
permanent member of China International Finance Society (#E
Bl & BhE ). Mr. Bai is currently the professor and the doctoral
supervisor in finance and policy finance of Liaoning University and
the director of the International Finance Institute of the University
(REXEBEE SR

Mr. Bai was accredited as an academic leader of applied economics
at the first level and an expert who is eligible to enjoy the special
allowance of the State Council.
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Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, aged 69, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2009 and has been an independent non-executive
director of Hanhua Guarantee since then.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Deng held various positions at China
People’s Insurance Holding Company (4 B A fR12f% 2 &) (currently
known as the People’s Insurance (Group) of China Limited), a
company whose shares are listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 01339), including the deputy general manager during
the period from December 2001 to August 2006. Mr. Deng also
served as the chairman of the board of supervisors of PICC
Property and Casualty Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 02328), from July
2003 to October 20086.

Mr. Qian Shizheng, aged 63, joined the Group in June 2013
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Qian had served as the deputy director
of the Accounting Department of Fudan University. He worked
at Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 363), from
January 1998 to April 2012 and held various positions, including
deputy chief executive officer and executive director. He also served
as the vice-chairman of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. From July
2007 to July 2010 and from May 2011 to March 2013, the shares
of which are listed on both the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600837) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
6837), and the director of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank and
Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 0563).
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He is an independent non-executive director of Lonking Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange stock code: 3339), Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science
& Technology Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000157) and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1157), and Shanghai Yaohua
Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600819). He has been
an independent non-executive director of Jingrui Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1862) since October 2013, an independent director of
Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co., Ltd and an independent director
of Shanghai Lujiazui Finance & Trade Zone Development Co., Ltd.

Mr. Qian obtained his bachelor’s degree in accountancy from
Shanghai Institute of Finance and Economics (currently known as
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics) in July 1983 and
doctor’s degree in management science and engineering from
Fudan University in July 2001.

Mr. Ng Leung Sing, aged 66, joined the Group in June 2013 as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Ng is currently a director of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Trustees
Limited, the vice chairman of the Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited, the director of the BOCHK Charitable Foundation and the
director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0066), an independent non-executive
director of Smartone Telecommunications Holdings Limited whose
shares are listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
00315) and Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
2689).
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Mr. Ng is currently a member to various boards and committees,
including the Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th, 11th and 12th National
People’s Congress of the PRC, the member of the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the
chairperson of the Banking Industry Training Advisory Committee of
the Education Bureau, the honorary president of Chinese Bankers
Club, Hong Kong, the honorary advisor of the Hong Kong Chi Tung
Association Ltd.

Mr. Yuan Xiaobin, aged 46, joined the Group in June 2013 as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Yuan has been a member of the standing committee of
Chongaging People’s Congress since January 2013. He has also
been the vice president of Chongging Friendship Association for
Non-Party Intellectuals since September 2012, the vice chairman
of the Revolutionary Committee of Chongging Municipal since July
2012, and the arbitrator of the China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission since May 2011.

Mr. Yuan had been an independent director of Jinke Property Group
Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000656), and has become the special
supervisor of Chongqging People’s Government since May 2008.
He also has been a part-time professor at Southwest University
of Politics and Law since December 2006 and the director of
Zhonghao Law Firm since 1997.

Mr. Yuan had also been a Legislative Assessment Expert from
June 2008 to January 2013, a consultant of the Decision Advisory
Committee of Chongqging People’s Government from December
2008 to December 2010.

Mr. Yuan holds the honorary title of the “Outstanding Specialists
with Remarkable Contributions to Chongging City” awarded
by the Chongging Municipal Party Committee and Chongqging
People’s Government in September 2009, “Top Ten Outstanding
Professionals” awarded by the United Work Front Department in
February 2010, “National Outstanding Lawyer” awarded by the
Chinese Lawyer’s Association in December 2011 and “Chongqging
Top Ten Innovative Person of Year 2011” in February 2012.
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Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from Southwest
College of Politics and Law (currently known as Southwest
University of Politics and Law) in June 1991, and his EMBA degree
from Chongging University in June 2013. Mr. Yuan was accredited
as a Class A lawyer by Chongging Judicial Bureau in January 2010.

SUPERVISORS

As at the date of this report, the members of the board of
supervisors (the “supervisor(s)”’) (the “Board of Supervisors”)
are as follows:

Mr. Li Ruping* (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Ms. Qin Yong (Appointed on 13 March 2016)
Mr. Zhou Daoxue
(Appointed on 13 March 2013,
retired on 12 March 2016)
Mr. Chen Zhonghua®

Notes:

4 Appointed on 13 March 2013 initially and then appointed/re-elected
as a member of the second session of the Board of Supervisors at the
first extraordinary general meeting in 2016 of the Company held on
3 March 2016. The appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March
2016.

5 Appointed on 13 March 2013 initially and then appointed/re-elected
as a member of the second session of the Board of Supervisors at the
meeting of employee representatives of the Company held on 2 March
2016. The appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March 2016.

Mr. Li Ruping, aged 59, has been the chairman of Board of
Supervisors of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2004 and served in various positions, including
vice president, president and director. He has been the chairman of
the Board of Supervisors of Hanhua Guarantee since August 2009.
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Prior to that, Mr. Li had been holding various positions in Loncin
Group and its subsidiaries from October 1998 to August 2004,
including the chief accountant of Loncin Holdings and the director
of finance department of Chongqging Loncin Industry (Group) Co.,
Ltd (EEREZ T (£E) BRAF]) and Chongging Construction
Loncin Motorcycle Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (EEEREEEHE
SLERR A F).

Mr. Li obtained his junior college diploma in industrial accountancy
) EHEERAZ) in July

1986. Mr. Li is accredited as a senior accountant by Chongging

from Sichuan Radio and TV University (P
Municipal People’s Government.

Ms. Qin Yong, aged 45, has been a supervisor of the Company
since March 2016. She joined the Group in September 2004. She
is the deputy general manager of the finance department of the
Group and the manager of the finance department of Chongqging
Huitai Investment Co., Ltd.

Prior to that, Ms. Qin was the financial director of the finance office
of Sichuan Jianghua Machinery Plant (7911, T Z=# 22 /%) from August

1991 to August 2004.

Ms. Qin graduated from Sichuan Institute of Light Industry (F9)I]
(L TEP7) in July 1991, majoring in finance management. She
obtained the Certificate of National Accountants in March 1999.

Mr. Zhou Daoxue, aged 50, has been a supervisor of the
Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in August 2009
as a supervisor of Hanhua Guarantee.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has been the chairman of the
board of directors of Chongaqing Yujiang Die-casting Co., Ltd (&
BERMIREERA
president of Chongqing Yujiang Die-casting Plant (22 & a1 T EE$5 %)
from December 1991 to November 1999.

A]) since December 1999. Mr. Zhou was the

Mr. Zhou retired as a supervisor of the Company on 12 March 2016.
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Mr. Chen Zhonghua, aged 41, has been a supervisor of the
Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in January 2005
and held various positions, including the deputy general manager
of the strategy development department and general manager of
the information and technology department. In addition, he has
been a supervisor of Hanhua Guarantee since August 2009, and
the standing deputy general manager of Sichuan Micro-credit and
deputy general manager of Sichuan Hanhua since January 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked for the Chongqging
Wanzhou branch of Bank of China as a risk assessment officer of
risk management department.

Mr. Chen obtained his junior college degree in finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (787 B 4%
AE) in June 1995. He graduated from Chongging Technology
and Business University (B8 T AZ) in June 2005, majoring in
accounting.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, the members of senior management
are as follows:

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Wang Dayong

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Cui Weilan

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Yan Dong

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Luo Xiaobo

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Ms. Li Jing

(Appointed on 27 August 2014)
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Mr. Wang Feng

(Appointed on 10 July 2015)
Mr. Yuan Guoli

(Appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Ren Weidong

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Lin Ting

(Appointed on 1 July 2013)

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 51,
biography are set out in page 100 of this report.

details about Mr. Zhang’s

Mr. Wang Dayong, aged 49, details about Mr. Wang Dayong’s
biography are set out in page 102 of this report.

Mr. Cui Weilan, aged 44, details about Mr. Cui’s biography are set
out in page 103 of this report.

Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan, aged 41, has been the vice president of
the Company since March 2013. He is in charge of the business
operations of our subsidiaries in Shanghai, Jiangsu Province and
Anhui Province. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 2008 and held various
positions, including chief financial officer. He has also been the vice
president of Hanhua Guarantee since January 2013.

From March 1999 to December 2004 and May 2007 to February
2008, Mr. Zhou served in various positions in Loncin Group and
its subsidiaries, including the deputy general manager of strategy
improvement department and the assistant manager of domestic
business operation department of Chongging Loncin Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd. (BEERET % (£E) ARA
general manager of Hunan Jinlong Guangyang Motorcycle Co., Ltd.
(5 SRR Y EEFE B A R 2 7)) and the vice president of Chongaing
Jinlong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (EEERIEEE AR Q).
He worked for Tibet New Zhufeng Motorcycle Co., Ltd. (P T Tk
& EET B 5 fR /A 7)) as the deputy general manager from September
2005 to April 2007.

7)), the assistant to

Mr. Zhou obtained his junior college degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in June 1995.
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Mr. Yan Dong, aged 46, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013. Mr. Yan joined the Group in May 2006
and held various positions, including deputy general manager of risk
management department and vice president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yan served in various positions in
Chongging Branch of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. from October
2000 to April 20086, including the deputy general manager of the
corporate banking department. He worked at Chongging Branch of
China Construction Bank Corporation from July 1991 to September
2000.

Mr. Yan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in engineering from
Sichuan Industrial College (P9)Il T#£67) (currently known as
Xihua University (F52£ KX £2)) in July 1991. He obtained his EMBA
degree from Guanghua School of Management of Peking University
in January 2013.

Mr. Luo Xiaobo, aged 36, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013. Mr. Luo joined the Group in November
2004 and held various positions, including chief operating officer.
He has also been the vice president of Hanhua Guarantee since
January 2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo worked for Chongqing Huifeng
Property Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd (EEE 2 E i & 1 1 & E T4
BREMEZAT) from June 2004 to October 2004 and Chongging
Boma Property Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd. (EE$HEEE + 1T
B BR A A)) from July 2002 to June 2004.

Mr. Luo obtained his bachelor’s degree in mechanical design
and manufacturing and business administration from Southwest
Agricultural University (757 & % A 58) (currently known as Southwest
University (Fafg A22) in July 2002,
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Ms. Li Jing, aged 45, has been the vice president of the Company
since August 2014. Before joining the Group, Ms. Li was the
translator and secretary to the director general of Far Eastern
Leasing Co., Ltd. (R EH R 2 7)), the sales manager of Hitachi
Electric (H3Z & 28) Beijing office, the assistant to the representative
of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (f£/&#£7T) Shenyang
representative office, the human resources director of Genpact
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. (f{8% (Ki&E) BAMRAF]) and the senior vice
president of the human resources department of BMW Brilliance
Automotive Ltd.

Ms. Li graduated from the foreign language department of Liaoning
University majored in Japanese in 1992.

Mr. Wang Feng, aged 47, has been the vice president of the
Company since July 2015. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang
served successively as the manager of China National Technical
import & export Corporation (FF B 1i7 3 H A 482 7]) from October
1991 to October 1995, the senior manager of Huadao International
Investment Co., Ltd. (ESBEREEFRAF]) from October 1995
to September 1997, the general manager assistant of the Beijing
Liaison Investment Management Co., Ltd. (At RE I EEEFR
A a]) from November 1999 to December 2001, the deputy general
manager of New Century International Leasing Co., Ltd (¥t 42 B
BFEE A R A R]) from December 2001 to November 2007 and the
marketing director of Minsheng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd (R4E®
B E RN B R 2 A).

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in international trade from
Beijing International Studies University in July 1991, and obtained
his master’s degree in finance from Imperial College London in
July 1998.
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Mr. Yuan Guoli, aged 46, has been the vice president of the
Company since January 2016. He joined the Group in October 2006
and had served as the marketing director of Hanhua Guarantee, the
deputy general manager and general manager of Liaoning Hanhua
and the marketing director of the Company successively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yuan worked for the Liaoning office of
China Huarong Asset Management Corporation from March 2000 to
September 2006. From August 1991 to February 2000, he worked
for the industrial credit department and asset risk management
department of Liaoning branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited.

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in industrial economics
from the Department of Industrial Management of Liaoning
University in July 1991.

Mr. Ren Weidong, aged 38, has been the financial director and
general manager of capital finance department of our Company
since March 2013. He is in charge of capital finance headquarters
and administrative office of our Company. Mr. Ren joined the Group
in February 2009 and had served as the general manager of the
finance headquarters of Hanhua Guarantee. He has been the Board
secretary of the Company since September 2015.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ren served as the manager of
financing department of Duke Seals (Chongqing) Ltd. (EE#t 7
BEZHHEBRAR]) from October 2005 to January 2009. He
served in various positions in Loncin Group and its subsidiaries
from July 2000 to May 2005, including the head of the financial
section of Hunan Jinlong Guangyang Motorcycle Co., Ltd (57
2B EEFEEE A R A F)), the chief financial officer of Chongqing
Jinlong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (EEYRERFEBAR A R)
and the chief financial officer and accountant of Chongging Jinlong
Motorcycle Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (5 $hiE EEH ERE AR A F)).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES

Mr. Ren obtained his bachelor’s degree in auditing from Hangzhou
5 F T 20r)
(currently known as Hangzhou Dianzi University (/18 F &k
&) in July 1999. He is currently studying the EMBA program in

Institute of Electronics and Engineering (f/E

Guanghua School of Management of Peking University. He was
also accredited as a junior accountant in May 2000 by Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China. He was admitted as an
affiliated member of The Association of International Accountants
in April 2008.

Mr. Lin Ting, aged 43, has been the operating director and
general manager of the operating management department of the
Company since July 2013, and has been the investor relations
director and general manager of the investor relations department
of the Company since January 2015. Mr. Lin joined the Group in
July 2012 and served as the deputy general manager of credit
market department and general manager of operating department
of Hanhua Guarantee.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked for JP Morgan Chase &
Co. in credit card risk management department from June 2007
to July 2012. During that period, he joined the China Investment
Program of JPMorgan Chase & Co. in November 2008 for two
years in China. Mr. Lin worked for Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS)
from September 2005 to July 2007 and held various management
functions in risk management department. He worked for Giant
Eagle Inc. from June 1998 to September 2005 and held various
analysis positions and management positions.

Mr. Lin obtained his master’s degree in MSIA business administration
(majoring in operations research) from Carnegie Mellon University
in May 1998 and obtained his bachelor’s degree in operations
research from Statistics Operations department of Fudan University
in July 1995.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
three Executive Directors, seven non-executive Directors and five
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted the
code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance
Code (“Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). For the year ended 31 December
2015, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions except
for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 which stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual (as further detailed
in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below).

Since 28 March 2016, the chairman of the Board ceased to be the
president of the Company, the Company has complied with the
Code Provision A.2.1.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring our
business and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company'’s affairs, the first session of the Board has
established five Board committees, including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the nomination and remuneration committee
(the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”), the strategic
investment committee (the “Strategic Investment Committee”),
the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) and the risk
management committee (the “Risk Management Committee”)
(together, the “First Session of the Board Committees”). With
the appointment of the second session of the Board become
effective on 13 March 2016, the second session of the Board has
cancelled its Executive Committee and has established four Board
committees, including the Audit Committee, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Strategic Investment Committee and
the Risk Management Committee (together, the “Second Session
of the Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.
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All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and they
have carried out duties in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of three executive
Directors, seven non-executive Directors and five independent
non-executive Directors.

Details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial,
business family or other material/relevant relationship among the
members of the Board, except that Mr. Tu Jianhua is a cousin of
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, both are non-executive Director.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2015 is as follows:

Name of Directors

ABREEERERE

FIBEESNEZ2015F12A31B It FEE
ZEIIERIOT

Attending Training Contents

EEHE EZEIRE

Executive Directors: PITESE

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SRENE SE A A-C

Mr. Cui Weilan BERELE A-C
(Appointed on 27 May 2015) (FR2015%F5 427 B & 1T)

Mr. Lin Feng Mg A C
(Resigned on 17 March 2015) (20153 A 17 B#HE)

Non-executive Directors: FEHITESE

Mr. Tu Jianhua RS & A-B-C

Mr. Duan Xiaohua BEELLE A-C

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2EES L+ A-C

Ms. Liu Tingrong REEE L+ A-C

Ms. Wang Fangfei FHEFET A-C

Mr. Feng Yongxiang RS A A-C

Mr. Zhou Xinyu BFFEAE A-C

Mr. Liu Bolin BIEREE A-C

Independent non-executive Directors: BUHEHTEE :

Mr. Bai Qinxian B#ERE A-C

Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BRI AE A-C

Mr. Qian Shizheng ﬁ%fﬁﬂ(f‘ﬁi A Speaker T B C

Mr. Ng Leung Sing SERE A-C

Mr. Yuan Xiaobin = J WA A-C

Notes: it

A:  Trainings on corporate governance of listed companies, directors’
duties and the relevant matters organized by the Stock Exchange or
securities regulatory authorities;

B:  Special training, seminars, forums and conferences on topics such as
economics, finance and corporate management;

C: Reading materials related to requirements on corporate governance,
directors’ duties and internal risk management, etc.

A BRPTRESEEAIISAMMMERER £
MARMEEER - EERE RMAERZI
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (“Mr. Zhang”) performed both of the roles of
chairman and president of the Group. Taking into account that Mr.
Zhang has been serving in the Group since its establishment in
2004, the key role of Mr. Zhang in the senior management team,
as well as his high commitment to the setting up and management
of the business operation and business decision of the Company
and the strategic development plans of the Group, the Board
considered that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
being performed by Mr. Zhang enables more effective and efficient
overall business planning, decision making and implementation
thereof by the Group. The Board is of the opinion that it is in the
best interests of the Group for Mr. Zhang to assume the dual roles
of chairman and chief executive officer. In order to maintain good
corporate governance and fully comply with the Code Provision,
the Board will regularly review the need to appoint different
individuals to perform the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer separately.

Since 28 March 2016, the chairman of the Board ceased to be the
president of the Company, the Company has complied with the
Code Provision A.2.1.

Appointment, Change and Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), the Directors shall be elected
at the general meetings for a term of no more than three years,
and may be re-elected and re-appointed upon the expiry of such
term. The Company has implemented an effective mechanism
regarding the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will first discuss the matters in relation to
the appointment of new Directors, and then present to the Board
their proposals, which will be subject to the approval at the general
meeting.
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On 17 March 2015, Mr. Lin Feng, an executive Director, resigned
as an executive Director due to the need to devote more time to
pursue other work engagement. On 27 May 2015, the appointment
of Mr. Cui Weilan as an executive Director became effective after
the passing of the resolution at the annual general meeting of
the Company for 2014. Please see the relevant details in the
announcements dated 17 March 2015 and 27 May 2015, and in
the circular dated 10 April 2015 of the Company.

On 3 March 2016, the resolutions for the election of the second
session of the Board and the Board of Supervisors were approved
at the first extraordinary general meeting in 2016. Mr. Zhou Xinyu,
one of the non-executive Directors, retired as an non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang Dayong was appointed as an executive
Director of the second session of the Board. Mr. Zhou Daoxue, a
shareholder representative supervisor of the Company, retired as
a shareholder representative supervisor of the Company. Ms. Qin
Yong was appointed as a shareholder representative supervisor of
the second session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.
The appointment of the second session of the Board and the Board
of Supervisors became effective on 13 March 2016. Please see the
relevant details in the circular dated 17 January 2016 and in the
announcement dated 3 March 2016 of the Company.

The Company has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with each of the Directors (including non-executive
Directors). The service contracts and the letters of appointment
are for a term of three years.

Regular Board Meetings

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board should
hold no less than four regular meetings annually, to be convened by
the chairman of the Board. Notices of not less than fourteen days
will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with the opportunities to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, the meeting notice, the agenda and
accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members within reasonable time frame to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings.
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Meetings of the Board shall be held only if more than half of the
Directors are present, except for when the Board is considering
the matters of connected transaction as provided for under the
Articles of Association.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will be
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time frame after the date on which
the meeting is held.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 21 Board meetings

were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these
meetings is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors

KERNEESEAMEISEANS)
W BESCRBER_DZ2— LALE’]i
EWMEHAIRIT -

FENERCIRER

EEEgRREEEEREN
mﬁaﬁ§$@ ZEEMERMNEE R
EWARE  BREEFROAOEMAEE -
EEFEERREEERRNERLHE
BAE / BEREZBITENAERMER

TREREE  UHESFERE -

HE2015F12831HILFEHHE =g
w2 NERe e E NERNESHEZ
LEENBERERTE

Attendance/Number of
Board meetings held

HE BRETZESEERRE

EEnE
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang oR BIFF 58 A
Mr. Cui Weilan ERELE
(Appointed on 27 May 2015) (FR2015F5 427 B Z1{T)
Mr. Lin Feng MEE A
(resigned on 17 March 2015) (20153 A17 B &HE)
Mr. Tu Jianhua RIS E
Mr. Duan Xiaohua REEEES A&
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang Ly
Ms. Liu Tingrong Rzt
Ms. Wang Fangfei FHELT
Mr. Feng Yongxiang IS
Mr. Zhou Xinyu BT A
Mr. Liu Bolin BB RELE
Mr. Bai Qinxian B#ERE
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BAE R L A&
Mr. Qian Shizheng SRt RS A
Mr. Ng Leung Sing R 24
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin R HRE

21/21
14/14

4/4

17/21
19/21
20/21
17/21
20/21
18/21
15/21
14/21
15/21
13/21
14/21
15/21
15/21
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, 1 general meeting of the
Company was held and the attendance of the individual Directors
at the meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Director

HZE2015%F12A31HILFEERE - XA
PRITIARERE - @ARESHEREKXR
ERERENTE

Attendance/Number of
general meetings held

EEng HEBETZBRRAGRH
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SREIFESEAE 11
Mr. Cui Weilan ERELE 1/1

(Appointed on 27 May 2015) (FR2015F5 427 B & (E)
Mr. Lin Feng WEg S E

(Resigned on 17 March 2015) (FR2015F3 A 17 HEHT) 0/0
Mr. Tu Jianhua IRBESLE 1/1
Mr. Duan Xiaohua RIS A 1/1
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang RISzt 11
Ms. Liu Tingrong Rl L 1+ 1/1
Ms. Wang Fangfei FEFELZL 1/1
Mr. Feng Yongxiang ISIKFESTE 1/1
Mr. Zhou Xinyu A FiRE 11
Mr. Liu Bolin BIER k£ 1
Mr. Bai Qinxian SE/ &t 11
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BN E 11
Mr. Qian Shizheng S BT A 11
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REENE 1/1
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin R R E 1/1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of practice
for carrying out securities transactions by the Company’s Directors
and supervisors. Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors
and supervisors, they have confirmed their compliance with the
relevant standards stipulated in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2015.
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Duties performed by the Board and management

The Board shall report to the general meeting and exercise the
following powers, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i)  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iliy  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(v) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
Directors; and

(iv) To review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
note 7 to the financial statements.

The details of the senior management are disclosed in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this
report.

Remuneration paid to the senior management (including one
Director) for the year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

Remuneration Range (RMB)

EEREREEBNTH

AAREHBERAEBREEREREEE
FIOBRRLEAREFAENERF -
HZE2015F12A31HILLFE  SEEMH
PN IB B R B SRR M7 o

EREEENFAEHNEERARS (&
= EEkegEERE] -

HZE20156F12A31BILFE B TER
EREE (BRE—RESE) OFHET :

Number of People

FHEE (ARY) A
Over 2,000,000 2,000,0007¢ FJA | 5
1,000,000 to 1,999,999 1,000,0007C % 1,999,9997T 4
Below 1,000,000 1,000,0007C AT 2

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance in respect of
legal action against its Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee
comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Qian Shizheng (independent
non-executive Director), Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (non-executive Director)
and Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (independent non-executive Director). Mr.
Qian Shizheng is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main responsibility of the Audit Committee is to facilitate
the communication, supervision and verification in respect of
the Company’s internal and external auditing. Its main functions
and powers are, including but not limited to, proposing the
appointment or replacement of the external auditors, considering
and making suggestions on their remunerations, resignation
or dismissal; overseeing the Company’s internal audit system
and its implementation, and reviewing the group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices; auditing the financial information
of the Company and its disclosure; reviewing the Company’s
financial monitoring, internal monitoring and risk management
systems, auditing material connected transactions, ensuring that
the management has fulfilled its duties to establish an effective
internal control system; examining the Letter of Audit Description
provided by the external auditors to the management, any material
queries raised by the auditors to the management in respect of
the accounting records, financial accounts or monitoring systems
and the management’s response; and formulating whistle-blowing
policies and systems, etc.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 4 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held. The matters under discussion and
examination included:

1. The resolution regarding the annual report (draft) of the
Company for the year 2014;

2. The resolution regarding the internal control report (draft) of
the Company for the year 2014;

3. The resolution regarding the re-appointment of the auditor of
the Company;

4. The resolution regarding the nomination of Ms. Lei Yanfen
as the person-in-charge of internal audit department of the
Company;
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5. The resolution regarding the reviewed consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2015 and the review report of the consolidated financial
statements;

6. The interim report (draft) and the announcement of interim
results (draft) of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2015; and

5 BRARREHZE2015F6 A30H 1-61E
AREEMNE I BERE NG O
MERBHRENZRE

6 BARARREHZE201596 A30H IE61H
AR HEERE (Efs) RIS
nE (B SR &

7. The resolution of considering and approving the description of 7 BREBEAATBERALIEHEBES
the internal control related matters of the Company. THRHARER ©
The attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out BB ZEENEEFEHNBRERT
in the table below: *:
Attendance/Number of
Name Audit Committee meetings held
®E HE BETZETZESEERE
Mr. Qian Shizheng BB s 4/4
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang Bl 4/4
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin RAWEAE 4/4
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REEFHNEES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Deng
Zhaoyu (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(Chairman and executive Director) and Mr. Bai Qinxian (independent
non-executive Director). Currently, Mr. Deng Zhaoyu is currently the
chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The main responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board to formulate the recruitment
procedures and assessment standards for Directors and senior
management of the Company and conduct preliminary assessment
on the qualifications and conditions of candidates to be appointed
within its area of competence; study and formulate the remuneration
plans, performance appraisal systems and incentive schemes of
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company,
make suggestions to the Board and supervise the implementation
of plans and systems.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 3 meetings of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held. The matters
under discussion and examination included:

1. The resolution regarding the policy of diversifying the
composition of the Board;

2. The resolution regarding increase the number of members of
the first session of the Board;

3. The resolution regarding the stock option incentive scheme
participants and allocation proportion; and

4. The resolution regarding the nomination of Mr. Ren Weidong
as the secretary of the Board and a joint company secretary.

The attendance record of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee members is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of
Nomination and Remuneration

Name Committee meetings held

HE
mE CETREEFMZESERNH
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BRI A 3/3
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang REIFESEAE 3/3
Mr. Bai Qinxian SE/ bt 3/3
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversification of the Board
is beneficial for enhancing the performance of the Company.
Therefore, the Company has established the Policy on
Diversification of Members of the Board to ensure that when
determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider the diversification of members of the Board from various
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
appointments to the Board shall follow the principle of meritocracy,
taking into account objectively the benefits of diversification
of members of the Board when considering the candidates.
The candidates of the Board are selected based on a range of
diversified perspectives, including but not limited to age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will disclose the
composition of the Board annually in the Corporate Governance
Report and monitor the implementation of the policy. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review the policy
when appropriate to ensure the effectiveness of the policy.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will discuss any
amendment that may need to make and make recommendations
to the Board for approval.

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Strategic Investment
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Tu Jianhua (non-executive
Director) and Mr. Zhou Xinyu (non-executive Director). Currently,
Mr. Zhang is the chairman of the Strategic Investment Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategic Investment Committee
are to examine and advise the Board on our long-term development
strategies and major investment decisions.
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The written terms of reference of the Strategic Investment
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 1 meeting of the Strategic

BRREZ BN S m BB ER B A
K AR RIABUE AT BB o

HE2015F12 831 B L FEHAR - BERSIR

Investment Committee was held. The matters under discussion and BZEGHBTIREE  SLOREER
examination included: ARBRFEWT :

1. The resolution regarding the investment and establishment of 1 BARBREZ[VHERBRRKROERAA

a property insurance company. HIGRER ©
The attendance record of the Strategic Investment Committee HEEEZEENEHFEZNBERLHRN
members is set out in the table below: T -

Attendance/Number of

Strategic Investment Committee

Name meetings held

HE

®H CETHBRREEZEEERERK

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SRR S 1/1

Mr. Tu Jianhua REBELE 1/1

Mr. Zhou Xinyu EFTF A 1/1
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE BITEES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
established the Executive Committee, which comprises eight
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman and executive
Director), Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director), Mr. Tu Jianhua
(Non-executive Director), Ms. Liu Tingrong (Non-executive Director),
Ms. Wang Fangfei (Non-executive Director), Mr. Feng Yongxiang
(Non-executive Director), Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (Non-executive Director),
Mr. Duan Xiaohua (Non-executive Director). Currently, Mr. Zhang is
the chairman of the Executive Committee.
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According to the Rules of Procedures of the Executive Committee
of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd., the primary responsibilities
of the Executive Committee are to vote on issues relating to the
daily operations of the Company and specific matters authorized by
the Board within its terms of reference, and to monitor and provide
feedback for the implementation of matters which have already
been approved by voting.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 5 meetings of the Executive
Committee was held. The matters under discussion and examination
included:

*

The resolution regarding the provision of guarantee by Tianjin
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. (K}Z#IFE/NEEREGR A F) for
the loans of Bank of China Limited — Heping, Tianjin branch;

The resolution regarding the provision of counter-guarantee by
Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. (FEZEm#E/ NEERE
[ A 7)) for the loans of Nanning Southern Financing Guarantee

Co., Ltd. (AERM T RBEMEEZRAR A R);

The resolution regarding the removal of senior management
personnel of the Company;

The resolution regarding the issue of Undertaking on the
Transfer of Equity of Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit Co.,
Ltd.* (EE®E/NEERERE LA A]) to Chongging Banking
Bureavu;

The resolution regarding the provision of guarantee for the 50
million products with income right from specific assets issued
by Chongqing Hanhua Assets Management Co., Ltd., on
Chongging Financial Assets Exchanged Co., Ltd.;

The resolution regarding the provision of guarantee for the
products with income right from specific assets issued
by Chongqging Hanhua Assets Management Co., Ltd., on
Chongging Financial Assets Exchanged Co., Ltd.; and

The resolution regarding the provision of guarantee for the
financial instruments issued by Chongging Hanhua Assets
Management Co., Ltd., on Chongqging Financial Assets
Exchanged Co., Ltd.
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The attendance record of the Executive Committee members is set
out in the table below:

HTZBEERBEHEEANBEREART

Attendance/Number of
Executive Committee
meetings held

HE

Name

#E

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang o B o A
Mr. Cui Weilan ERREL
Mr. Tu Jianhua REESRLE
Mr. Duan Xiaohua ERBEZES A
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang el e
Ms. Liu Tingrong BT+
Ms. Wang Fangfel FHEELT
Mr. Feng Yongxiang RS FE ST

With the appointment of the second session of the Board become
effective on 13 March 2016, the second session of the Board has
cancelled its Executive Committee.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Risk Management
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Cui Weilan(Executive
Director), Mr. Duan Xiaohua(Non-executive Director). Currently, Mr.
Zhang is the chairman of the Executive Committee.

According to the Rules of Procedures of the Risk Management
Committee of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd., the primary
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are to
provide professional advice to the Board or making decisions on
professional matters according to the authority of the Board in

relation to the risk management.

The written terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. No meeting of the Risk Management Committee was
held for the year ended 31 December 2015.

5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The senior management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 177 to 178 of this report.

CHANGES OF MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Followed the trend of economic development, centered on the core
development concept of Partnership Finance and kept adjusting
our strategic layout, the Company has promoted the businesses
under each business group of the Company as well as the reforming
and upgrading of the management mode, and has improved our
comprehensive financial service capability. As at the date of this
report, the Company has adjusted the appointment of senior
management of Hanhua Financial, which are as follows:
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Since 10 March 2015, the former operating director, Mr. Lin
Ting, has been appointed as the investor relations director of
the Company and ceased to be the operating director; Since 8
October 2015, the former risk director, Mr. Liu Ruifeng, has been
appointed as the vice president of Hanhua credit business group
and ceased to be the risk director of the Company; the former
marketing director, Mr. Cheng Xiaoqin, has been appointed as the
vice president of Hanhua guarantee business group and ceased to
be the marketing director of the Company; the former marketing
director, Ms. Wang Qi, has been appointed as the marketing
director of Hanhua guarantee business group and ceased to be
the marketing director of the Company; the former sales director,
Mr. Li Xuan, has been appointed as the executive officer of
Hanhua internet financial business group and ceased to be the
sales director of the Company; the former market director, Mr.
Wang Dong, has been appointed as the president of Changjiang
Factoring business group and ceased to be the market director of
the Company; the former commercial director, Mr. Jiang Jintang,
has been appointed as the deputy general manager of the strategy
development department of the Company and ceased to be the
commercial director of the Company; the former information and
technology director, Mr. Xu Wei, ceased to be the information and
technology director of the Company.

Since 28 March 2016, the chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang, ceased to be the president of the Company and remains
as the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director; the
executive Director and executive president, Mr. Cui Weilan was
appointed as the president of the Company; the former marketing
director, Mr. Yuan Guoli, has been appointed as the vice president
of the Company and ceased to be the marketing director of the
Company.

As at the date of this report, details of the Senior Management
are set out under the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has established gradually a comparatively complete
and effective internal control system in accordance with the
related requirements such as the Basic Internal Control Norms for
Enterprises and the accompanying set of guidelines issued by the
five departments including the Ministry of Finance and the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the Corporate Governance
Code, including building the internal control and internal supervision
mechanism of the system at corporate level and at the level of
business process. This can provide reasonable assurance for
compliance, asset security, the accuracy and completeness of
financial report and related information of the Company.

The Company has established an effective management structure
with the general meetings as the body having the highest power,
the Board as the decision making body, the Board of Supervisors
as the supervisory body and the management as an executive body.
The Board is responsible for implementing sound and effective
internal control; the Board of Supervisors supervises the Board’s
implementation of internal control; the management is responsible
for leading the daily operation of internal control. The Company
has set up specialized committees and leadership teams according
to the requirements of development planning and internal control,
specifying the responsibility, rights, structure, position allocation,
etc. In this way, rights and responsibilities are put into practice to
respective responsible departments, forming an internal control
mechanism with clear division of labor, mutual cooperation and
mutual supervision.

The Company continues to organize and improve the internal control
according to the requirements of related laws and regulations
in order to prevent risk. It has gradually established various
rules and policies regarding corporate management, business
operations, daily management and other related rules. The existing
policies basically cover the existing operating bodies, management
departments and various business processes and operation
procedures, providing reasonable protection for preventing all
kinds of risks.
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The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
to maintain an adequate internal control system to safeguard
Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The Company has established an internal auditing system-internal
control and audit department. Under the direction of the Audit
Committee, the department carries out independent auditing.
Internal control and audit department is responsible for examining
and reviewing all the operations and management activities
independently and supervise and review the effectiveness of
internal control.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has carried out
an overall assessment regarding the system construction of internal
control and operating condition, reviewing its effectiveness and
remarking on the major aspects covering operation management
of the Group, including internal environment, risk control and
assessment, control activity, information and communication and
internal supervision. In regard of this, no material defects or
material faults have been found. The Board believes that the Group
has kept an effective internal control in all material aspects, and
that the qualification and experience of the employees working
on accounting and financial report and training programmes for
employees and the related budgets of the Group are enough.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total remuneration paid
or payable to the Company’s auditors, KPMG and other accounting
firms, for audit and audit related services amounted to a total of
RMB5.6 million.
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An analysis on the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG and
remuneration paid or payable to other accounting firms for the
provision of annual auditing services to subsidiaries is as follows:

Services by the Auditors

ENSENTESHEAMEBEMEAT
BB ARRHFEEESRGOEMEF
=S PN RO D AT ST -

Amount (RMB)

REEH R ER S8 (AR%)
Auditing services: ZE R

Annual auditing services FEZEART 4,100,000
Non-auditing services: IZ BRI

Services in relation to the reporting

accountant for listing B LR BRME AR -

Other audit related services HE HEN R 1,500,000
Total @et 5,600,000
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEARIME
The joint company secretaries of the Company is responsible for ARBNBEAPAMEEERACEELRSE

advising the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring
that the Board policies and procedures, and the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed. Mr. Cui Weilan has resigned as
the company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ren Weidong was
appointed as one of our joint company secretaries of the Company
at the same date.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engaged Ms. Lai Siu Kuen, a senior manager of
KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider),
as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. Ren to discharge
his duties as company secretary of the Company. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Lin Ting, the
investor relations director of the Company.

Mr. Ren and Ms. Lai have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
STAKEHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders and stakeholders are essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance of
timely and nonselective disclosure of the Company’s information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity
for shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the Board
Committee of the Company will attend the annual general meeting
to answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditors of the
Company will also attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
contents of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of auditors.

The Company has maintained continuous close relationship with
stakeholders, including customers, employees, suppliers, regulatory
authorities and the public. The Company devoted to balance the
opinions and interests of the stakeholders through constructive
communication, so as to set the long-term development direction
for the Company and the regions where our business operates.

The Company has actively promoted relations with the investors
and the communication with those persons in the investment
sector. The Board has dedicated to provide the shareholders with
clear and comprehensive information about the Group by publishing
notices, announcements, circulars as well as interim and annual
reports. The latest version of the Company’s Articles of Association
has been published on our Company’s website (www.hanhua.com)
and the Stock Exchange website, respectively. Shareholders and
stakeholders can log in our Company’s website and acquired more
information about the Group on the “Investor Relations” page.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at the general meetings
of the Company, including the election of individual Directors, for
review and approve.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.

CONVENING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

According to clause 3 of Article 64 of the Articles of Association,
when an extraordinary general meeting is requested in writing by a
shareholder individually or shareholders collectively holding at least
10% (inclusive of 10%) of the outstanding shares with voting rights
of the Company, the Board shall convene an extraordinary general
meeting within two months.

According to Article 67 of the Articles of Association, when the
Company is to hold an annual general meeting, shareholder(s)
holding at least 3% (inclusive of 3%) of the shares of the Company
with voting rights shall have the right to put forward temporary
proposals in writing to the Company, and the Company shall list
the issues in the temporary proposal that fall within the scope of
responsibility of the general meeting in the meeting agenda. The
temporary proposal submitted by the shareholder shall be subject
to the following conditions:

1. the contents shall not contravene any requirements of laws
and regulations, and shall fall with the business scope of the
Company and the scope of responsibilities of the general
meeting;

2. the proposal shall cover a clear subject with specific issues to
be resolved; and
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3. the proposal shall be in writing and submitted or delivered to
the Board 10 days before the general meeting takes place.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
candidate nomination procedures for Directors are available on the
website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could email their enquiries to linting@
hanhua.com or mail their enquiries in writing to the Company’s
head office in Beijing, the PRC at 13/F, East Tower, World Financial
Center, No. 1 East Third Ring Middle Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the annual general meeting 2014 of the Company held on
27 May 2015, special resolution on proposal to the Articles of
Association of the Company (Draft), which will be applicable upon
the A Share offering of the Company was passed. Apart from this,
for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has not made
any amendments to the Articles of Association.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on 13 March 2013
as a company with limited liability. The Company’s H-shares (the
“Shares”) were listed on the Stock Exchange on 19 June 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The scope of business of the Company as reflected on the business
license includes investment business, investment management and
investment advisory.

The Group mainly offers diversified and comprehensive financial
services to serve the financing and business needs of SMEs
and microenterprises under several business lines such as credit
guarantee, small loans, internet finance, financial factoring, capital
management and financing leases in China.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on page
179 of this report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development are set
out in the paragraphs headed “Business Overview” and “Prospects”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this report respectively. Descriptions of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in this
Report of the Board of Directors on pages 153 to 154. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 can be
found in this report of the Board of Directors on pages 154 to
156. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
Highlights on pages 7 to 11 of this report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, important
relationships with its stakeholders and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations are contained and available in this Report
of the Board of Directors on page 168, page 141 and page 168,
respectively. The above discussions constitute part of this report
of the Board of Directors.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the dividend payment of RMBO0.05 per
Share (2014: RMB10 cents per Share) to the Shareholders with
ratio of around 71.4%. It is expected that the dividend payment
will be despatched to the Shareholders before 12 July 2016. The
final dividend is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).

The final dividend is the final dividend for the financial year ended
31 December 2015, which is based on the Company’s actual
distributable profit as at 29 February 2016. The reason and details
on the basis of its actual distributable profit as at 29 February 2016
are set out and available in the paragraph headed “Distributable
Reserves” on page 149 of this report of the Board of Directors.
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TAX RELIEF (H SHAREHOLDERS)
Non-resident enterprise Shareholders

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, effective
on 1 January 2008, and other related provision of implementation,
the Company shall withhold the enterprise income tax at the rate of
10% for non-resident enterprise, Shareholders whose name appear
on the register of H Shareholders.

Non-resident individual Shareholders

Pursuant to the Circular (Guo Shui Han No. [2011] 348) issued
by the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company
shall withhold and pay the non-resident personal income tax for the
non-resident H shareholders. Non-resident individual Shareholders
are entitled to enjoy relevant preferential tax treatment provided
that the countries in which they reside in have entered into double
taxation treaties with the PRC and there are relevant provisions of
taxation arrangement between China and Hong Kong and Macau.

Where the countries in which non-resident individual H Shareholders
reside have entered into taxation treaties with the PRC and the
tax rates stipulated therein are lower than 10%, the Company will
apply on behalf of these individual Shareholders to seek entitlement
of relevant treatment under the taxation treaties according to
the requirements of the Circular of the State Administration of
Taxation on Printing and Distributing the Administrative Measures
for Non-Residential Enjoyment of the Treatment in the Taxation
Agreement (Trial) (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No. 124).

For Hong Kong residents, Macau residents and non-resident
individual H Shareholders who are residents of the countries or
regions that have entered into taxation treaties with the PRC with
the tax rate stipulated at 10%, the Company shall withhold the
personal income tax at the rate of 10%.
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For those non-residential individual H Shareholders who are
residents of the countries or regions that have entered into taxation
treaties with the PRC stipulating tax rates higher than 10% but
lower than 20%, the Company shall withhold the personal income
tax at the applicable tax rates stipulated in the relevant taxation
treaties.

For those non-residential individual H Shareholders who are
residents of the countries or regions that have entered into taxation
treaties with the PRC stipulating tax rate at 20%, who are residents
of the countries or regions that have not entered into any taxation
treaties, or otherwise, the Company shall withhold the personal
income tax at the rate of 20%.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
last five financial years are set out on page 7 of this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The estimated net proceeds from initial public offering along with
the partial exercise of the over-allotment options amounted to
approximately RMB1,438.6 million, which were applied in the
manners set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 June
2014, of which approximately 70% of the funds were used to
increase the capital base of our micro and small loan business,
20% were used to increase the capital base of our credit guarantee
business and 10% were used for product development and working
capital for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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MAJOR BANKING PARTNERS/SUPPLIERS

The five major banking partners of the Group each provided 50.4%
of the bank financing we guaranteed. The largest banking partner
accounted for 14.5% of the total financing the Group guaranteed.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group does not have
major suppliers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

QOur customers primarily include SMEs, micro-enterprises and
individuals. For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue derived
from our five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of our
total net fee and interest income.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out on pages 183 to
184 of the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” in the
financial statements in this report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on pages 183 to 184 in the
“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” of this report and
in note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As a holding company, the Company’s actual profit is generated
from the dividend of its subsidiaries. Due to the time needed for
the preparation of financial statements by the subsidiaries, the
actual distributable profit for 2015 was unable to be distributed to
the Company before 31 December 2015, the balance of the actual
distributable profit of the Company as at 31 December 2015 was
negative. The subsidiaries have distributed their profit for 2015 and
undistributed profit for the previous years in January to February
2016, respectively.

According to actual conditions of the Company and its needs
arising from its coordinated sustainable development in the future,
the Board recommended to distribute the final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 to the shareholders of the
Company based on the actual distributable profit as at 29 February
2016.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 8 December 2014, the resolution on the public issue of
domestic corporate bonds in the PRC with an aggregate principal
amount of not exceeding RMBS3.0 billion, and the authorization to
handle the matters in relation to it were considered and approved at
the fourth extraordinary general meeting in 2014. After deduction of
issue expenses, the Company intends to apply the proceeds from
the issue of the domestic corporate bonds to provide entrusted
loans to the subsidiaries, repay borrowings from financial institutions
and replenish the working capital of the Company, which improve
the capital structure of the Company.
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The details of the fourth extraordinary general meeting in 2014
were disclosed in the circular, notice, supplemental notice and
announcement on the voting results dated 22 October 2014, 21
November 2014 and 8 December 2014 respectively.

On 8 June 2015, the Company commenced the issuance of the
first tranche of corporate bonds of an aggregate amount of RMB1.5
billion (the “First Tranche of Bonds”) on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange with a term of five years from the date of issuance.
The First Tranche of Bonds was issued to both online public
investors and offline institutional investors and was completed
on 12 June 2015. The pre-determined issuance size for online
public investors accounted for 2% of the total issue size of the
First Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMBO0.03 billion, and actual issue size
was RMBO0.002753 billion, accounting for 0.18% of the total issue
size of the First Tranche of Bonds; the pre-determined issuance
size for offline institutional investors accounted for 98% of the
total issue size of the First Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMB1.47 billion
and the actual issue size was RMB1.497247 billion, accounting
for 99.82% of the total issue size of the First Tranche of Bonds.
The coupon rate was 6.10%. On 7 July 2015, the First Tranche of
Bonds were listed for trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The First Tranche of Bonds, being approved by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, are first of its kind in public issuance
conducted by a small loan company in the PRC, which provided
a strong support to the business development of the Company.

The details of the First Tranche of Bonds were disclosed in the
issurance announcement, the coupon rate announcement, the
issurance results announcement and the listing announcement
dated 8 June 2015, 9 June 2015, 12 June 2015 and 7 July 2015,
respectively.
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On 3 November 2015, the Company commenced the issuance of
the second tranche of corporate bonds of an aggregate amount
of RMBO0.9 billion (the “Second Tranche of Bonds”) on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with a term of four years from the date
of issuance. The Second Tranche of Bonds was issued to both
online public investors and offline institutional investors and was
completed on 5 November 2015. The pre-determined issuance size
for online public investors accounted for 1.111111% of the total
issue size of the Second Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMBO0.01 billion,
and actual issue size was RMB0.00065 billion, accounting for
0.000722% of the total issue size of the Second Tranche of Bonds;
the pre-determined issuance size for offline institutional investors
accounted for 98.888889% of the total issue size of the Second
Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMB0.89 billion and the actual issue size
was RMB0.89935 billion, accounting for 0.999278% of the total
issue size of the Second Tranche of Bonds. The coupon rate was
5.60%. On 2 December 2015, the Second Tranche of Bonds were
listed for trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The details of the Second Tranche of Bonds were disclosed in the
issurance announcement, the coupon rate announcement, the
issurance results announcement and the listing announcement
dated 30 October 2015, 3 November 2015, 6 November 2015 and
1 December 2015, respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INDEMNITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to
the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors and
the supervisors of the Company (whether made by the Company
or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’, supervisors and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors, supervisors
and officers of the Group.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

On 27 May 2015, the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company
considered and approved the proposal on the grant of bonus in the
form of shares in open market to the senior and middle to senior
management of the Company under the share incentive scheme
(the “Scheme”), a medium and long- term incentive scheme to
increase in share by the senior and middle to senior management
with incentive fund base of the portion of year-end performance-
related remuneration of the participants.

The scope of participants includes the senior management and
middle to senior management of the Company or its subsidiaries
or branches upon the implementation of the Scheme. Independent
non-executive Directors, supervisors and shareholders holding 5%
or more of the equity interests in the Company and their associates
are excluded from the scope of participants under the Scheme.
The list of participants and the proportion of allocation shall be
determined by the Board or its authorised institution and reviewed
by the supervisors of the Company. The source of shares of the
Scheme is the issued public shares of the Company in the H shares
market, and such shares are acquired through dealings in the open
market. The source of funds is the incentive fund accumulated
in the Company by the participants (comprised of the portion of
year-end performance-related remuneration of the participants).
Participants of the Scheme can elect to contribute 40% to 100%
of their annual performance related remuneration to the share
incentive fund and the total amount of funds under the Scheme
during its validity period shall not exceed the total share incentive
fund contributed by the participants.

In 2015, the Scheme was gradually implemented in accordance
with the relevant procedures. 5,738,623 H shares were acquired
from the market.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Our risk management committee is the highest decision-making
organisation on risk management, fully responsible for risk
management of the Group. Our internal control departments
including risk management and internal control and audit as well as
other departments and business department form a system of pre-
, during and post-incident risk management and internal control.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has identified
our actual risks including credit risk, market risk, operational risk,
liquidity risk, of which credit risk is our major risk. Besides, this
report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice for
anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and investors
are advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the securities
of the Company.

Credit Risk Management

In the light of the characteristics of credit risk, the Company
shifted gradually the way of risk assessment from single business
project to that on product and business model, and formulated
admission criteria, investigation standard, credit standard, operation
procedure, post-loan management and method of payment call for
each product. The Company made amendment and improvement
to policies and operation standard on admission and investigation
of guarantee, loan, factoring and leasing, specific operation
requirements and management requirement of post-guarantee and
loan to ensure the suitability and feasibility of the policies.

Market Risk Management

The Company formulated price management measures on the
difference between medium-sized business and small and micro
business line according to the characteristics of market risk. For
medium-sized business, the Company set the basic business fee
through classification management of customers by business type
after taking into consideration regional competition, size of single
business, business cost and level of risk protection, and granted
adjustable authorization to managers of various level for marketing
purpose.
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Operational Risk Management

The Company prevented the operational risk from the origin
through strict management of authorization and implementation
of installation of two persons, dual position and double duties
for key positions, and established a system of normalized check
and reporting and feedback and improvement mechanism of risk
incident, which effectively prevented the operational risk.

Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity safety is the first management objective for our Planned
Finance Department, which is responsible for overall management
of our liquidity risk. Each subsidiary is required to compile a daily
sheet of monetary liquidity to submit to the Planned Finance
Department. Our Planned Finance Department flexibly adjusts
the size and structure of the balance sheet by monitoring various
liquidity risk limit and cash flow. This is to ensure to maintain
sufficient cash reserve is maintained to meet liquidity needs in the
short and long term and guarantee our liquidity safety.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(1) The First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2016 and
The Class Meetings were held

The First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2016, the First
Domestic Share Class Meeting in 2016 and the First H Share
Class Meeting in 2016 (collectively known as the “Meetings”)
of the Company were held on 3 March 2016. The Meetings
were convened by the Board and chaired by Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang, the chairman of the Board and the voting at the
Meetings was taken by registered ballot.
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At the Meetings, the ordinary resolutions of the election and
appointment of the Directors of the Second Session of the
Board and the Shareholder representative supervisor, the
authorization of the Board to fix the remuneration policy of the
Directors and supervisors of the Company and to enter into
service contracts with each of the Directors and supervisors
respectively and the approval of the establishment of the joint
venture property and casualty insurance company, and the
special resolutions of the consideration and approval of the
amendments to the Articles of Association, the authorization of
the Board or related parties authorized by the Board to handle
relevant matters in relation to A share offering and listing, and
the approval of the annual plan of external guarantee (Not
relating to the guarantee business) in the year of 2016 were
considered and approved.

The convention of the Meetings was in compliance with the
requirements of the applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. The details
of the Meetings were disclosed in the circular, notices,
supplemental notices and announcement on the voting results
dated 17 January 2016, 18 February 2016 and 3 March 2016,
respectively.
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(2) Profit distribution

Based on the actual distributable profit as at 29 February
2016, the Board resolved to make a distribution of RMB0.05
per Share to the Shareholders. The distribution plan will be
submitted for shareholders’ consideration at the forthcoming
AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The first session of the Board originally comprised fifteen Directors,
including two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang and
Mr. Lin Feng, eight non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tu Jianhua,
Mr. Duan Xiaohua, Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, Ms. Liu Tingrong, Ms. Wang
Fangfei, Mr. Feng Yongxiang, Mr. Zhou Xinyu and Mr. Liu Bolin, and
five independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Bai Qinxian,
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, Mr. Qian Shizheng, Mr. Ng Leung Sing and Mr.
Yuan Xiaobin.

On 17 March 2015, Mr. Lin Feng resigned as an executive Director
due to the need to devote more time to pursue other work
engagement.

On 27 May 2015, the appointment of Mr. Cui Weilan as an executive
Director became effective after the passing of the resolution at the
annual general meeting of the Company for 2014.
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As the term of office of the first session of the Board expired on
12 March 2016, the second session of the Board was elected
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2016. The
appointment of the second session of the Board became effective
on 13 March 2016.

Accordingly, at the date of this report, the Second Session of
the Board comprised a total of fifteen Directors, including three
executive Directors, seven non-executive Directors and five
independent non-executive Directors: the executive Directors are
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman), Mr. Wang Dayong (Vice Chairman)
and Mr. Cui Weilan; the non-executive Directors are Mr. Tu Jianhua,
Mr. Duan Xiaohua, Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, Ms. Liu Tingrong, Ms. Wang
Fangfei, Mr. Feng Yongxiang and Mr. Liu Bolin; the independent
non-executive Directors are Mr. Bai Qinxian, Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, Mr.
Qian Shizheng, Mr. Ng Leung Sing and Mr. Yuan Xiaobin.
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The first session of the Board of Supervisors comprised three
supervisors, including two Shareholder representative supervisors,
namely Mr. Li Ruping and Mr. Zhou Daoxue, and one employee
representative supervisor, Mr. Chen Zhonghua.

As the term of office of the first session of the Board of Supervisors
expired on 12 March 2016, the second session of the Board of
Supervisors was elected in the extraordinary general meeting held
on 3 March 2016. The appointment of the second session of the
Board of Supervisors became effective on 13 March 2016.

Accordingly, as at the date of this report, the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors comprised a total of three supervisors,
including two Shareholder representative supervisors and one
employee representative supervisor: the Shareholder representative
supervisors are Mr. Li Ruping (Chairman) and Ms. Qin Yong, the
employee representative supervisor is Mr. Chen Zhonghua.

Details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this report for the year ended 31 December
2015 and as at the date of this report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received the annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of their independence, and
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’
CONTRACTS

AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company on 17 February
2014 for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date,
subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms.
The service agreements may be renewed in accordance with our
articles of association and the applicable laws, rules or regulations.

Each independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment on 17 February 2014 for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date.

The newly-appointed Directors and supervisors entered into new
appointment letters and service contract with the Company on 13
March 2016.

None of the Directors or the supervisors has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS, TRANSACTIONS OR ARRANGEMENTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or the supervisors or any entity connected
with them has any material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract transaction or arrangement of significance to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

ESREERBEN

BHTEFMIFRITEFEEN20145F2A8
17HEARNRRFIREAER - B EHHAB
B AH=F  HAIREE DA RARR
TIARIE - R AT ARIE A R E 12 S8
FUER - SRAVSOEIR TIAERT -

BB IERITEEHER2014F2H17H
RRIETH THAE ETHBRASR=
E'E o

HETESEREEHERN2016F3H13H
FAIMZEEHERBER -

MEEEREZEANRBFTLARRNA
R—FERANEEE CEERERIN M LE
HIRTE A AT

EEREBREASH  XFAR
Bz

MEEENEEAFAENTEEE XM
BEREAEEEKMEBEXN  RAARQ
Al HEMERAR - HAEANE AR
HRE XK BRAAMIL - R AFESR
HZE2015F12A31 B IEFERINATED
EREH RPULHFRHEEE AR -

Annual Report 2015
—E-REER

159



160

Report of the Board of Directors

EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Except as disclosed in this report, during the year, none of the
Directors, the controlling Shareholders of the Company and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an
interest in a business which causes or may cause any significant
competition with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Under the remuneration policy of the Group, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, tenure, commitment, responsibilities and
performance (as the case may be) of our Directors, supervisors and
the senior management, in assessing the amount of remuneration
payable to our Directors, supervisors and the senior management.

PENSION SCHEME

The Group is required to participate in pension schemes organised
by the respective municipal governments of the PRC whereby the
Group is required to pay annual contributions for the PRC based
employees at certain rate of the standard wages determined by the
relevant authorities in the PRC during the year. The Group has no
other material obligation for payment of retirement benefits to the
PRC based employees beyond the annual contributions described
above. The details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in note 7 and note 8 to the
financial statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” in this report, there was no change to
any of the information required to be disclosed in relation to any
Directors and supervisors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since 1 January 2015.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required, (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(i)

Interests in the Company

(i) REQXTHER

Approximate  Approximate
percentage  percentage
in relevant in total
class of share share capital
Class of Nature of No.of  HEERH ERE
Name of Shareholder Position share interests shares held Bz wy
BRREE B R Rl BHEME FERGEE BHEA  HOEIN
(Shares) (%) (%) (%)©
Tu Jianhua Director Domestic Interests of controlled 1,472,458,628 42.93 32.01
REEN S Share corporation/others (Long position)
NE R REERRE (H8)
it
Wan Fangfei® Director Domestic Interests of controlled 231,532,653 6.75 5.03
TrEe EZ Share corporation (Long position)
NE R XA R (48)
Zhang Guoxiang® Director Domestic Beneficial owner/ 273,038,709 7.96 5.94
REIFO S Share Interests of (Long position)
NER controlled (#8)
corporation
ExlEEA/
XA R
Liu Jiaoyang Director Domestic Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
255 EZ Share ERBEEA (Long position)
NE R (48)
Liu Bolin® Director Domestic Interests of controlled 120,000,000 3.50 2.61
2R Bz Share corporation (Long position)
NER REEE R (#2)
Zhou Daoxue Supervisor Domestic Beneficial owner 80,145,918 2.34 1.74
[EiEZ £z Share ExBEBEA (Long position)
NE R (H8)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

BESERDERAT



Report of the Board of Directors

EEEWE

Approximate  Approximate
percentage  percentage

in relevant in total
class of share share capital
Class of Nature of No. of EEER R ERA
Name of Shareholder Position share interests shares held Bl By
REEE 50 R A3 R BRME BERGHE BAEAL BRAES
(Shares) (%) (%) (%)©
Li Ruping Supervisor Domestic Beneficial owner 2,205,795 0.06 0.05
=Juls B Share BREEA (Long position)
NER (48)
Chen Zhonghua Supervisor Domestic Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
Bz X Share EREEA (Long position)
NER (H78)
Notes: Bizt -

Mr. Tu Jianhua directly holds 98% of the equity interest of Loncin
Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), which directly holds 98%
of the equity interest of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin
Holdings”). Mr. Tu Jianhua also directly holds 2% of the
remaining equity interest of Loncin Holdings.

Accordingly, Mr. Tu Jianhua is deemed to be interested in the
1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares held by Loncin Holdings. Based
on the voting arrangement with Chongging Huitai Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Huitai”), Mr. Tu Jianhua is deemed to be able to
exercise the voting rights of the 270,269,848 Domestic Shares
held by Huitai.

Ms. Wang Fangfei directly holds 55% of the equity interest of
Chongging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chongqing Jiulong”),
which directly holds 231,532,653 Domestic shares. Accordingly,
Ms. Wang Fangfei is deemed to be interested in the 231,532,653
Domestic Shares held by Chongging Jiulong.

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang directly holds approximately 62.1% of
the equity interest of Huitai, which directly holds 270,269,848
Domestic Shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang is deemed to be interested in the 270,269,848
Domestic Shares held by Huitai. Mr. Zhang Guoxiang also directly
holds 2,768,861 Domestic Shares of the Company.
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(i)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

4. Mr. Liu Bolin directly holds 75% equity interest of Sichuan
Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd., which directly holds 120,000,000
Domestic Shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Bolin is
deemed to be interested in 120,000,000 Domestic Shares held
by Sichuan Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd.

5. As at 31 December 2015, the issued Domestic Shares and
the H Shares of the Company were 3,430,000,000 Shares and
1,170,000,000 Shares, respectively.

6. As at 31 December 2015, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of
the Company in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of SFO) which are required (i) to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (ii) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Interests in associated corporations

None of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) of the
Company.

RIGHTS TO

ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Except as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or

supervisors or any of their respective associates was granted by

the Company or its subsidiaries any right to acquire shares or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, or had

exercised any such right.

(i)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the persons (not being a Director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) or corporations
having interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO and who were directly and/or indirectly deem to
be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company are listed as follows:

FERRRROREBRG 2 S
)58 ¥

M2015F 128318 + AR R 2D skia
AR D P A REE %&Hﬁi%ﬂwu%xv%
%2&3"4 BMART R R TEE 2
wmIY KR %EMETF 5 M EEDE
33CIFBET 2 ELMAZERIAR » 3K
WRERKBRER TR EMBR TERR
AIRERGREZEMERNRA CEHESF
BEER/SHEHEES%SHIA EZEEZZ A
T (WIARRRESE  EFREETHA
8) kRnalFEIT

Approximate  Approximate
percentage in percentage in

relevant class total share

of share capital

Name of Class of Nature of No. of HEBR?D ERA

Shareholder share interests shares held Bqhlz By

REEE R 42 5 R EatE BERBEE BABEA LR g

(Shares) (f) (%) (%)®

Loncin Holdings Domestic Share Beneficial owner/others 1,472,458,628 42.93 32.01
EEmpgne NER EXBEEAEtp (Long position)
(178)

Loncin Group Domestic Share Interests of controlled 1,472,458,628 42.93 32.01
EEEEee NE R orporation/others (Long position)
EEBER Hi (4178)

Huitai Domestic Share Beneficial owner 270,269,848 7.88 5.88
27 NE R EREBA (Long position)
(178)

Chonggaing Jiulong Domestic Share Beneficial owner 231,532,653 6.75 5.03
BERNE W& K EnEBA (Long position)
(478)

Wang Mingyue Domestic Share Beneficial owner 269,824,593 7.87 5.87
IR A NERK EREAA (Long position)
(1 8)
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Notes:

1. Loncin Holdings directly holds 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares of
the Company. Based on the voting arrangement with Huitai, Loncin
Holdings is deemed to be able to exercise the voting rights of the
270,269,848 Domestic Shares held by Huitai.

2. Loncin Group directly holds 98% of the equity interest of Loncin
Holdings, which directly holds 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares of the
Company. Accordingly, under the SFO, Loncin Group is deemed to
be interested in the 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares held by Loncin
Holdings. Based on the voting arrangement with Huitai, Loncin Group
is deemed to be able to exercise the voting rights of the 270,269,848
Domestic Shares held by Huitai.

3. The 1,472,458,628 Shares held by Loncin Group and Loncin Holdings
are of the same interest and duplicated each other.

4.  As at 31 December 2015, the issued Domestic Shares and the H
Shares were 3,430,000,000 Shares and 1,170,000,000 Shares,
respectively.

5. As at 31 December 2015, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of the
Company in issue.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for 5,738,623 H shares being acquired by the Company from
the market pursuant to the Scheme, for the year ended 31 December
2015, there was no purchase, sale or redemption of any listed
securities of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the relevant laws of the PRC that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

e
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
of this report on page 169, none of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries other than the
Group, nor was there any contract of significance between the
Group and the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
other than the Group in relation to provision of services.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The details of contracts of significance entered into between the
Company and controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries have been
disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction” in this
report on page 169.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Our controlling Shareholders (including Mr. Tu Jianhua, Loncin
Group, Loncin Holdings, Huitai and Mr. Zhang Guoxiang) issued a
non-competition undertaking on 17 February 2014 in favor of the
Group (the “Non-Competition Undertaking”). Pursuant to the
Non-competition Undertaking, each of the controlling Shareholders
has irrevocably undertaken that it would not and will procure that
its associates (except any members of the Group) would not,
directly or indirectly, or as principal or agent either on their own
account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, engage, participate or hold
any right or interest in or render any services to or otherwise be
involved in any business which is in competition with the business
of any member of the Group from time to time (the “Restricted
Business”)

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by
them and their associates with the Non-Competition Undertaking.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Non-Competition Undertaking and assessed whether the controlling
Shareholders have abided by the Non-Competition Undertaking. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the controlling
Shareholders have not been in breach of the Non-Competition
Undertaking during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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COMPANY’S ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE RESPONSIBILITY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group strives for the long-term sustainable development of
our business and the regions where our businesses are located.
The Group has been actively performing our environmental, social
and governance responsibilities and conducting our business in
a socially-responsible way while creating monetary value for our
Shareholders. The Company strictly complies with the requirements
of Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting
Guides issued by the Stock Exchange, whereby the Company
is committed to incorporating the sustainable development
principle into our corporate development strategies and daily
operation and management and acting as a responsible corporate
citizen. In 2015, the Company provided our staff with a premium
development platform and safe working environment. We protect
the environment, treasure the natural resources and spare no efforts
in reducing the impact of our operation on the environment. We
value our customers and suppliers, and provide premium product
and service and continuously optimize the management of our
suppliers.

COMPANY’S COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is able to comply with relevant requirements of laws,
regulations, rules and provisions of the Companies Ordinance, the
Listing Rules and SFO in Hong Kong, the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( {1 #EAREFEI A FE) ), the Basic
Norms of Enterprise Internal control ( { 1% PR I AR IRER) ),
Interim Measures for the Administration of Financing Guarantee
Companies ( (BLEHERAREEEITIE) ), Guiding opinions
of China Banking Regulatory Commission and People’s Bank of
China on pilot projects of small loan companies (1 EI4R71T ¥ EEE
EREZEY FRARRTEN/NEERARIABNIEEER) ) in
China etc., including information disclosure, corporate governance
and standard industry operation, etc.. The Group has adopted the
Model Code.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The subsidiary provide guarantee for the loan made
by the parents of a director

On 4 February 2015, Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Hanhua”), which is a subsidiary of our
Company, entered into Financing Guarantee Entrustment
Contract (“Entrustment Contract”) with Liu Daiyuan and Vi
Sha, pursuant to which, Sichuan Hanhua provide guarantee
for the financing of RMB5 million made by Liu Daiyuan and Yi
Sha to Bank of Tianjin Co., Ltd. Chengdu Branch (“Bank of
Tianjin”).

Details of the Entrustment Contract are as follows:

Date: 4 February 2015

The relationships between the parties:

(@) Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. (as
Trustee)

(b) Liu Daiyuan, Yi Sha (as Trustor)

Sichuan Hanhua is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanhua
Guarantee Corporation Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.
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Liu Daiyuan and Yi Sha are the father and mother of Mr. Liu
Bolin (one of our Company’s directors), respectively.

Guarantee expenses: the rate of guarantee expenses is 2.50%
per year, and the guarantee expenses are RMB125,000.00,
which is arrived at based on market conditions.

Consideration: Guarantees of RMB5.0 million were provided
for financing.

Purpose: Normal business of the Company.

2. Collect housing rent from a related company
On 10 December 2014, a subsidiary of our company Hanhua
Guarantee Corporation Limited (“Hanhua Guarantee”) entered
into the Building A of Fortune Lease Contract (for enterprise)
(“Lease Contract”) with USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd.
(“USUM Group”), Hanhua Guarantee leased its own building

to USUM Group, for a period of totally 60 months from 10
December 2014 to 11 December 2019.

Details of the Lease Contract are as follows:

Date: 10 December 2014

The relationships between the parties:

(@) Hanhua Guarantee Corporation Limited (as Lessor)

(b) USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. (as Lessee)

Hanhua Guarantee is a subsidiary of our Company.

Loncin, the controlling shareholder of our Company, is one of
USUM Group’s shareholders, and holds 38.7% of the equity of
USUM Group. In accordance with Listing Rules, USUM Group
is owned as to 30% by Loncin, therefore is an associate of
our Company.
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Consideration: The right to use Hanhua Guarantee’s own
building which is located at 1#-8#, 33/F, A Building, Fortune
Tower, No. 2 Caifu Avenue, Chongging , PRC.

Purpose: To fully use of the Company’s housing assets, and to
collect the rental income.

All material related party transactions as disclosed in note
37 to the financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval or annual reporting
requirements under the Listing Rules. In particular, transactions
under category (a) were provided under service contracts of
relevant management, and transactions under category (b) on
other revenue and guarantee income are either transactions
with persons connected with insignificant subsidiaries (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or transactions
where all applicable percentage ratio (other than profit ratio)
were less than 0.1%, and the remaining transactions under
category (b) do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMBO0.94
million.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
and external auditors the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its Shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. As at the date of this report, the Board currently
comprises three executive Director, seven non-executive Directors
and five independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
adopted the Code Provisions as its corporate governance code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained
the required public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the selection
of auditors for 2016 of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board of

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
Zhang Guoxiang

Chairman of the Board

28 March 2016

*

For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2015, pursuant to the requirements set out in the Company
Law and the Articles of Association, the board of supervisors (the
“Board of Supervisors”) has attentively performed its duties
and proactively carried out supervision on the financial activities,
internal control, risk management, lawful operation as well as the
duty performance of the Board and the senior management of
the Company, thus effectively contributing to the optimization of
the Company’s governance and to the healthy and sustainable
development of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF THE MAJOR WORKS OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1. The Board of Supervisors convened meetings of the Board
of Supervisors pursuant to laws and regulations. In 2015, the
Board of Supervisors convened 2 regular meetings in which
the Board of Supervisors summarized its work throughout the
year and reviewed the interim report, and attended 1 general
meeting and 21 Board meetings. The Board of Supervisors
has supervised the general meetings and Board meetings with
regard to the legality, compliance and the procedure of voting
thereof. The Board of Supervisors has also supervised the
performance of duties by the Board and senior management.

2.  The Board of Supervisors endeavored in conducting proper
finance supervision. By focusing on the compilation, verification
and disclosure of periodic reports, the Board of Supervisors
communicated with external auditors and auditors on a regular
basis, strengthened the analysis of major issues that may
affect the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
financial reports, timely followed up and got knowledge of the
changes of regulatory requirements, and presented opinions
and suggestions. In accordance with relevant requirements,
the Board of Supervisors conducted supervision on the
selection and appointment of external auditors and auditors,
capital management of the Company, and the management of
insiders of insider information.
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3. The Board of Supervisors substantially participated in internal
control supervision. The Board of Supervisors regularly
debriefed special reports on the work of internal control and
compliance, key findings and rectification in internal audit
and prevention and control over non-compliance cases, and
strengthened supervision on the internal control formulation
and assessment work.

4. The Board of Supervisors strengthened risk management
supervision. It paid attention to the major risks faced by the
industry and debriefed special reports with regard to the
work of risk management and liquidity risk management and
provided timely suggestions.

INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON RELEVANT MATTERS OF THE
COMPANY

Lawful Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the business activities
of the Company complied with the Company Law and the Articles
of Association, the internal control system was improved, and the
decision making procedures were lawful and valid. None of the
Directors or senior management of the Company was found to have
violated the relevant laws, regulations or the Articles of Association
or harmed the interests of the Company and Shareholders.

Authenticity of Financial Report

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 were prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs and
were audited by KPMG in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing. The auditor issued standard unqualified audit report.
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Use of Proceeds

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the application of
proceeds for specific projects was consistent with the committed
uses as stated in the Prospectus.

Purchase and Sale of Assets by the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company undertook
four acquisitions. We completed the acquisition of Zhongli Insurance
Sales Limited* (FF F{RE 38 B PR A F]) through our wholly owned
subsidiary Hanhua Internet Finance Service (Shenzhen) Limited*
(BETHAeRRT OFY) BRAF), upon the completion of
acquisition, the Company holds 95% of the equity interests in
the acquiree. We acquired the equity interests in our wholly
owned subsidiary Changchun Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd.* (&
EmEE/NEE AR AR through our wholly owned subsidiary
Chongging Hanhua Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (EEBHEEE
BEE AR AT, upon the completion of acquisition, the Company
holds 100% of the equity interests in the acquiree. We acquired
the equity interests in Beijing Beiniu Technology Co., Ltd* (It&
BA4RHRAR AR through our wholly owned subsidiary Beijing
Hanhua Network Technology Co., Ltd.,* (At HERER AR D
7)), upon the completion of acquisition, the Company holds 100%
of the equity interests in the acquiree. And we made the capital
contribution to Shandong Financial Assets Exchange Co., Ltd.* (lU
HEmEER S L), upon the completion of capital contribution,
the Company holds 30% of the equity interests in the acquiree. The
four acquisitions did not result in any actions that might damage
Shareholders’ interests or cause loss of assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company invested
3 subsidiaries, mainly involving in the areas at consulting, capital
management, internet finance with the aggregate investment
amount of RMB0.07 billion. The Company increased capital to 3
subsidiaries, with the aggregate amount of RMBO0.52 billion.

*

For identification purpose only
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Report of the Board of Supervisors
EEgifE

Internal Control

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company continued
to strengthen and optimize its internal control, and the Board of
Supervisors lodged no objections to the “Report on Assessment of
Internal Control for 2015”.

Implementation of Resolutions Passed at the General
Meeting(s)

The Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to the reports and
proposals submitted by the Board to the general meetings in 2015,
and having inspected the execution of the resolutions of general
meetings, concluded that the Board had duly implemented the
relevant resolutions passed at the general meeting(s).

Opinions on Performance Assessment of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all Directors, supervisors
and senior management were diligent in duly carrying out their duties
and were evaluated as qualified in the performance assessment.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
Mr. Li Ruping

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

28 March 2016

* For identification purpose only
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Independent Auditor’s Report

N

Independent auditor’s report to the Shareholders of

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanhua
Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 179 to 316, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

R GTE e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ M A% B A R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2016

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EptER K

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H L FE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (LAA R 5I7R)

2015 2014
20154 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥Fr AREFr
Guarantee and consulting EREBAERA
fee income 766,943 960,031
Re-guarantee expenses BERER (1,905) (1,754)
Net guarantee and consulting EREEREFRA
fee income 765,038 958,277
Interest and handling fee income B RFEBWA 1,241,124 1,284,492
Interest and commission expenses R ENFEELH (254,178) (242,011)
Net interest and handling fee income K8 & F & & F U A 986,946 1,042,481
Net fee and interest income FFEEBRANEWA 2 1,751,984 2,000,758
Other revenue HAtn g A g 33,981 29,535
Reversal/(provisions) g S(FHE) ER
for guarantee losses HEEH#ED 26 110,917 (72,055)
Impairment losses BEREERX 4 (515,525) (431,728)
Operating expenses EIED 5(a) (893,433) (851,171)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) P& E s (B1E) 40 (7,416)
Other net losses H b EE 55 5(b) (1,669) (3,403)
Share of profits of associate HH LD ERERNIRERZE 54 _
Share of losses of joint venture HEELERRNIEESE (2) -
Profit before taxation BRI R E 486,347 664,520
Income tax FriS i 6 (134,182) (157,096)
Profit for the year AR 352,165 507,424
Attributable to: BB :
Shareholders of the Company P N/NET] S 302,960 432,002
Non-controlling interests FEPE 4 M RE S 49,205 75,422
Profit for the year B R 352,165 507,424
Earnings per share FRWE
Basic and diluted (RMB) BER N
(ERBU/ARET) 11 0.07 0.11

The notes on pages 187 to 316 form part of these financial F187H 23168 FTE M B X E 75
statements. EH— B o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SOt ESEREMESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e HZ=2015F12 431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (JAARE%I7R)

2015 2014
20154 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR¥Fr AREFr
Profit for the year A 352,165 507,424
Other comprehensive income Hiir & W
for the year (after tax and (BRBEREHESH
reclassification adjustments) D EAER)
Item that may be reclassified AR D EE
subsequently to profit or loss BEWIER
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHESREE : 10 588 111
net movement in the fair RAfEE
value reserve ) FEm
Total comprehensive income mEWESE
for the year 352,753 507,535
Attributable to: FERN
Shareholders of the Company ZiN/NE] ) 33 303,548 432,113
Non-controlling interests JEFE Il 14 2 49,205 75,422
Total comprehensive income mEWRESS
for the year 352,753 507,535

The notes on pages 187 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B AR R R

(Expressed in RMB) (LA AREEFIR)

31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt AREFT AREFT

Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EBES 12 2,803,885 2,631,112
Restricted bank deposits GFHERRES 13 1,400,061 2,124,465
Trade and other receivables JE S e LAt E Y SRR 14 1,262,238 404,309
Receivables for factoring business & UZ {RIE X I8 217,953 =
Loans and advances to customers R E K BR 15 7,137,771 5,997,175
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEemEE 16 106,886 157,841
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENEZE 18 432,658 386,740
Intangible assets mIEE 19 4,227 4,709
Interest in associate RERERE —BERE 20 60,054 -
Interest in joint venture RHIRERE —G&81t%E 21 9,998 =
Goodwill [GES 22 11,190 =
Deferred tax assets BEFREHEE 31(b) 349,607 315,797
Repossessed assets HEEE 94,802 16,204
Finance lease receivable Bl E B ER 23 69,718 -
Total assets BEEAS 13,961,048 11,938,352

Liabilities aE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEMER 24 300,000 815,607

Financial assets sold under BEHOESREE 25

repurchase agreement 1,388,477 2,182,446
Deferred income RENBEEEES 385,766 410,906
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEEES 26 390,337 501,254
Customer pledged deposits FARER 27 27,097 27,105
Accruals and other payables FEET K E b FE A FRIE 28 1,498,059 276,400
Current tax liabilities EHMEHAR 31(a) 143,612 148,213
Debts securities issued EfHES 29 2,382,243 =
Total liabilities BEE5 6,515,591 4,361,931
NET ASSETS FEE 7,445,457 7,576,421
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

BOFMBRRR (B

(Expressed in RMB) (JAARBEFIIR)

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wizt AREFT AREFT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#E 32
Share capital ik 4,600,000 4,600,000
Reserves {1 2,186,346 2,265,914

Total equity attributable to AT BRI

shareholders of the Company R A48 28 6,786,346 6,865,914
Non-controlling interests JEEFIERE S 33 659,111 710,507
TOTAL EQUITY ERE 7,445,457 7,576,421

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

Name: Ren Weidong
Position: Chief Financial Officer

Name: Zhang Guoxiang
Position: Chairman of the Board

REH ERR
EFRTE BEEIEE

The notes on pages 187 to 316 form part of these financial
statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF

CEFCAERBER2016F3 288 1
March 2016. o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREEREE K

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H L FE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AREEFIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KDAREREARE
Non-
Share Share Capital Surplus General Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity

Bx kel EX0R BHOR -RERER  A0EAE Pt FEHNEE RREERH
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0 ~ RMBUO0  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO0  RMBY00
ABBTR  ARRTE  ARRTL  ARRTn  ARRTR  ARETLZ  ARETL  ARRTT  ARRTR

Note 32(c)  Note 32()(i) Note 32(d)(ii) Note 32(a)(iii) Note 32(a)(iv)  Note 32(b) Note 33
Hitsge)  WEWN  KERME  KE2W)  KEd)  KEs Hiitss

Balance at 1 January 2015 20151 AL 4600000 12538 264879 - oBE0 ST 6RO TIOSD 7576
Changes in equity for 2015: 20155 AR ET !
Proft for the year FHE - - - - - 302,960 302,960 49,205 352,165
Other comprehensive income ~~ 2EANE - - 588 - - - 588 - 508
Total comprehensive income Gelaas - - 588 - - 302,960 303,548 49,205 352,753
Fouity-setiled share-based EREEHRALH

payment - - 81,123 - - - 81,123 - 81,123
Purchase equity inerest from ~~ BEAR IR ER R RE

non-controling interests - (4,239) - - - - (4,239) (61,761) (66,000)
Acquisition of subsiclary YEREAR - - - - - - - 2,460 2,460
Captal injection in subsidiaries B AFFEREKERTE

from non-controling interests - - - - - - - 3,500 3,500
Appropriation to surplus reserve  RBLEHATE - - - 53,303 - (53,309) - - -
Appropriation to general reserve  REI—RERER - - - - 61,783 (61,783) - - -
Cash dividends paid to the equity AR AIREZMZ

shareholders of the Company B 2MRtE - - - - - (460,000) (460,000 - (460,000)
Cash dlvidends paid to REFHIM RS

non-controling interests ReRE - - - - - - - (44,800) (44,800)

Balance at 31 December 2015 2015%12431 A & 4,600,000 1,271,109 346,590 53,308 277,293 238,051 6,786,346 659,111 7,445,457

The notes on pages 187 to 316 form part of these financial F187E 316 B FTE M T B :Z Z B 15 1R
statements. =W — 25 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
EHRREREER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e HZ=2015F12 431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (JAARE%I7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAREEARR
Non-
Share Share Capital Surplus General Retained controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve eamings Subtotal interests equity
Ry BWEE  EARE  RBOE -BEREE  AORAE Gt FENMES  RRERSH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT  NERTT  AEETr AEETT ARETT ARETT  ARETr AEETn ARETx
Note 32(c) ~ Note 320)() ~ Note 32(d)fi)  Note 32(d)fii) ~ Note 32(df) ~ Note 32(b) Note 33
Wi Wy WEs  FEs  WEseh B i3
Balance at 1 January 2014 N14E1F1BIHE 3,430,000 964,676 143,897 - 180,009 113676 4,832,258 626,101 5,458,359
Changes in equity for 2014: 20145 BERES
Proft for the year B - - - - - 432,002 432,002 75,422 507 424
Other comprehensive income ~~ £EANE = = il = = = il S i
Total comprehensive income ~ ANEA - = 111 = - 43200 432,113 75,422 50753
Issuance of new shares EE ) 1,170,000 268,593 - - - - 1438503 - 143859
Equity-setfled share-based WEREENRNZH
payment - - 120,871 - - - 120,871 - 120,871
Purchase equity inerest from ~ E3EE 3l IEIER IR E
non-controling interests - (13,163) - - - - (13,163) (177,481) (190,650)
Business combination under ~ FE-HTAEAK
non-common control - - - - - - - 30,000 30,000
Captal injection in subsidiaries B AFFEREEERTE
from non-controling interests - 55,242 - - - - 55,242 198,408 253,650
Appropriation to general resenve  RE—HEREE - = - - 35,501 (35,501) = = =
Cash dlvidends paid to RIS
non-controling interests Refke = - - - - - - (41,937) (#1,987)
Balance at 31 December 2014 201412731 RAIHE 4600000 1,275,348 264,879 - 215,510 510177 6865914 710507 7,576,421

The notes on pages 187 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H L FE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AREEFIR)

2015 2014
2015 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR#FT AREFT
Operating activities RETEE
Cash used in operations LEEBFTAMNIRS 12(b) (620,415) (406,375)
PRC income tax paid SANENZIEE TR (172,789) (219,958)
Net cash used in RETBHARESTEHE
operating activities (793,204) (626,333)
Investing activities REEE
Proceeds from sale of property, UWEI¥% - HE
plant and equipment KR FTS5RIE 132 738
Proceeds from disposal of U B & P15 28
investments 146,000 =
Payments for the purchase of TNEBEME - BER
property, plant and equipment &4 & B fh 3E R &
and other non-current assets BERNRIE (77,030) (129,222)
Purchase of equity interests of (& JE# Hl| 425
subsidiaries from non- U B B B 1 R A
controlling interests SR RIE (66,000) (190,650)
Payments on investment in RENB R RS HHFRIE
subsidiary (5,470) =
Payments on investments in HE A b E N R RRIE
associate (60,000) =
Payments on investments in SE G B ENHRIE
joint venture (10,000) =
Payments on other investments 3t Eth &4 B 718 (94,261) (148,100)
Net cash used in investing RETHFARSTE
activities (166,629) (467,234)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

SO RERER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e HZ=2015F12 431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (JAARE%I7R)

2015 2014
2015 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥Fr AREFr
Financing activities SEED
Proceeds from issuance of BATHERD FT1S 3RIE
new shares - 1,602,452
Proceeds from capital injection IR UI% & W H|AVIR &
Proceeds from non- JEFEH MR TE
controlling interests 3,500 283,650
Proceeds from new borrowings BEFKINES 1,721,000 805,367
Proceeds from financial assets & ﬁ EiESBEE
sold under repurchase 28938 &
agreement 1,960,955 2,004,487
Proceeds from the issuance of  Z4T{&E%4 TS 508
debt securities 2,380,800 =
Proceeds from other HEMESEHREINIRS
financing activities 814,180 -
Repayment of borrowings BEEFAELZFHES (2,236,607) (956,500)
Interest paid BEEBFNEXNNES (151,538) (222,110)
Dividends paid to equity BE VNG
shareholders of the Company SRR E (460,000) -
Dividends paid to non- m) FE 128 Il 14 A 2
controlling interests SEREE) ) (44,800) (41,937)
Repurchase of assets with EfEE L EIEEE
repurchase agreement > E’jiﬁfi\ (2,754,924) (620,000)
Cash paid for other financing YA E A B
activities EENE E’Jfﬁﬁ - (63,859)
Net cash generated from EETHELENESTE
financing activities 1,232,566 2,691,550
Net increase in cash and Mg SIEINFEE
cash equivalents 272,733 1,597,983
Cash and cash equivalents 1B1HE¥ES
at 1 January 2,531,112 940,545
Effect of foreign exchange INEERSHTE
rate changes 40 (7,416)
Cash and cash equivalents 12A31HE¥ES
at 31 December 12(a) 2,803,885 2,531,112

The notes on pages 187 to 316 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEARSHBE

(a) &REH

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASSs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs. For the purpose of preparing these financial
statements, the Group has adopted all applicable new
and revised HKFRSs to the year ended 31 December
2015, except for any new standards or interpretations that
are not yet effective for the accounting period beginning 1
January 2016. The revised and new accounting standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
accounting period beginning 1 January 2016 are set out
in Note 40.

ZEVBHRREREMBERE
AYBHREER ([FEMBERE
A Y HIFRBREEAES
AEhAg ((EREMAE])
781 ) BT 58 P RO M8 51 & 08 B 7

HEA - FEEHER ([FE
B EAD KERE FEAR
SERAIME L R MRG0 EE
BT - NP BHRERTT B EH
BRIGMAERAFRZS EHHRA
(TEmHRA]) dEREEGEX -
AEEFFRANENG RN
BEEER T

EECHMASEEMRIER] T
ZIEBEUBMEER - RREE
APFBMEMS - ARBEEIRR
EXE ST A M RISTTHET
EEABRAVBREELER (ER
20161 A1 H NS EIEE B
5 1B 18 7R A 38 80 4 fa] 37 5T 2E Bl =k
ZERIN) BRTEHE20155F12
A1 B IENFEEMB®RE - 2016
F1ATHENGHBHEABEME
MR AE B S 5T RFTET & RT 2
Bl R 2T 5240 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for available-for-sale financial assets
(see Note 1(j)) that are stated at their fair value and
liabilities from guarantees (see Note 1(q)(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 39.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)

(CONTINUED)

B BEEH

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c)

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company:

e Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new
or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the
complexity of accounting for certain contributions from
employees or third parties under defined benefit plans.
When the contributions are eligible for the practical
expedient provided by the amendments, a company is
allowed to recognise the contributions as a reduction of
the service cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered, instead of including them in calculating the
defined benefit obligation. The amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as the Group do
not have the defined benefit plans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & £2015%F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand
the definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the group’s
related party disclosures as the group does not obtain
key management personnel services from management
entities.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(d) MBARKREESIERS (&

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & £2015%F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders/shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with Notes
1(j) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(j))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o EHZE2015%412A31 B ILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (& X =

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(mj(i)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & £2015%F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see Notes 1(f) and (m)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Company ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(j)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(m)(i)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEARSHBER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(f) Goodwill (n =8

196

Goodwill represents the excess of

()ithe aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ilthe net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised BN EBAR)E Z28EE
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain BRAREBUWENS  TAEH
purchase. B o

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see Note 1m(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) W% - - BMERRKE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 1(m)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour
and borrowing costs (see Note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

ME - BB ERBREATRR
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SHAERFR - AR TR RIS
BfE (WA) & AE &OE 86 K
AEHEWT

Estimated useful lives

st A ERER
Buildings held for use EEY) 30-35 years 30-354F
Motor vehicles E e 5 years 5%
Office and other equipment PN REMR 5 years 5%
Leasehold improvements HEMHENRR Y H 1-5 years 1-5%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
Note 1(m)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

1

BIAARETTIIR)

EXRSETEE (#)

(h)

BLEE (BEKM

mANEE B ANETYEERKA
ME REH S (WA B E
RABR) REERERX (BH
AE1(m)(ii) &I - MEBE £/
BB R IR E LR
RRERM e

o] P 4 A R 60 1 1 4 2 1 3 B
TR AR ] A H A E
REFAIBE o AT AR A8
Y A A T A R B
TR - A R
T -

Estimated useful lives

et o] £ A F R

XA

BB

Software

2-10 years

2-104F

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the

company

Assets that are held by group under leases which
transfer to the group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the group are classified as operating leases, with
the following exceptions:

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

() Financial instruments

(i)

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the statements of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value, plus, for instruments not
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, any
directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are

categorised as follows:

e [oans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative

financial assets held by the Group with fixed or

determinable recoverable amounts that are not
quoted in an active market, other than

(@) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the near-term, which will
be classified as held for trading;
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued) () &emIA (&)

() Recognition and measurement of financial () cREEREENEIAN
assets and liabilities (continued) T2 ()

e [oans and receivables (continued) o EHRIENFIE ()

(b) those that the Group, upon initial (b) FIATERE WAL

recognition, designates as at fair value EEEAUAARE

through profit or loss or as available-for- BFtE BEZ 5

sale; or AEHIEENS R

BENHEEE

ITESREE 3K

(c) those where the Group may not recover ) BRAEABKAEAE
substantially all of its initial investment, L&D AR
other than because of credit deterioration, EEMEEN - £
which will be classified as available-for- REE AT B EE LAY
sale. Bl & Fr B #4515

BRIEITESRE
o

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and R H®RE - B

receivables are stated at amortised cost using FEWGRIB S A B FI &

the effective interest method. TERT B ESEROR o

e Available-for-sale financial assets o HHRHEZFHEE

Available-for-sale financial assets include non- AHEESREERTE

derivative financial assets that are designated A58 FE R B 4 48 E

upon initial recognition as available-for-sale RAEHENEITES

and other financial assets are not classified as BEE - kBRTNIEE
financial assets at fair value through profit or BENINESHEE !
loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity NWAREEFEEHEE
assets. Bt AZ HERN SR

BE  ERREWKIEA
REFEBIHKE -

Annual Report 2015
“¢ eem 201



202

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1) Financial instruments (continued)

() Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
without any deduction for transaction costs
that may occur on sale and changes therein,
except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses from monetary
financial assets, are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. When an investment
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to
statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
classified as other financial liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued) () &MIH (&)

(i) EWEERE

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets other than
those at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
by the Group at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is provided. Objective evidence of impairment
in the financial asset represents events that occur
after the initial recognition of the financial asset and
have impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the asset, which can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence includes the following loss event:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— itis becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— disappearance of an active market for financial

AEBHEMBHREAHUAR
REEAEEHEHHAE
BN EREENIE
MEENGEEEBEELETR
T ARBERRAZETA
BEZLEREN - BHEZM
BEEX - ERMEERENE
BEBRRESREEYS
REBERELEN  HZe
MEENBARKRERE
FTEAANKEENEZT
BHETAIEFENER -

EBBREENTALSE
 :

- BBABRLEREBKR
£t

- ERAR G WEOZIE
RFBRAE

- EBARAERESE
TTEMEBEAR ;

- RMBRE S

assets because of financial difficulties; BEELELTRMGE

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

Loans and receivables

The Group uses two methods of assessing
impairment losses: those assessed individually
and those assessed on a collective basis.

— Individual assessment

Loans and receivables, which are
considered individually significant, are
assessed individually for impairment. If
there is objective evidence of impairment of
loans and receivables, the amount of loss
is measured as the excess of its carrying
amount over the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. The
impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E S R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued) () &®MITH (&)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) eMEERE (&)

e Loans and receivables (continued) o EXRENE (&)
- Individual assessment (continued) - {EARIFHE (&

Cash flows relating to short-term loans 52 HIE SR R UK
and receivables are not discounted when EM#FA E 2 8%
assessing impairment loss if the difference BMIBETRKE R
between the estimated future cash flows e EARERE
and its present value is immaterial. RN - FETEE AR
BEREBAET

HEITHIR -
The calculation of the present value of BEMRHERLE
the estimated future cash flows of a WFIB Y TERT R 2R
collateralised loan or receivable reflects the RensRESN
cash flows that may result from foreclosure R EUAS 0 H &5 3

less costs for obtaining and selling the mMEA o

collateral.

Annual Report 2015
Zenerw 200



Notes to the Financial Statements
P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEARSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued) () &emIA (&)
(i) EMEERE (F)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

e Loans and receivables (continued) o EMRENE (&)

Collective assessment

Loans and receivables which are assessed
collectively for impairment include
individually assessed loans and receivables
with no objective evidence of impairment
on an individual basis, and homogeneous
groups of loans and receivables which
are not considered individually significant
and not assessed individually. Loans
and receivables are grouped for similar
credit risk characteristics for collective
assessment. The objective evidence of
impairment mainly includes that, though it
is unable to identify the decrease of cash
flow of each individual asset, after collective
assessment based on observable data,
there is observable evidence indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flow from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued) () &emIA (&)

(i) cRMEERE (&)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

The Group periodically reviews and assesses
the impaired loans and receivables for any

EAREWZE (&)

AN SR E SR TR AT [
WS R RAMEH

subsequent changes to the estimated MEERBEBLEES
recoverable amounts and the resulted changes & if & B2 B Mo AT AR

in the provisions for impairment losses.

If, in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. The reversal shall
not result in a carrying amount of the financial
asset that exceeds the amortised cost at the
date of the reversal had the impairment not
been recognised.

When the Group determines that a loan has
no reasonable prospect of recovery after the
Group has completed all the necessary legal
or other claim proceedings, the loan is written
off against its provisions for impairment losses
upon necessary approval.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to the statement of profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be

for-sale debt securities are reversed

objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued) () &emIA (&)

(iii) X REEE

(iii) Fair value measurement

If there is an active market for a financial asset
or financial liability, the quoted price in the active
market without adjusting for transaction costs that
may be incurred upon future disposal or settlement
is used to establish the fair value of the financial
asset or financial liability. For a financial asset held
or a financial liability to be assumed, the quoted
price is the current bid price. For a financial asset
to be acquired or a financial liability assumed, it is
the current asking price. The quoted prices from an
active market are prices that are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, broker, industry group
or pricing service agency, and represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis.

If no active market exists for a financial instrument, a
valuation technique is used to establish the fair value.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties; reference to the current fair value of
another instrument that is substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. Where discounted cash flow technique is
used, future cash flows are estimated based on
management’s best estimates and the discount
rate used is the prevailing market rate applicable for
instrument with similar terms and conditions at the
end of each reporting period. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market data
at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

BRXEREFRESN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value measurement (continued)

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset and
financial liability, the Group considers all factors
including, but not limited to, risk-free interest rate,
credit risk, foreign exchange rate and market
volatility, that are likely to affect the fair value of the
financial asset and financial liability.

The Group obtains market data from the same
market where the financial instrument was originated
or purchased.

Derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities

Financial assets (or a part of a financial asset or
group of financial assets) are derecognised when the
financial assets meet one of the following conditions:

—  the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire; or

— the Group transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets
or where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a financial asset are neither
retained nor transferred, the control over that
asset is relinquished.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE

1

BIAARETTIIR)

EXE

)

FTBUGR (&)

TMI R (&)

(iii)

(iv)

DAEETE (&)

AT REAERSBARE
BA R EEE  AEEDE
BFATREEREER
SREENALBENE
= BE(BRER) &6
pER  [SERR - HNEE
R TIBRE -

AEBESNMBEERE
EXRBEZERTANF
—mi e

RIEBAETHEERTH
&8

EME NG - &

MEE (REREEMN—B

MERARBUNEREE
B —#B1D) RERAR LEFERR -

- KBERZeREERSR
ENBREMEL - %

- AKRECEBEZTHE
EF%E%E%M%?
2 AP £ o B A0 e B =X BR
&ﬁ% AR E %
TREEMBEARDN
A1 2 3 ) B 4 2
MBEHZEENE
o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)] Derecognition of financial

(v)

assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, but retains control, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and relevant liability
to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

The financial liability (or part of it) is derecognised
only when the underlying present obligation (or
part of it) specified in the contracts is discharged,
cancelled or expired. An agreement between
the Group and an existing lender to replace the
original financial liability with a new financial liability
with substantially different terms, or a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the derecognised financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position when the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and the transactions are intended to be settled on a
net basis, or by realising the asset and settling the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & £2015%F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(k)

U]

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (f&X Z 2B Fifgsh -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the loss events in Note 1(j)(i). When any such
evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with Note 1(d) and Note 1(e). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with Note 1(m)(ii).

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment;
— Intangible assets; and
-  Goodwill
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

In addition, for goodwill,

intangible assets that are not yet available for use

and intangible assets that have indefinite useful

lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually

whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (f&X Z 2B Fifgsh -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
defined contribution the Group makes pursuant
to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have
joined defined contributions for the employees,
such as basic pension scheme, housing fund, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, injury
insurance and maternity insurance. The Group makes
contributions to the above mentioned schemes at
the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated
by the government organisation. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on an
accrual basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(n) BIFHM (&)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) UESREENROM

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share awards granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial Pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the awards were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the awards, the
total estimated fair value of the awards is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the awards will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
awards that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of awards that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & £2015%F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credit, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & £2015%F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within liabilities from guarantees. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in
an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Financial guarantees issued (continued)

(a)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the statement of profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 1(g)()) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in liabilities from guarantees
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Provisions for guarantee losses

When determining the amounts to be recognised
in respect of liabilities arising from the guarantee
business, management estimates the provisions
based on prior experience and default history of the
business. It is possible that the prior experience and
default history is not indicative of future loss on the
guarantees issued. Any increase or decrease in the
provisions would affect the statement of profit or loss
in future years.
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Guarantee and consulting fee income

Guarantee income is recognised when guarantee
contracts have been made whereby the related
guarantee obligation has been accepted, the
economic benefits associated with the guarantee
contracts will probably flow in, and the amount of
revenue associated with guarantee contracts can be
measured reliably. Guarantee income is determined
based on the total agreed fee in the guarantee
contracts and is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of guarantee. The
Group receives consulting fee income in relation to
guarantee services in full at inception and records it
as unearned income before amortising it throughout
the period of guarantee.

Interest and handling fee income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. The Group receives
handling fee income from loan services in full at
inception and records it as unearned income before
amortising it throughout the contractual period of
the loan.
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (&

RN B HE e

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(r) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is

recognised when the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed

investments

is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
providing guarantee services to SMEs under certain
criteria are recognised as income in the statement
of profit or loss upon receiving such grants. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the assets
and consequently are effectively recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Borrowing costs

t)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are physical assets or property
rights obtained by the Group from debtors, warrantors
or third parties following the enforcement of its creditor’s
rights. The initial cost of repossessed assets is measured
at the lower of the net carrying amount of loans and
advances and the fair value of the assets less costs to
sell on the acquisition date. Repossessed assets are not
depreciated or amortized. The impairment losses of initial
measurement and subsequent revaluation are charged to
the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
party;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (& X =

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties (continued)

(0)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vili)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.

A FES -

BAARBETITIIR)

1 EXRSHHE (&)

(u) BABET (&)

(0)

T EEAIESAKEAEE
77 : (%)

(v) TEHAREBENEARE
BEEBEBNEERES
5 R MR REFIET
gl

(vi) F(a) 18 AEH) ek £t
EH A

(vii) Z@NFEABERZE

i % F@iF @
ABLE (RLESA
A) MBIRERAS -

ERIEMBEENET
AR B AR R A KBS
AEENEREREE
EEEABRSE -

(viii)

—BATHOBRREREZE
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HERALHENRENK
% o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of credit
guarantee and related consulting services, loans to customers
and agency services in the PRC. Net fee and interest income
represents net guarantee and consulting fee income and
net interest and handling fee income. The amount of each
significant category of net fee and interest income recognised
is as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (f&X Z 2B Fifgsh -

NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME (CONTINUED)

BAARBETITIIR)

FRFEERFNERA (&)

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFr
Guarantee and consulting EREZHAEBRA
fee income
Financing guarantee and BERERKERERA
consulting fee income 751,564 952,148
Performance guarantee and BHEREABAERA
consulting fee income 14,456 7,462
Litigation guarantee and FRERRBAERA
consulting fee income 923 421
766,943 960,031
Less: Re-guarantee expenses B BEREAR (1,905) (1,754)
Net guarantee and consulting ERRBAEFRA
fee income 765,038 958,277
Interest and handling fee income FIERFEEBERARE :
arising from:
- Loans and advances to customers — BHRERRBR 1,158,652 1,209,140
- Cash at banks — RITHER 49,267 36,782
— Restricted bank deposits — FHERRES 21,626 38,570
— Internet financing business — RS pER 8,108 -
— Finance lease receivables —MEMEEEB 3,471 -
1,241,124 1,284,492
Interest and commission expenses FIERFEELH
arising from: RE :
- Borrowings from banks — IRITEE (23,606) (43,464)
- Borrowings from non-bank institutions — JERFTHLIE (E & (14,529) (21,771)
— Other Interest-bearing liabilities —HEMit B A% (28,314) =
— Financial assets sold under —BEHEESRHEE
repurchase agreements (104,537) (157,452)
— Commission paid to agents -~ FEEBRASIH (21,885) (19,324)
— Debts securities issued — ERES (61,307) -
(254,178) (242,011)
Net interest and handling fee income I 2 & FEE WA 986,946 1,042,481
Net fee and interest income FFEEBRANEWA 1,751,984 2,000,758
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME (CONTINUED) 2 ZEF@EERANEWA (&)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and has no customer AEEBELZ TR ER - RE
with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s net F2015%F K2014F12A831H L F &
fee and interest income during the years ended 31 December NWABRSBBAEEFFESE LT
2015 and 2014. Details of concentrations of credit risk are set BERAI0%MEF - BEEFEER
out in Note 35(a). BEF BT HIEE35(a)
Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are EAARSEEFZEBNFBIHINAK
disclosed in Note 34. 5F34 ©
3 OTHER REVENUE 3 HwA
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Government grants BT 18 B 26,373 28,899
Others Eity 7,608 636
33,981 29,5635
4 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 4 EEREERX
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Trade and other receivables FE U K LA PR SR IR
(Note 14(b)) (15t 14()) 376,241 250,308
Loans and advances to customers BINER KB (HiE150)
(Note 15(f) 138,864 181,420
Receivable for factoring business JrE U AR 3B ZX 420 -
515,525 431,728

232 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 FHAFE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: HATAEE 0k
(a) Operating expenses: (a) EEXH
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Staff costs B TH M
— Salaries, wages, bonuses —I%& - 8% FEK
and other benefits H 18 A 306,154 238,596
— Contributions to retirement schemes — &HEZR% 64,182 45,913
— Equity-settled share-based — AR EE R R
payment expenses SR 81,123 120,871
Operating lease charges FERELHEER
in respect of Buildings 90,474 75,832
Business tax and surcharges BT S KM 81,844 97,039
Travel expenses EIRE 62,017 52,847
Office expenses /N = 30,962 28,200
Depreciation expenses WEZH 30,201 40,534
Entertainment expenses EEHREE 15,607 18,531
Meeting fee enE 14,678 15,309
Advertising expenses BEE 13,183 12,968
Auditors’ remuneration EETE 5,600 5,978
Amortisation expenses HHE R 1,362 1,285
Others Hb 96,046 97,268
893,433 851,171
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

BIAARETTIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 AR (&)
(b) Other net losses: (b) EHMbFEE
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Net gain on disposal of property, LEME  BEXR
plant and equipment R FWE (101) (60)
Others Hh 1,770 3,463
1,669 3,403
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 &#ftiEXRRDFES
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) EHHEERPHBIEE
or loss represents:
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Current tax (Note 31(a)) E MM (#1231 (@)
Provision for PRC income tax
for the year REFTIRFAEH 168,188 227,310
Deferred tax (Note 31(b)) BIEFTSEL (HTa£31 (b))
Origination and reversal of TRt ERENES REIE
temporary Differences (34,006) (70,214)
134,182 157,096

234 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 BpHtEZRTBAEH (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) HZBEBABRERFAENFAESHER

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HEEFENAGHR
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFIT
Profit before taxation A F)E 486,347 664,520
Notional tax on profit before BRAEREAER
taxation calculated at the rates Frig®t (A7)
applicable in the jurisdictions
concerned (Note) 67,096 97,634
Effect of non-deductible expenses R[N B H T IS S22 1,733 3,895
Effect of non-deductible DAME IR B WA
investment income WS 2 - 11,961
Effect of unused tax losses TR N BEREE L2
not recognised 65,353 43,606
Actual income tax expense FEMEREE 134,182 157,096
Note: et -

Except for Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua
Assets Management Co., Ltd., Chongqging Hanhua Micro-credit
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., Xi’an
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd., Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Co.,
Ltd., Guiyang Nanming District Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd.
and Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd., the Company
and its subsidiaries are subject to PRC income tax rate of 25%.

Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua Assets
Management Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit Co.,
Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. and Xi’an
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. are qualified enterprises located in
the Western Region and are therefore entitled to preferential tax
rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

BREERROBRAR EEHE
EEERABRAR  EEMBENE
EXEREEAF - WIBERMERE
REBAR ARTHENEESRE
RAR - HEMBENEEFERR
A BEEmEARREEERER
DA RAE T E AR E R QA
Gh - RRE R EE A RRIR25%H
BIFTIS T R BT -

BEERBROHBERAR  EEBHESR
ETEEGRAR  EETMHE/EE
FEREMLAR - W BEREER
BRARKERATTHEEEREGR
RAAFAEABRAZERBERTH D
¥ EimRE E2015%F12 7318 1t
FEZAEEHEIS% o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

BIAARETTIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 BpHtEZRTBAEH (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Note: (continued)

Guiyang Nanming District Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. is
qualified enterprises located in the Western Region and is
therefore entitled to preferential tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. is a qualified enterprise
located in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and is therefore
entitled to preferential tax rate of 9% for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd. is a qualified
software enterprise since 12 May 2014, and is therefore entitled
to exempt from PRC income tax in the first and the second years
from the first- profitable year, and be subject to a 50% reduction
in PRC income tax for the third year to the fifth year. Such tax
exemption and reduction shall be implemented upon registration
and filing with the tax authorities.

(b) BERBRIENHREHER

HEAENAER  (F)

Wit - (&)

EERERENEEREARAAA
HEABRAAEBBERHRE
MRE E2015F 12831 ILEEZE
BEERHEI5% o

HMEMHENEERERABDAEHTE
EaftzErEHKESRRE A
KB E2015F12A31BLLFEZH
BEBIEI% °

IERBERERBRER AR B20145
SANCARAREREMLE At
BERERR  F—FEF_FEH
REMPEMEH  URE=ZFFH
FERE50%FBIFER - BAKRG
B KR G 1 A 1 B RS M R 1 R 7T
BEBERE -

7 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION 7 ESNEEHMH

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E S R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

7 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 7 EEMWNEEHM (&)

Salaries
allowances
and Share-
Director’s benefits  Discretionary Sub- based 2015
fees in kind bonuses total  payments Total
- 2MR NEREE 2015
ESE  AtEA #e Nt BRERR  EERH

RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ABRTT  AREFT  ARETT  ABRTT  AREFT  AREFZ

Chairman £
Zhang Guoxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2013)  REI# (12013537 13REZ () - 2,409 1,776 4,185 50,368 54,553
Executive directors HiTES
Lin Feng (Resigned on 17 March 2015 M (M2015F3A17REHE) - 362 - 362 4,551 4,913
Cui Wellan (Appointed on 27 May 2015) ERE (R015F5 AT HEZ () - 2,001 1,486 3,487 3,164 6,651
Non-executive directors F417ES
Tu Jianhua (Appointed on 13 March 2013) REE (W013F3B13REE) - - - - - -
Duan Xiaohua (Appointed on 17 June 2013) BB (32013565 17REZ() = - - - - -
Liu Jiaoyang (Appointed on 13 March 2013) 815515 (120133 A 13REZ () - 189 219 408 - 408
Liu Tingrong (Appointed on 13 March 2013) 81 (12013E3 A 13REZ () - - - - - -
Wang Fangfel (Appointed on 13 March 2013) ~ E¥ 5 (1201337130 EZ ) - - - - - -
Feng Yongxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2013) 1 (1201383 A 13REZ ) - - - - - -
Zhou Xinyu (Appointed on 17 June 2013) 3T (R2013E6 R17THEZ() - - - - - -
Liu Bolin (Appointed on 17 June 2013) AER (Ro01356 R1THEZ() - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Bal Qinxian (Appointed on 13 March 2013) B (R201353A13REZE) - 163 - 163 - 163
Deng Zhaoyu (Appointed on 13 March 2013) MBS (M2013F3 A 13REZ ) - 163 - 163 - 163
Qian Shizheng (Appointed on 17 June 2013) ;Tﬁﬂz( 20136 717BEZf) - 163 - 163 - 163
Ng Leung Sing (Appointed on 17 June 2013) 2R (12013565 17REZ() - 163 - 163 - 163
Yuan Xiaobin (Appointed on 17 June 2013) R/ (12013%E6 717 REZ () - 163 - 163 - 163
Supervisor Ex
Zhou Daoxue (Appointed on 13 March 2013 /BiE2 (120133 B 13RER() - - - - - -
Chen Zhonghua (Appointed on 13 March 2013) B2 (38201337 13R 21T - 298 421 725 - 125
Li Ruping (Appointed on 13 March 2013) EMF (R2013F3F 130 EZ () - 788 311 1,099 3,286 4,385
- 6,862 4,219 11,081 61,369 72,450
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Notes to the Financial Statements

T HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & £2015%F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (F&

7 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

BRXEREFRESN

BIAARETTIIR)

7 ESNEEHM (&)

Salaries
allowances
and Share-
Director's benefits  Discretionary Sub- based 2014
fees in kind bonuses total payments Total
W 28R NEREE 2014
EXE  HipEd #e P BRGRN EEAH
AMB'O00  RMB000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  AMB'000
ANRETL ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT
Chairman £
Zhang Guoxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2013)  REI# (201337 13REZ () - 1,800 900 2,700 75,049 77,749
Executive directors HTES
Lin Feng (Appointed on 13 March 2013) 88 (R2013F3A13REE) - 1,440 500 1940 6,781 8,721
Non-executive directors F47ES
Tu Jianhua (Appointed on 13 March 2013) REE (W013F3B13REER) = = = = = =
Duan Xiaohua (Appointed on 17 June 2013) BB (32013565 17REZ() = = = = = =
Liu Jiaoyang (Appointed on 13 March 2013) 855 (12013E3 A 13REZ ) - 174 159 333 - 333
Liu Tingrong (Appointed on 13 March 2013)  £IFE% (201353 B 13REE() = = = = = =
Wang Fangfel (Appointed on 13 March 2013) ~ E¥ 5 (1201337130 EZ () = = = = = =
Feng Yongxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2013) 1 (12013E3 A 13REZ ) = = = = = =
Zhou Xinyu (Appointed on 17 June 2013) BF (R2013E6817REEHR) = = = = = =
Liu Bolin (Appointed on 17 June 2013) &R (201356 A1THEZ() = = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Bai Qinxian (Appointed on 13 March 2013) B (R201353A13REZE) - 158 - 158 - 158
Deng Zhaoyu (Appointed on 13 March 2013) MBS (W2013E3 A 13REZ ) - 158 - 158 - 158
Qian Shizheng (Appointed on 17 June 2013) ﬂﬁﬂz( 201386 17BEZf) - 158 - 158 - 158
Ng Leung Sing (Appointed on 17 June 2013)  R=E (12013567178 EZ() - 158 - 158 - 158
Yuan Xiaobin (Appointed on 17 June 2013) R/ (1201886717 REZ () - 158 - 158 - 158
Supervisor Ex
Zhou Daoxue (Appainted on 13 March 2013)  E82 (R2013F3A13REZ() - - - - - -
Chen Zhonghua (Appointed on 13 March 2013) B2 (8201337 13R 21T - 190 210 400 - 400
Li Ruping (Appainted on 13 March 2013) EMF (R2013F3F13BEZ M) - 720 300 1,020 4,895 5,915
- 5114 2,069 7183 86,725 93,908
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

There were no amounts paid during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 to the directors in connection with
their retirement from employment or compensation for loss
of office with the Group, or inducement to join. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2014:

two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2014: three) individuals are as follows:

7

8

EENESHM (&)

7N 2 B ;A E E2015% 20144128
1B FERME S I (TRRLBER
HELMARE - - REE2015F &
2014F 12 A1 A L FEHEEEHE
YR EREEMEFT N LHE

REFMAL

hE&RSHFMALS  Edm&2014
FMB) RARAESE - RER
TERMETRE -

FI#h =4 (20145 « =4) HARFH
BEHIIMT :

2015 2014

2015% 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETFT

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind 3Bl - 284 & H {th 15 F) 4,166 3,600

Discretionary bonuses ey 2,400 2,300
Equity settled share-based payment VARG 45 E LA (9 R

expenses EMSRAX 9,629 14,263

16,195 20,163
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the three (2014: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

BIAARETTIIR)

REFMAL (&)

—EZEReFMALEC014F : =H) 8
HOMUT -

2015 2014
2015 20144
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AZ A&
RMB

ARH
Nil f£- 6,000,000 2 =
6,000,000 - 6,500,000 1 =
6,500,000 - 7,000,000 - 3

No emoluments are paid or payable to these individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a profit of RMB683.0 million (2014: loss
of RMB115.2 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (see Note 32(a)).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (f&X Z 2B Fifgsh -

BAARBETITIIR)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 Hitire s
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) HttZEaREZBHHOHRE
comprehensive income =7
2015 2014
20155 2014%F
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
Amount Benefit Amount Amount Benefit Amount
EEIE G REks RBERE HagE Reks NhEEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Note 31(b)
ARBFT AREFT AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT
(Hi&311b))
Avalable-for-sale MHHER
financial assets: SREE:
net movement in fair DAEE
value reserve 2HEE 784 (196) 588 148 (37) M
Other comprehensive income Hipir A g 784 (196) 588 148 (37) 11

(b)

Components of other comprehensive income,

(b) EN D EAENHEMERS K

including reclassification adjustments i3
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Available-for-sale financial assets: A ESREE :
Changes in fair value recognised RECHWROAN
during the year BEEEZE 588 111
Reclassification adjustments for LRI E SRS R A
amounts transferred to profit or loss: Hipsr s e
- gains on disposal — EEWE - =
— impairment losses —BERERX - -
Net movement in the fair value reserve AN EREfh4z & U2
during the year recognised in other BROALBE
comprehensive income FEE) 588 111
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

11 EARNING PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company and the weighted average of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

BIAARETTIIR)

11 RN

ERGRUERBATRERBRA
X BB R AR AR B A R B AT
BB I B E

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Profit attributable to the equity FEBRARNF R
shareholders of the Company FRE (ARETFT)
(RMB’000) 302,960 432,002
Weighted average number of ordinary BEsTEEAR TR =R
shares in issue for the purpose of basic B 31T & @A
earnings per share (RMB’000) T (FA) 4,600,000 4,056,904
Basic earnings per share (RMB) EAFZhgMeas (ARET) 0.07 0.11

() Weighted average number of ordinary shares

() EBERNINEFHE

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1A1TBE&ITERER 4,600,000 3,430,000

Effect of new issues MBITHRE - 626,904
Weighted average number of ordinary %12 A831H

shares at 31 December 57 R B N RE S5 B 4,600,000 4,056,904

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, and therefore,
diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E S R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 EES
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) EELBIE
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT
Cash in hand BEEFEES 111 63
Cash at banks RITIHFEN 2,803,774 2,531,049
Cash and cash equivalents in the AEHRESRERM
consolidated cash flow statements EMES 2,803,885 2,531,112
The Group’s provision of guarantee and loan to customer AEBEFHLERRFREMER
services in the PRC are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a LEFRBAAREET - ARBIW
freely convertible currency and the remittance of RMB out FAIERALBNERE  BARKED
of the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations H B35 HNE X AR B BT 2R 5 9 AR B AN
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC HE B AR Bl SR E R FT AR AR o
government.

Annual Report 2015
—E-REER 243



Notes to the Financial Statements
P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 12 EES ()

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

(b) AR BEEEZTHRANER

used in operations: SRR
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Profit before taxation BRI 486,347 664,520
Adjustments for: A
Impairment losses BERERK 515,525 431,728
(Reversal)/provisions for (##[E),/ FHRER
guarantee losses HEEHS (110,917) 72,055
Depreciation and amortisation EREIEER 31,563 41,819
Gain on disposal of property, BEEWE  BWE
plant and equipment RS (101) (60)
Interest expenses FEZH 232,293 222,687
Share of profits of associate S H 1D SEFER
H R B W (54) -
Share of losses of joint venture HEEDERER
i EEL 2 =
Equity-settled share-based payment DARERAEE
BV AR 1 < A 81,123 120,871
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss 5 (Wa), 18k (40) 7,416
Changes in working capital: BIBESEE
Decrease in restricted bank deposits FHERREESRD 724,404 168,718
Increase in loans and advances BME R RBFIG N
to customers (1,358,058) (1,602,893)
Increase in trade and other JE U R E b R Lk
receivables FIEE N (1,521,217) (412,225)
Decrease in customer pledged GFARBDIEHD
deposits (8) (51,077)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals FEET R H At FE S 5B
and other payables i, Crd) 208,723 (69,934)
Cash used in operations REFEHMANRE (620,415) (406,375)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 13

All restricted bank deposits represent the deposits at
banks according to the requirements from banks or related
government regulations for the credit guarantees that the
Group provides to third parties for their borrowing from banks.

FFATF R R E S RIBIRT R
HRBRTAE - AR H BT R
BE = R E A R TR RAR
TR -

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 WK H A EWKRFRIE
31 December 31 December
12831H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFor
Trade receivable and receivable for FEURBR R R R MR (B ZR (B
default payments (Note 14(a)) it 14(a) 1,147,815 737,233
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W BERMEMS (A77F14(b)
(Note 14(b)) (652,285) (449,154)
495,530 288,079
Interest receivables FEWFIE 115,936 59,846
Receivables for assets transferring JEUE EEHEEERR 500,000 =
Other prepayments, deposits and HaIBAFE ek
other receivables H th fE W R IE 150,772 56,384
1,262,238 404,309

As at 31 December 2015, except for deposits of RMB30.3
million (2014: RMB18.0 million), all of the remaining trade and
other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense within one year.

R2015F12A31H K& AR E
30.3B & T (R2014F12A8318 A A
R¥18.08&T) o HMFT A EIK
N E b FE W GRIETE TR — F R IR [E 5k,
wRAEM -
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 14 B R HAEWTKIE (&)

(a) Ageing analysis: (a) BRERDAT :
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis REEER - BRBEZRHEN
of trade receivables and receivables for default payments, B 122 AR YE 15 14 9 P UK AR 3k K P LUk
based on the invoice date and net of allowance for REFFERRITIT

doubtful debts, is as follows:

31 December

31 December

12A331H 12H31H

2015 2014

2015% 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fr AREFT

Within 1 year —F AR 516,986 437,078
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —E=_fF 377,627 179,839
Over 2 years but less than 3 years SESEE 158,715 113,251
Over 3 years but less than 4 years =ZF 89,244 7,065
Over 4 years but less than 5 years NERF 5,243 -
1,147,815 737,233

Less: allowance for doubtful debts o EERERE (652,285) (449,154)
495,530 288,079

Receivables that were not impaired relate to a number 51 A BB A FE U FRIE 3 N % (8 #E
of independent customers that have a good track record AEBHEERITLHNBILE
with the Group. Based on past experience, management P REBTLSR BEERE
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary B A Bh 1L 5 45 SR 1E D R E B
in respect of these balances as there has not been a FRAAEREEZTESENES
significant change in credit quality and the balances are mBZEHEB DR IER 2 H K

still considered fully recoverable. [ o

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables:

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and
receivables for default payments are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
and receivables for default payments directly (see Note

10)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, including
both specific and collective loss components, is as
follows:

31 December

14 B RHEMERRE (&)
(b) FEWFRIHRME :

FEUER R R B E R B E R
BEIERAEIERLS  BRIEAE
EREKREEBEAREHEREE
W EZBAT  BEREEBX
165 L 9% 1A P S BR R % B U (R (B A+
Sz sy (R ERAG) i) o

LA T & & E20155F K20144E12
A31H IEF Z I R 5
(BFEER REAIBREM)

31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

2015% 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fr AREFT

At 1 January W1A1H 449,154 288,488
Impairment loss recognised in the RAEFIERRIERA

consolidated statement of BERMBERERK

profit and loss (Note 4) (Kizt4) 376,241 250,308

Disposal during the year FREREE (180,064) =

Write-offs RFEZH (7,526) (89,642)

Recoveries Y @ 2 4% 84 14,480 -

At 31 December W12A31H 652,285 449,154

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s receivables for
default payments of RMB1,143.0 million (2014:
RMB734.5 million) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables were
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB652.3
million (2014: RMB449.2 million) were made at 31
December 2015.

R2015F12A31H A&EEBE A
AR¥1,143.08E 7T (R2014%F
12A31BAARMB734.568ET)
B JE U A E R E B & E AR
B - @R E Y SRIE S & B 7%
RENTFE - MEREBEHFTE
B N TERHE RE UL B & 3015 B FE
WIE - Bk » BEE2015F12 A
31HEH ARMBE52.3HE T
(R2014F12H31H A A R &
449.2F BIT) KIE B AR AR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 15 BHERRER

(a) Analysed by nature (a) TBMUEEDW

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fr ARETFT

Micro-lending NEBEER 5,284,938 3,528,027

Retalil loans AAER 1,515,470 2,385,937

Loans to individual business proprietor fAA LEF &K 669,684 372,066

Gross loans and advances to customers & p & 5 & B R 4458 7,470,092 6,286,030
Less: Allowances for impairment losses & : B 5B L

— Individually assessed ERIEHE (28,005) (48,145)

— Collectively assessed HEsFHR (304,316) (240,710)

Total allowances for impairment losses & 3R R {EXE#E 858 (332,321) (288,855)

Net loans and advances to customers — ZEHE 3k R B F 58 7,137,771 5,997,175

7201512318 » W E &
MBFTREELLBANTE
HHEEEAREAARK1,355.780
27T (R2014F12A31BAAR
#2,101.28 &) (R KMI5E25) °

Loans and advances to customers included loans under
repurchase agreements, amounting to RMB1,355.7
million (2014: RMB2,101.2 million) as at 31 December
2015 (See Note 25).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 15 BHERRBRK (F)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Analysed by industry sector (b) BITEDH
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
2015%12H31H 2014512 A31H
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥FT % ARETFT %
Wholesale and retail HEBEMEEZE 2,839,998 38.02% 2,023,138 32.18%
Manufacturing BUERE 1,290,342 17.27% 922,373 14.67%
Real estate B E 1,128,652 15.11% 711,150 11.31%
Construction =0 834,295 11.17% 1,293,663 20.58%
Leasing and MENEERE
commercial services 336,890 4.51% 173,570 2.76%
Others Hib 1,039,915 13.92% 1,162,136 18.50%
Gross loans and BIRNER KA BEE
advances to customers 7,470,092 100.00% 6,286,030 100.00%
Less: Allowances for B BIREERE
impairment losses (332,321) (288,855)
Net loans and advances BRER N BRAFTFLE
to customers 7,137,771 5,997,175
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Analysed by type of collateral

BIAARETTIIR)

(c) REFRERIN

31 December

15 BRERKRBR (&)

31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFT

Guaranteed loans REE K 3,113,603 3,357,212

Unsecured loans BREREXK 2,174,362 1,076,643

Secured loans HERER 2,182,127 1,852,175

Gross loans and advances to customers ZEHE 3k & B R4 FE 7,470,092 6,286,030
Less: Allowances for impairment losses & : B3k BE 24

— Individually assessed & RIET12 (28,005) (48,145)

— Collectively assessed HERTR (304,316) (240,710)

Total allowances for impairment losses B R (EEF A58 (332,321) (288,855)

Net loans and advances to customers BWNER R BFFEE 7,137,771 5,997,175

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 15 BHERRBRK (F)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Overdue loans analysed by overdue period (d) SEHERNEIIRD W
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Overdue within 3 months (inclusive) #EA3{E A LA (£31E A) 210,271 131,400
Overdue more than 3 months to B HAS{E A £ 618 A
6 months (inclusive) (561 A) 122,521 110,260
Overdue more than 6 months to wEBEAE1F (514
one year (inclusive) 126,813 38,204
Overdue more than one year BEIFLA 62,382 10,827
521,987 290,691
Overdue loans represent loans, of which the whole or EEHEREREBHBHES
part of the principal or interest were overdue for one day g F BB R A LB -
or more.
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P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

15 BRERKRBR (&)

() BHERRBIRIRASMESH
AHER IR

(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances
for impairment losses

At 31 December 2015

#2015%12431A
Loans and Impaired loans and advances
advances EREERRBR
for which for which for which
allowances  allowances  allowances
are are are
collectively  collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
RERHR
HERE HiEE HilfE
EEN ERRASR  ERRER
ERREN R HRAHE it At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
Micro-lending MIBEER 5,198,996 32,500 53,442 85,942 5,284,938
Retail Loans EAER 1,389,423 111,747 14,300 126,047 1,515,470
Loans to individual business proprietors A& IEFEEH 654,176 15,508 - 15,508 669,684
Gross loans and advances to customers B#HERREHHEE 7,242,595 159,755 67,742 227,497 7,470,002
Less: Allowances for impairment Losses 3, : B2 REEE (178,589) (125,727) (28,005) (153,732) (332,321)
Net loans and advances to customers  EHEZRZHEE 7,064,006 34,028 39,737 73,765 7,137,771

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 15 BHERRBRK (F)
(CONTINUED)

(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances (e) BHERRBTIRASFMEE
for impairment losses (continued) FEAFRI RO (&)

At 31 December 2014

R2014412A31A
Loans and Impaired loans and advances
advances BEREERRBR
for which for which for which

allowances allowances allowances

are are are
collectively collectively individually

assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
REEHA

BedE A
RN ORRREA  BRREY
ERRER  BAEE it At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT _ARETE AREFT  ARETT  ARETR

Micro-lending I EER 3,392,450 28,036 107,541 135,577 3,528,027
Retail Loans AAER 2,302,170 70,878 12,889 83,767 2,385,937
Loans to individual business proprietors A& TEF & 363,047 9,019 - 9,019 372,066
Gross loans and advances to customers #MEZT R B ME 6,057,667 107,933 120,430 228,363 6,286,030
Less: Allowances for impairment losses Ji : &t iEE (147,463) (93,247) (48,145) (141,392) (288,855)
Net loans and advances to customers  #EMEZRBZEE 5,910,204 14,686 72,285 86,971 5,997,175
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P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 156 BHERRBR (&

(CONTINUED)
(f Movements of allowances for impairment (f) BHRERRBHBEEEEE
losses
At 31 December 2015
#2015%12431A
Allowances Allowances for impaired
for loans loans and advances
and advances BHEESRBANAEES
which are which are which are
collectively  collectively  collectively
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
RARHR
HERE HEE HifE
EEN  ERRES EHERER
ERREN TR FRAE it Rt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
As at 1 January MA1R 147,463 93,247 48,145 141,392 288,855
Charge for the year (Note 4) REEHR (B7324) 31,126 96,512 11,226 107,738 138,864
Write-offs RERH - (65,753) - (65,753) (65,753)
Disposals RE - - (31,366) (31,366) (31,366)
Recoveries KEBHEERRER = 1,721 = 1,721 1,721
As at 31 December ®12A31H 178,589 125,727 28,005 153,732 332,321
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MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 15 BHERRBRK (F)
(CONTINUED)

() Movements of allowances for impairment () BRERREBRBEEESZE
losses (continued) (%)

At 31 December 2014

R2014512/31A
Allowances Allowances for impaired
for loans loans and advances
and advances EREEFRBTNAEER
which are which are which are
collectively collectively collectively
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total

ZRA T
HER(E HinlfE HinifE
B RREREA  EREER
ERRBH B Tt It At
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETL  ARETX

As at 1 January MA1A 93,931 54,223 49,344 108,567 197,498
Charge for the year (Note 4) RERR (4 53,532 85,748 42,140 127,888 181,420
Write-offs RERHE - (47,285) (43,339) (90,624) (90,624)
Recoveries BEEHEERR BT = 561 S 561 561
As at 31 December M2R318 147,463 93,247 48,145 141,392 288,855
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 15 BHERRBRK (F)

(CONTINUED)
(g) Analysed by credit quality (9) REEEGENSMHIIRAOT
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Gross balance of loans and BMER R4
advances to Customers
Neither past due nor impaired AR R E 6,933,107 5,995,339
Overdue but not impaired 2@ HRRE 309,488 62,328
Impaired ERE 227,497 228,363
7,470,092 6,286,030
Less: allowances for impairment losses &, | ZEWE R R K
Neither past due nor impaired AR EA R R E (149,625) (138,183)
Overdue but not impaired B8 AR E (28,964) (9,280)
Impaired BRE (153,732) (141,392)
(332,321) (288,855)
Net balance HER
Neither past due nor impaired A EAARRE 6,783,482 5,857,156
Overdue but not impaired B A RRE 280,524 53,048
Impaired ERE 73,765 86,971
7,137,771 5,997,175
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

16 AItHESRMEE

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT

Unlisted available-for-sale LA E
equity Instruments ST HE 91,116 11,841
Wealth management products A E M 15,770 146,000
106,886 157,841

The types of structured entities that the Group does not

consolidate but in which it holds an interest include entities

set up for wealth management products issued by banks. The

nature and purpose of these structured entities are to generate

fees from managing assets on behalf of third party investors.

These vehicles are financed through the issue of units to

investors. The variable interest from these structured entities

are not significant thus we do not consolidate these structured

entities. The maximum loss exposure of interests held by the

Group is the same as the carrying amount.

AEBBBERFEREMER N
BHERERYNEBLEIETESR
MR RRITIEMER - ELERBL
TRMOMEEMENTIZRERRESE
MEETRNEEE  HBEHA=2
AREEZRTHBREERNOEE -
AEEEELER(CERMEGA
ORI TEE - A AKEREE
LEBCIRMARNEENS UK
BERNEHEE  AEEESLER
fEEBPNRANBRB O BANEEFR
FANEaNIREEE -
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the information of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015.

17 B A BEINKRE

TREFIAARN2015F12A31 8K
FTEM AR B ER -

Equity interest held by the Group
rEERENREER

Place and date of

Particulars of paid

incorporation/ At 31 December in capital as at

establishment R12A318 31 December 2015 Principal
HM/ R 2015 2014 #2015512A31H activity
AR A 20155 20146 BhERNE TEEH

Chongging Hanhua Assets Chongging  100.00%  100.00% 500,000 Assets
Management Co., Ltd. 29 May 2007 management
(EEBZEZEERERAR) EE2007F5A29R EEER

Chongaing Hanhua Chongaing 86.00% 86.00% 500,000 SME lending
Micro-credit Co., Ltd. 25 September 2008 RN EER
(EEMHE EER EE2008F9A25H
BREARAF)

Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Chengdu 61.43% 61.43% 700,000 SME lending
Co., Ltd. 19 May 2009 PREER
(m)IHE NEERERRA) FX#200965A19R

Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd Chongaing  100.00%  100.00% 3,500,000 Financial guarantee
(BEERRHERAR) 19 August 2009 MBER

EE2009F8A19A

Sichuan Small & Chengdu ~ 100.00%  100.00% 200,000  Assets management
Medium-sized Assets 21 October 2010 BEER
Management Co., Ltd. B #2010610721H
(mRHEEEBER )

Tianjin Hanhua Micro-credit Tianjin -~ 100.00%  100.00% 200,000 SME lending
Co., Ltd. 29 June 2011 hERER
(REBENEEFBERAA) K22011F6729R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17 BB ATNRE (&)

Equity interest held by the Group

AEEREHREER
Place and date of Particulars of paid
incorporation/ At 31 December in capital as at
establishment R12A318 31 December 2015 Principal
B2y ATE 2015 2014 #2015512A31H activity
WERAH  2015%  2014F BhERNEE TERK

Shenyang Financial and Shenyang ~ 100.00%  100.00% 300,000 SME lending
Commercial Development 30 September 2011 RNMREER
District Hanhua Technology EB2011F9A308
Micro-credit Co., Ltd.

(EHeREERER
BEMBNEERERRA)

Beijing Hanhua Credit Beiing  100.00%  100.00% 5,000 Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 15 March 2012 consulting
(ERBEEREEFRAA) 201263150 RE®:

Chongging Huiwei Investment Chongaing  100.00%  100.00% 3,000 Investment
Co., Ltd. 7 January 2013 consulting
(EREWREBRRA) EF2013F1A7H KER:

Beijing Hanhua Internet Beiing  100.00%  100.00% 120,000 Technical
Technology Co., Ltd. 11 October 2013 consulting and
(ERYEREREERAA) JtR2013F10A118 technical service

Bl A R AR

Guiyang Nanming District Guiyang  100.00%  100.00% 100,000 SME lending
Hanhua Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. 10 April 2014 NERE
(EEmERERE  EERERAR) E2014%4 4108

Chongging Changjiang Financial Chongaing 90.00% 90.00% 300,000 Financial
Factoring Co., Ltd. 1 July 2014 Factoring
(BEERISRARBAERLA) BE201457R1R SRRE

Nanning Hanhua Micro-Credit Co., Ltd. Nanning 66.67% 66.67% 100,000 SME Lending
(BEMHE)EEFERAA) 8 December 2011 hEEER

HE2011412A8H
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17 BB ATNRE (&)

Equity interest held by the Group

rEERENREER

Place and date of Particulars of paid

incorporation/ At 31 December in capital as at
establishment R12A31H 31 December 2015 Principal
H5W/ R 2015 2014 #2015512A31H activity
AR A 20155 2014F BhEARNEE TEEH
Hanhua Internet Financing Services Shenzhen  100.00% N/A 60,000 Internet
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2 March 2015 Financing
(WEEBRBERRE ORI ERAF) #1201553 2R L
Beijing Hanhua Management Beiing ~ 100.00% N/A 50,000 Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. 20 July 2015 consulting
(ERBEERRATRAA) It 72015%7 A20R EpER:
Nanjing Hanhua Technology Nanjing 60.00% 60.00% 150,000 SME lending
Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. 29 October 2014 PR EER

(ARmBERBNBERBERAF) B R2014%F10A29H

Hanhua Capital Investment Beijing 65.00% 65.00% 10,000 Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 25 December 2014 consulting
(BEEARBEBERAR) JER2014512 4258 REHA

All of the above subsidiaries are companies with limited liability A _Eal B A el e B a1 i Je 4%

incorporated and operated in the PRC. The English translation ARSI AR - EHEBEARIHEE

of the names of these companies is for reference only. The NEZEHZ2E  EWNBATMNER

official names of these companies are in Chinese. ZTELAR S BYE o

The non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries of the group RNEBFKB AR D ERREEZ B

are set out in Note 33. 5133 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18 ¥%X - BMERRHE

BAARBETITIIR)

Buildings Office and
held for Motor other  Leasehold Construction
own use Vehicles  Equipment improvements  in process Total
BAR  HEWE
BEY  EBRE  HERB 0 REXH  HRIE L
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ANEEFT ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETX
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 A1A 255,146 23,190 30,106 37,923 4,267 350,632
Additions REEm 37,616 4,557 11,632 25818 48,731 128,354
Transfers in/(out) €) /(&) 7,286 - 261 - (7,547) -
Transfers to intangible Assets BRERNEE = = = = (596) (596)
Disposals RE - (1,373) (514) - - (1,887)
At 31 December 2014 and #2014512731R
1 January 2015 R2015E1A1A 300,048 26,374 41,485 63,741 44,855 476,508
Additions REIEN 1,322 2,831 10,101 12,236 50,006 76,496
Transfers in/{out) E) /(&) 45,455 = 2,922 = (48,377) =
Transfers to intangible Assets ERZEVEE - - - - (346) (346)
Disposals RE - (309) (284) - - (587)
At 31 December 2015 1201512318 346,825 28,902 54,204 75,977 46,138 552,066
Accumulated depreciation: RiHAE
At 1 January 2014 R2014E141H (5,356) (10,764) (11,159) (23,205) - (60,478)
Charge for the year REGE (16,618) (4,099) (7,011) (12,806) = (40,534)
Written back on disposals EEAD - 878 371 - - 1,249
At 31 December 2014 and 20145124318
1 January 2015 R20156151H (21,974) (13,985) (17,799) (36,011) - (89,763)
Charge for the year REFHE (4,109) (3,818) (8,209) (14,065) - (30,201)
Written back on disposals REAE - 282 274 - - 556
At 31 December 2015 R2015812A318 (26,083) (17,521) (25,728) (60,076) - (119,408)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2015 #2015512731 7 320,742 11,381 28,496 25,901 46,138 432,658
At 31 December 2014 R20145F12A31H 278,074 12,389 23,692 21,730 44,855 386,740
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets of the Group are software during the years

ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

BIAARETTIIR)

19 B EE

R E 20159 K2014%12A318 Ik
FE NEBNETE B EERBRIET -

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Cost 2%
At the beginning of the year REA] 7,421 5,957
Additions AN 880 1,464
At the end of the year REXR 8,301 7,421
Less: Accumulated amortisation o BeHiEes
At the beginning of the year REF (2,712) (1,427)
Charge for the year REFHE (1,362) (1,285)
At the end of the year RER (4,074) (2,712)
Net book value BREFH
At the end of the year RER 4,227 4,709
At the beginning of the year REHD 4,709 4,530

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

20 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE 20 REIRERE —BE%

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars BRLA

Form of Place of  of issued and Group’s Held
business incorporation paid up effective by the Held by a Principal
Name of associate structure and business capital interest Company  subsidiary activity
BeEbEzR a84E TERED hx  SEERER EfkR AR TEEY
Shandong Financial Assets Incorporated Jinan 200,000 30% 30% = Financial asset
Exchange Co., Ltd. RHBRAR E@  ordinary shares trading services
(LFERBERHPOERAR) LRk THEERSRE

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method

NEBECRESHBRTRAES

in the consolidated financial statements. FERE .
The summarized financial information of the associate is PR ECENEENKE S EEN
disclosed below: ™
2015
20154
RMB’000
ARETT
Gross amount of the associate BECENESEE
Total assets BEMRGT 212,448
Total liabilities BEEF (12,268)
Net assets FEE 200,180
Revenue A 12,910
Post-tax profit or loss FeFE e 180
Reconciled to the Group’s REBEHBE L
interest in the associate REAH xR
Gross amount of net assets of the associate e PERNFEE 200,180
Group’s effective interest REBERFR 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEBERBRLOIGTERFEENTE 60,054
Carrying amount in the consolidated L bENRENREEE
financial statements 60,054
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B & RHE AT » 15

AANRETTTIIR)

21 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE 21 RERERE -G8 b%
Proportion of ownership interest
Particulars BRILA

Form of Place of  of issued and Group’s Held
business incorporation paid up effective by the Held by a Principal
Name of associate structure and business capital interest Company  subsidiary activity
AEL HELE TELEY Rx  SEERER ERKR AEER TEER
Chongging gongkang Incorporated Chongging 20,000 50% - 50% Management
Enterprise Management ROBERAF BE  ordinary shares consulting
(BRARCKXERERAR) TRk EEAH

The above joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

The summarized financial information of the joint venture is

NEBECRESHBRTRAES

EIRE

ARAEEENERMBEERED

disclosed below: TS ¢
2015
20154
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Gross amount of the joint venture EELENESE
Total assets BEBE 20,001
Total liabilities BEAE (5)
Net assets FEE 19,996
Revenue WA -
Post-tax profit or loss FR&FIE, kg (4)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest AEEHAECERERTR
in the joint venture
Gross amount of net assets of the joint venture EEDENFEE 19,996
Group’s effective interest RE B ERFR 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEBEBRL A ENFEENTE 9,998
Carrying amount in the consolidated HEEbENRENEEERE
financial statements 9,998

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

22 GOODWILL

22 HE

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Cost J%:N
At the beginning of the year REH] = -
Additions ZNEE 1 AN 11,190 -
At the end of the year REXR 11,190 =
Accumulated impairment losses: R EERERESX
At the beginning of the year REH] = -
Impairment loss BEREERX = =
At the end of the year RER 11,190 -
Carrying amount BREE
At the end of the year RER 11,190 =
At the beginning of the year REL = =

On 6 February 2015, Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
100% equity interests of Beijing Beiniu Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Beiniu”) from its former shareholders at an aggregate
consideration of RMB1.5 million. Following the completion of
the transaction on 6 February 2015, Beijing Beiniu became a
wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology
Co., Ltd.. The excess of the aggregate consideration over
the net fair value of the Beijing Beiniu’s identifiable net assets
measured as at the acquisition date, amounting to RMB1.47
million was recognized as goodwill by Beijing Hanhua Internet
Technology Co., Ltd..

1R2015F2A6H » BERE (KA 7]
2EMBAR) Bt RBFRRRE
R RS - XEIERAEF100%
HE IHEHEAARBKISEE
7T B2015%F2 A6 HIBIL R B 4K A
IEBHENENEZEMBLAR - E
B R B HRFEEAREE
BREFEEEI14TAE L Bt EE
EREREBRARERAETE -
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P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

22 GOODWILL (#&)

On 31 August 2015, Hanhua Internet Financing Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Hanhua Internet”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 95% equity interests
of Zhongli Insurance Sales Co., Ltd. (“Zhongli Insurance”)
from its former shareholders at an aggregate consideration of
RMB56.5 million. Following the completion of the transaction
on 31 August 2015, the Zhongli Insurance became a 95%
non-wholly owned subsidiary of Hanhua Internet. The excess
of the aggregate consideration over the net fair value of the
Zhongli Insurance’s identifiable net assets measured as at
the acquisition date, amounting to RMB9.72 million was
recognized as goodwill by Hanhua Internet.

The goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing. The
Company makes provision for impairment if necessary. The
recoverable amount of the CGU using cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts approved by management
covering a five-year period. The discount rate used reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

Based on the result of the impairment testing, no impairment
losses on goodwill have been recognised for the year.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE

BIAARETTIIR)

22 EHE (&)

2015F8H31H  MEH M (XA
AIEEMBAT) B FRE R R
EEIREEEHZE  XEPARR
95% | AR #E - HHEE G Bk 48 U BE R R 4R
BB A ARKS6.5H& T ° B2015
F8H31H e FI R K = M EE B B
PeBmIETEAMBRR - B
FARBOAHRBFEEAREER
REFEEIT2EE L ABHELH
BERREE -

BEHREBAT ORERS - R
BERLRER  FRREEHF - A%
BATRERELE T RRAFHWA
AR 2R MBES R R H R R R TR
R EAEB SRR -

ERREARER  AERBRRE
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

23 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE 23 EWREHEENR

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT ARMEFr

Finance lease receivable FE R ERER 85,633 -

Less: unearned finance lease income i : RER AW (15,915) -
Present value of minimum finance =EmMEHREWREE

lease receivable 69,718 -

Less: allowance for impairment Losses & : JGi{E % = -

Net balance pEE= 69,718 -

Finance lease receivable, unearned finance lease income JERmEMER - REREE W ZE

and minimum finance lease receivable analysed by remaining ZEMEHAEWRRERGINHE S
period are listed as follows: T

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
R2015%12f31R 20144128318

Unearned Minimum Uneamed Minimum

Finance lease finance lease finance lease Finance lease finance lease finance lease

receivable income receivable receivable income receivable

GERE FERE

EYREHER  ARRAEUR HEKRE RUREEER  AERBAUG BERTE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000

ABRTR ABRFR ARRTR NERTT NERTTL NEETT

Less than 1 year DM E 19,163 (3,561) 15,602 - - -
1 year o 2 years 15528 17,784 (3,305) 14,479 - - -
2 years to 3 years 2FR3F 17,142 (3,186) 13,956 - - -
3 years to 5 years IEZHE 31,544 (5,868) 25,681 - - -

85,633 (15915) 69,718 - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 24 FHEMER
The interest-bearing borrowings were repayable as follows: STEERREERABRIFTAT
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETT
Within 1 year or on demand EREEN1FUR 219,000 619,367
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F 24 81,000 105,240
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEE5F - 91,000
300,000 815,607
The interest-bearing borrowings were secured as follows: STREEREERAAIFAT :
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETT
Bank loans (Note (i) IRITER (KH220)
— Unsecured — WER 139,000 207,907
— Guaranteed by third parties — F=FER - 115,000
- Secured by properties — RNEE YK IT
of the Group (Note (ii)) (H1a20i) 81,000 91,000
220,000 413,907
Other loans (Note (i) HAuE R (K772i)
- Unsecured — \|IER 80,000 401,700
300,000 815,607
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(0

(i)

(il)

All of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the fulfiiment
of covenants commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the covenants,
the loans would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 35(c). At 31 December 2015, none of covenants relating
to the bank loans had been breached.

The bank loans are secured by the Group’s buildings held for
own use. The aggregate carrying value of the secured properties
amounted to RMB198.0 million (2014: RMB205.0 million) as at
31 December 2015.

Other loans bear interest at a range from 8.5% to 9.0% per
annum, are unsecured and are repayable 26 September 2016.

25 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE
AGREEMENT

24 FTEER (&)

#at -

(0

(i)

(il

PIBREEMNRITERABITRESR
BB OERER - MAKEER
HWE - ERARARERER - K&
EEHEEREOBR - REBEHR
BUERREENESFEHNME
35(c) ° 201565124310 - H|mE
R -

RITERBASBRENER - B
2015%F12A318 « KIFWEH AR
HEAARM198.08 &t (20144
12A31BAARK205.08&T) °

HMWERMNEE RN RNBE5%E
9.0% ' AEERI B HKEEN2016
F9H26HEE -

25 BEHORBEMEE

31 December

31 December

12H31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFT
Benefit rights of loans and BNER KRB R =i
advances to customers 1,388,477 2,182,446

Details of the carrying values of underlying assets of financial

assets under repurchased agreement are set out in Note 15(a).

EHOESCRHEENEBEERTE
EAE N N EREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

26 PROVISIONS FOR GUARANTEE LOSSES 26 EREEEES

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETFT
Provisions for guarantee losses BREEEES
(Note 26(a)) (H15t26(a)) 390,337 501,254
390,337 501,254

(a) Provisions for guarantee losses

(a) EREEERS

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBEFoT

At the beginning of the year F1) 501,254 429,199
Charge for the year NEEHE 328,264 447,221
Transfers out ] (439,181) (375,166)
At the end of the year FR 390,337 501,254

27 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS 27 FARES
FARBEEAEZEFMBNRES -
AMESAR B HERNOERER -
hERSAES  THRERENE
mERERP ©

Customer pledged deposits refer to deposits received from
customers as collateral security of the credit guarantee issued
by the Group. These deposits are interest-free, and will be
returned to customers after the guarantee contracts expire.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

28 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 fEctRHMESRIE
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT

Accrued staff cost A B T % M

— Salaries, wages, bonuses and —I& - 8% 2K

other benefits HAEF 89,824 62,002

Interest payables FERTRIE 82,609 3,297

Other payables (Notes) H b e ZRE (B77L) 1,148,456 43,792

Financial liabilities measured at RBEKNATECRAE

amortised cost 1,320,889 109,091
Business tax and other surcharges JEASH & ZE T N B A B o &

Payable 19,074 12,758
Receipts in advance AR 158,096 154,551
Total EEr 1,498,059 276,400
Notes: Kiat -

()  During the years ended 31 December 2015, RMB 614.2 million of () P20155E  REEGAREEG. 1418
loans and advances were transferred to independent third parties THERERLBINE=H - AR
by the Group. However, the Group still provides guarantee for REBEERZEZRETIRBERAR
the default payments of the principles and interests of the loans WEHNER  ZXHGTHRECREE
and advances transferred. As the transfer did not meet the RIEERGY A EEHRERER
requirement for the derecognition of financial assets, the loans BZEBDEFERAR - WHKREIS
and advances were not derecognised from the consolidated ERRERHMARIIR - WHILE
financial statements and the amount of proceeds received by the AT BEREPERARKS 0008
Group was recorded as other payables. In addition, the related TCA B AT A R #52,8308 7t /9 FI
interest income of RMB 39.0 million and interest expenses of B e

RMB 28.3 million were recognised in the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

28 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 28 FEst R HfbfE(FE (&)

(i) Other payables of the Group at 31 December 2015 (i) F2015F12A31H KAE H E
included interests of limited liability partners of RMB300.0 HEERREAHNEREEA
million in the partnerships which were consolidated by the TEEBEERTEZENERARE
Group. 3BT -

29 DEBTS SECURITIES ISSUED 29 E[NES
31 December 31 December
12831H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥ T AREFT

Fixed rate corporate bonds 202046 A EIHAH

maturing in June 2020 EEFEQRME (i) 1,489,183 =

Fixed rate corporate bonds 2020411 A EIEA
maturing in November 2020 EEFEQRME (ii) 893,060 -
2,382,243 ~
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (f&X Z 2B Fifgsh -

29 DEBTS SECURITIES ISSUED (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(0

(i)

Fixed rate corporate bonds with nominal value RMB1,500 million
and a term of five years were issued on 10 June 2015. The
coupon rate is 6.10% per annum. The Group has an option to
increase the coupon rate for the remaining duration at the end
of the third year. After the Group announce whether to increase
the coupon rate, the Investors have an option to redeem all or
part of the debts held at the nominal amounts.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of corporate bonds
amounted to RMB1,541 million.

Fixed rate corporate bonds with nominal value RMB900 million
and a term of four years were issued on 3 November 2015. The
coupon rate is 5.60% per annum. The Group has an option to
increase the coupon rate for the remaining duration at the end of
the second year. After the Group announce whether to increase
the coupon rate, the Investors have an option to redeem all or
part of the debts held at the nominal amounts.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of corporate bonds
amounted to RMB903 million.

BAARBETITIIR)

29 EfRES (&)

Mzt -

(0

(i)

ANRAER2015F6 A 108 AR T4
% & A R #1,500,000,0007T © & %
HRASFHARE - BEHEEFH
K R6.10%  NEBEBENREBET
BEHNE="FFRLAREHFEES
REREFE - ERAFBEERE L
AEEMEREBEONNEE  RE
EERBEBBENESF 2RI NIL
AERSHEARAF -

R2015512A31H - BEHN AL E
BEBAREISMBET -

ANRAER2015F11 A3E AT
%8 /A A R #900,000,0007T * &% HA
RAIFHDRAE - BEFZEFHE
£5.60% @ NEBEBERNEETFE
HME—_FFEREALBHFEERAR
MEBMHE - FEAARBEEEE LH
EEMEREBENREE  BREE
BRGEFBENESF IR NIEE
BERSHEAAR -

R2015512A31H - EEHN AL E
BEBARBIOIEET °
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION 30 UREREEWRS

Chongging Huitai Company Limited (“Huitai”) was established
as the Group’s vehicle for implementing a share-based
incentive scheme (the “Share Incentive Scheme”) to provide
share incentive to the senior management of the Group. On 20
June 2013 (the “Grant Date”), details of the Share Incentive
Scheme were finalised under which 15 directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company (the “Grantees”)
were granted entitlement to shares of the Company through
their equity interests in Huitai (the “share awards”) at a
discounted price. The share awards would vest in installments
on a monthly basis over the 8-year service period from
1 January 2013 to 31 December 2020. When a Grantee
terminates his/her employment with the Group, any unvested
portion of benefits will be reallocated to the remaining Grantees
in proportion to their then respective interests in Huitai.

Huitai held 7.88% of the equity interests of the Company on
the Grant Date for the purpose of the Share Incentive Scheme
and did not carry out any other business.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows:

EEERKEARAR([E%]) 2
BREARAGIEANNBEERRDAA
WEETERIBERERRO2EART
RARRAEEEREERMREZE
g (TRERBTE)) MEFIKILD
WEZERAR - BB RB 2
f£2013F6 208 ([BRHBIXFAH ) #
EAREIMIGRES EENEE
([HBER]) UITHNEREREZSRN
RELMEAZEREERARRNEKD - B
20131 A1H Z2020%12H31H -
IS4 R B 1E 528 NIk A o BARERR o
WMER B S RBERANEER - %2
BERAREE DB ZRESHRERK
HEHRIZRERNFRLLA=ESR -

EERONOETRH Z2RFAEARA
7.88%H0 B - 2 BB A B BB AT
g BARBRAFRREMEMES -

(@) BFEBWERRREEDUT
3

Number of
Instruments Vesting conditions

ROBE  TREEMS

Awards granted to directors and
SUpervisors:

—on 20 June 2013 193,918,615 Every month from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2020
RTEZREFHNHRMD : #£20134F1 A1 HE2020F12 A31 BN F
720136 A20H 18 7 i B °] 715 4B e A AR 19

Awards granted to employees:

—on 20 June 2013 76,351,233 Every month from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2020
ETEENRG #2013%1 A1BE2020F12 A31 BN E

18 F B 0] S AE R Y AR (D

Total share awards granted
R TR B 270,269,848

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(CONTINUED)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

(c)

prices of share awards are as follows:

30 UEREENROMN (AF)

(b) REBBNVBEN FIITEN

T :

Year ended 31 December 2015

BZE2015F12831BLLEE

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price shares
FI9THEE RoEE

RMB

AR
Outstanding at the beginning of the year FEHEITEIN 0.42 270,269,848
Granted during the year RERT = -
Exercised during the year REFETTHE = -
Outstanding at the end of the year FREEITEI 0.42 270,269,848
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAJITHE 0.42 101,351,193

Fair value of share awards and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
awards granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share awards granted. The Company accounts
for the Share Incentives Scheme on the basis of the
pool of shares granted rather than treating the individual
Grantee as the unit of account. The fair value of the total
pool of shares is measured at the Grant Date with the
non-vesting condition effectively ignored for valuation
purposes. Subsequent forfeitures and reallocations would
have no effect on the accounting treatment and the
measurement of share awards granted to management.
The estimate of the fair value of the share awards granted
is measured based on a Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
Pricing model. The contractual life of the share awards is
used as an input into this model.

(c)

RODAEN D R EERER

AR B AR AR £ HA 2 T 2 ER A
RN AREBELERTERS
HENDABERETE - XA F]
YRS R T B ETTE T IR
- 2 R AR R A R ET 2
i 1 2 A B8 98 BB 5 ) B 1T
SHRE - REMBEILOH D
REBEERTHEFE  BEETT
BEMERTZEBITEGE - &
THEELNEMB S R
AEER ZABHRRER
DR B 1R ARE G B H eR SR ¥
KERBESFTNFREOIEH D
e ZEMODEHGARIERE
TE - ROBAENRIREBERER
Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
RAVETTEET - RO AN S R
FRIEQUERN —IAZH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX = S EFT1E4IN

F BUARETTHIR)

30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION 30 URSREENWRG T (F)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value of share awards and assumptions (c) BRNHENLAOAEBERBR
(continued) (%)
Share awards
granted on
Fair value of share awards and assumptions 20 June 2013
R2013F6H20H
BROEAEAAREERRR &=FH R 5 HiE
Fair value at measurement date (RMB) RETEHHNAAEE (AR 1.77
Share price (RMB) RITIRE (ARH) 2.26
Exercise price (RMB) THEER (ARE) 0.53
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted — JR{ETE T &)=
average volatility used in the modelling (LACox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
under Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial RAY T8 A INAE R IR R )
Pricing model) 64.3%
Option life (expressed as weighted average Ei#E YA SUEA
life used in the modelling under Cox-Ross-  (LACox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
Rubinstein Binomial Pricing model) R B B 38 FA 0 I 25 R B R) 7.53 years
Expected dividend yield TEET A% H 1.3%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange @ AR (RIFINEE S ZE)
Fund Notes) 1.45%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share awards), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share awards were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share awards grants.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE
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T (AtEFArEa R B
MRS BERER)  ERARH
AEROE R REEFTRE =
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 HREHMBRRRWAE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements in current taxation in the consolidated (a) BNEARERESHHMERRERN
statement of financial position are as follows: #EWMT

31 December 31 December

12831H 12H31H

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFT

Balance of income tax payable at FYERZ TSR eREE

the beginning of the year 148,213 140,861
Provision for income tax on the F ARG ENT TS

estimated taxable profit for the =HEH

year (Note 6(a)) FiSHE A (K1716(a) 168,188 227,310
Income tax paid during the year RE B BMFTER (172,789) (219,958)
Balance of income tax payable FRERZTIEM &R

at the end of the year 143,612 148,213
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

BIAARETTIIR)

31 HREHMBRRRVAEH
(%)

(b) CERBELEFESHEERARS :

AEBRE GBI AN R ER
BIEFSHEE (BFE) HER

position and the movements during the year are as FEZEHOT
follows:
Deferred tax assets Deferred tax Liabilities
BEfEREER BEfERER
Fair value Fair value
adjustments adjustments
Provisions on on
Provisions for  available- available-
for guarantee for-sale for-sale
impairment Accrued  losses and financial financial
losses staff cost ~accruals assets Total assets Total Net
AUB  UfHE qftHE
BENE Eff EfERESR  SREEN SRHEEN
Deferred tax arising from; BARE  RIEM  BMER OAEESE fi DAEEES &t FE
RMB'000  AMBO00  RMB'000  RMB000  AMB000  RMBOO0  AMB'000  RMB000
ANEEFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFr  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
At 1 January 2014 81,873 11,357 152,88 102 245,620 - - 245,620
Recognised to the consolidated statement ~ RAGHERX R (H/:264)
of profit or loss (Note 6(a)) 78,346 355 (8,487) - 70214 - - 70214
Charged to reserves (Note 10(a) SHARES (HE108) - - - (37 (37 - - (37
At 31 December 2014 and Ro014612A318 Rk
1 January 2015 015128318 160,219 1,712 143,801 65 315,797 - - 315,797
Recognised to the consolidated statement  INABHERRER (Hi6)
of profit or loss (Note 6() 84,309 (11,708) (38,595) - 34,006 - - 34,006
Charged to reserves (Note 10(a) HALES (1) - - - (65) (65) (131) (131) (196)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31A 244,528 4 105,206 - 349,738 (131) (131) 349,607

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
1(0), the Group and the Company have not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of RMB635.1 million (2014: RMB373.7 million) at 31
December 2015, as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses will expire in five years since initial occurrence
under current tax legislation.

31 HREHMBIRRROAEH
(&)

(c)

RERNELERSHEE

BEEHRH F10)N ST EBE
RARAR AT KA 7L Al 78 B &Y
R ES ] AREINE BEELY
REREBFE  WAEBRARQ
A) I #& $£2015F12H31H M &
FrAEMEE A ARKGE35.18
BT (20145F12A31 B BARKE
73.7EE L) MARLEMENE
ZE o RBBRTHE - ATEINER
BEEFERAYNEDTBIBSF
B B AR PR FER FR o
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32 EX - RERRE

(a) Movement in components of equity (a) EXEEHEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing of AEBEYREFASHEA HEA
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is A EER B A B B A
set out in the consolidated statements of changes in - F

equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual EER ARABIME
au. 9 pany 4 1) 25 4 R A B B LS 45 1

components of equity between the beginning and the end

of the year are set out below: DS
The Company A
Share Share Capital Surplus General  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
-
Bx RHEE -USN BRLE BRERE  ABEER CHl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETX
Note 32(c) ~ Note 32(a)f) ~ Note 32(a)(ii) ~ Note 32(a)ii) ~ Note 32(a)(iv)
fidsze) MRS WEsem  WEse)  WEsm)
Balance at 1 January 2014 01451 B1BMEE 3,430,000 822,962 144,202 - - (168,959) 4,228,205
Changes in equity for 2014: 14 ERES
Loss for the year and total FEERGAYREE
comprehensive income - - - - - (115,169) (115,169)
Issuance of new shares Kt 1,170,000 268,593 1,438,503
Equity-settled share-based WEREENRAZN
payment = = 120,871 = = = 120,871
Balance at 31 December 2014 20145127317
and 1 January 2015; R20155151R
MEE 4,600,000 1,091,555 265,073 - = (284,128) 5,672,500
Changes in equity for 2015: 015 ERET
Profit for the year and ek ahneE
total comprehensive income - - - - - 683,041 683,041
Appropriation to surplus reserve RRARDLE - - - 53,303 - (53,303) -
Equity-settled share-based NEREBHRAZH
payment - - 81,123 - - - 81,128
Cash dividends paid to the equity EING S Tapd
shareholders of the Company BekE - - - - - (460,000) (460,000)
Balance at 31 December 2015 15F12A3AMEE 4,600,000 1,091,555 346,196 53,303 - (114,390) 5,976,664

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE



32 CAPITAL,

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o EHZE2015%412A31 B ILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (& X =

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Dividends

(c)

In accordance with the resolution of the Company’s board
of directors meeting on 28 March 2016, the proposed
dividends appropriations for the year ended 31 December
2015 are as follows:

- Declare cash dividends to all shareholders of
RMB230.0 million representing RMB0.50 per 10
shares before tax.

The profit appropriation resolution mentioned above has
yet to be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

In accordance with the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting held on 27 May 2015, the dividends
appropriations for the year ended 31 December 2014
are as follows:

- Declare cash dividends to all shareholders of
RMB460.0 million representing RMB1.00 per 10
shares before tax.

Share capital

The share capital were issued and fully paid.

A FES -

BAARBETITIIR)

32 BEX - RERKRE (&)

(c)

MR2016F3 A28H M E
Bl AAF2015
$J#H§7’M%@E7§xzzu? ;

- MEEREIKERSKA -
F10/0REE AR E0.507T (i
Al) - HEFAREE2.3ETT ©

LAt FE s
PRER AL

[ ESOEN RN

KRR N BIR20155E5 27 H Y A%
RASEZEB  NARI2014F
ERF DB RN

— [AEERFEKZERSRKF -
F10/ & 3 A R ¥1.0070
(B AN - L5 AR 461

T e
LN

BRABEHEITMEE
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

32 CAPITAL,

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the Company
and capital proceeds received from the issuance of
the shares of the Company.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly comprises the following:

— the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets held at the
end of the year ended 31 December 2015 and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in Note 1(j)(i);

— the portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Company that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in Note 1(n).

Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve represents statutory surplus
reserve fund. The Company is required to appropriate
10% of its net profit as determined under the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and
other relevant requirements issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC after making good prior year’s
accumulated loss, to the statutory surplus reserve
fund until the reserve fund balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE

BIAARETTIIR)

32 BEX - RERKRE (&)

(d) FEEEREDR

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

vy ]

Beinim B AR RBRPEE
B EITARR ARG TSR
ZEHER °

—  REREHRAR R A
HESHEENRA(E
ENRFHFEE  AE
RIS E
AR BRI

- EREMFEINAER
REE B IR SN T ER 4
VAR R (A A
NEMR B R M H R(ERE
R E L BHNAR
BE=D -

BRRAKR

BRABEAEAB AR
T o NEMARTFER R
ERIR - ARRIARESE
F B ER R M Y R R & FT A
REAHEBRRE - H10%
MFAEERERTERHBA
BE HERBIERH
BEBIHEMEARS0% °
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) General reserve

Pursuant to relevant regulations, the Company
and its subsidiaries engaged in credit guarantee
business are required to set aside a general reserve
through appropriations of profit after tax according
to 10% of its profit after tax as determined under the
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprise and
other relevant requirements issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC after making good prior year’s
accumulated loss to cover potential losses against
their assets.

While subsidiaries engaged in SME lending business
are required to set aside a general reserve through
appropriations of profit after tax according to a
certain provision ratio of the ending balance of gross
risk-bearing assets to cover potential losses against
their assets. In principal, the general reserve balance
should not be lower than 1.5% of the ending balance
of gross risk-bearing assets.

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurate with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

32 BEX - RERKRE (&)

(d) REEERBEN (&)
(iv) —REREH

RIFMEBMRE - KRB RE
EEREREBOHNBA
Al MBI F R F R BUE &
—RERER - SRS
PARTF E R BRI AFH
TIE10% (HR 1% A B 81 BEE R
X et R REMmE
BAME) - AT EEER B
HIRHEIR -

M =R NEEEREBEH
I A RBUEHR R A BT R
BRER—RERER  ©8
REREERBEHRRGEHI
ETEHODH  UBMEEE
AIREHBRMER - RAILE
—REREBERITEIRN
[\ B & EE 4B RA B R S BR Y
1.5% °

(e) EXRERE

AEBEARERELHEERD
RRMEAE B WRESEE R
AREE  ETEBRARKT
MR R R RS B RIS
ABRAMBARERHERSE
A/ BRBEERR BRMFEH
E TS -
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32 CAPITAL,
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
equity holder/shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.

Particularly for guarantee and credit loan operation,
the Group monitors regularly the residual balance of
outstanding guarantees or/and credit loans for single
customers and multiples of the total outstanding
guarantees or/and credit loans in relation to paid-in/share
capital of companies in the Group engaging guarantee
or/and credit loan business respectively, so as to keep
the capital risk within an acceptable limit. The decision
to manage the share capital of companies in the Group
to meet the needs of developing guarantee or/and credit
loans business rests with the directors.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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32 BEX - RERKRE (&)

(e)

BEXEE (&)

AEEEGMTERBESRALEEE
BEARRE  DEREBRESAA
/IRERERIER T A B BRI B
SEEKF - ARRIFEE AR
U SR EY 4 bR R AR RE 2 R BUAS F
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BARZRE -

REZE2015F K2014F12 A 31
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

33

FEEEBIMERE S

31 December 31 December

12A31H 128311
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARMEFr
Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. FO)I| %/ |\ EaE R AR A 7 306,955 308,509
Xi’an Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. ALmBENBEEFERAT 150,942 152,587
Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit EEMHENEEREAR

Co., Ltd. EERAT 91,991 89,002
Others EHAh 109,223 160,409
659,111 710,507

SEGMENT REPORTING 34 DEHE

The Group manages its business by business lines. Consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
defines reporting segments based on the following operating
segments:

Guarantee and Entrusted loan business

This segment represents the provision of a range of guarantee
and related consulting services to customers and the provision
of a range of entrusted loan and services to the small and
medium sized enterprises. These guarantee services include
financial guarantee, performance guarantee and litigation
guarantee. The consulting services include debt financing,
internal control and risk management related consulting
services to the guarantee and entrusted loan customers.

AEERBEGIRRETEREE - K
SENEED BELERNBRAEE—
HH TR - ELARRA(E SRR
HEAEEERE UMD B HEEIRIL
AHEDRFRE  AREAKEDEAE
B HEET THREDE

ERREXENRER

ZNEAE PR — RIIM R &E
A o5 s AR 15 R (A P /e AR — R T
MEREERERY - BRRBEER
BHRER  BOBRREFRER - B H
REBEREHTERTEP RZEERK
EFMEHRE - REfEH REARE
AR AR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E L R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 34 DERE (&)
SME lending

& b/ MR R S (TR ) 3

This segment represents the provision of a range of loan

and services to the small sized and micro enterprises (“SME NP ENES ARBEER BB+
enterprises”) or the owners of SME enterprises. AR o
Factoring business REBHEK

This segment represents the provision of a range of financing ZoEEBBAXERE AMEERIE
services to the small and medium sized enterprises by MARMFBNEERE RIS R
receiving the account receivables transferred from the lenders AR5 o

as collaterals.

Internet Financing business EEESRETS

&0 ERE /N EMEARE —FS

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial

286

intermediary services and assets information services to small
and medium sized enterprises and individual in the internet
platforms.

Others
This segment represents the aggregation of other non-

significant business lines and the operational results of the
headquarters.
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BESEROGARAE

EMETeeRTITREREERER

AR

Hth k%

ZDEBREARBEMIFERETRL

R -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax assets.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities managed directly
by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Internal charges and transfer prices are determined with
reference to market rates and have been reflected in the
performance of each segment.

Changes in disclosure of segment results and assets and
liabilities in the current year:

The Group has further strengthened the assessment
and management on business segments and optimized
the resource allocation at Group level during the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Group has reorganized
the entrusted loan business from SME lending segment
to guarantee and entrusted loan business segment.
In addition, the Group has added two new business
segments-Factoring business and Internet Financing
business and disclosed these business segments in
the segments report. Compared to the prior years,
the current segment structure better reflects current
management model of the Group. The comparative
figures for the ended 31 December 2014 have been
restated accordingly.

34 DE®E (A)

(a)

DERFE  BEERER

RTTEZESHNEERME
REER FAEEEBEEST
NEHNBBENZTHIERE BE
REfE  EEEENREERN
-

DHMEEBRRRBERN D MOMAE
BWEE BREEMARBE
E EBIERETMSEREE -
DHBEBREMEREDER
SEMBE -

mR

DHEERRER S @O MELE
MR HIBRESES FEENE
B RERESBNEERLN
WEMEELEMERAFE

AN BEEZZFDHE

DEZ BRI AR ENERTEE
B2RMIGHRERE - WO R
EZDEHRIRAF o

HAEHHER  AENAER
RES TIETR

REBEARE - NARTRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o & Z2015F12 831 B IFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 34 DERE (&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) 2B - EERESE (F)
HEEBRFEFRPEERRTES
BEE RETASEEEEDW
DEBREHTIAT

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the year is set
out below:

Year ended 31 December 2015

BZ015512A ALEE

Guarantee and Internet

Entrusted Loan Factoring Financing
Business  SME Lending Business Business Others Total

ERR MitE EBA
ZRERER ERER RELE SHER Rt it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR  ARETL  ARETL  AREFL ARETT  AREFZ

Net quarantee and consufting ~~ ERRAEFUA

fee income 764,990 - 48 - - 765,038
Net interest and handiing FERFEEZUA /(TH)

fee income/(expense) 374,056 605,615 44,990 6,704 (44,419) 986,946
Reportable segment income/ ~~ AEMA /(1)

(expense) 1,139,046 605,615 45,038 6,704 (44,419) 1,751,984
Other net income EMARE 22,386 3,027 - 5,034 1,017 32,364
Reversal for quarantee losses ~ EREREEEES 110,917 = = = = 110,917
Impaiment losses BERERX (431,754) (79,702) (4,069) = = (615,525)
Operating expenses and BEBERERNE /BR

exchange gain/losses (436,663) (194,343) (19,597) (18,561) (229,229) (893,398)
Reportabl segment profit/ ABBEFE/ (BR)

(losses) before taxation 403,932 334,597 21,3712 (923) (272,631) 486,347

At 31 December 2015
R2015512A31R

Guarantee and Internet

Entrusted Loan Factoring Financing
Business  SME Lending Business Business Others Total

ERR MitE BB
ZRERER ERER RELE SHER HthEH &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFE  ARETL  ARETL  AREFL  ARETT  AREFZ
Segment assets NHEE 7,749,560 5,000,749 386,792 195,434 278,906 13,611,441
Segment liabilties AHER 2,813,900 1,199,430 65,145 12035 2,425,081 6,515,591
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 34 pHW/mE (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) 2B - BEEREE (£)
Year ended 31 December 2014
BIE2014F12 A ALFE

Guarantee and Internet

Entrusted Loan Factoring Financing
Business  SME Lending Business Business Others Total

BRR Mir% &
EHERER ERER REXH SREH Rt ait

RVBOOO ~ AMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMBOOO  AMBOO0  RMB'000
ARRTT  ARETL  ARRTT  ARRTT  ARRTT  ARRTT

Net guarantes and consulting ~ ERRFAAEZMA

fee income 958,277 - - - - 968,277
Net interest and handling HERFEEIHA

fee income 362,969 675,932 3,564 26 - 1,042,481
Reportable segmentincome ~~~ AHHUWA 1,321,246 675,932 3,554 2% = 2,000,758
Other net income/oss) Rtk /(B%) 38 25,434 3,120 - - (2,429) 26,132
Provisions for guarantee losses  sHEIEREREEES (72,055) - - - - (72,055)
Impaiment losses EERERR (302,966) (126,425) (2,387) - - (431,728)
Operating expenses and BEERRE NG /Bl

exchange gain/losses (505,713) (178,917) 4,613 (329) (169,015) (858,587)

Reportable segment profit/ ARERE/(BR)
loss) before tavation 465,946 373,710 13.39) B0y (71431 66450

At 31 December 2014

Ro014512A318
Guarantee and Internet
Entrusted Loan Factoring Financing
Business  SME Lending Business Business Others Total
#RR MaR%E BRE
RREHER EREH REZEH SRXH EfoxH ait

RVBOOO ~ AMBOO0  AMB'OO0  RMBOOO  AMBO00  RMB'000
ARRTT  ARRTL  ARRTT  ARRTT  ARETT  ARRTT

Segment assets PHEE 6,379,394 4,785,742 309,839 63,321 84,209 11,622,555
Segment liabilities AR 2,847,622 1,481,392 87 4,015 28,131 4,361,931
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

34 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 34 DERE (&)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment assets (b) DEEEMNRAE
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETT

Assets BE

Reportable segment assets DEpEE 13,611,441 11,622,555
Deferred tax assets RIEFFISHEE 349,607 315,797
Consolidated total assets BEAG 13,961,048 11,938,352

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 MBEBREEREMIANLD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE

Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risks arises in the AEBNAERERBETEHRER

normal course of the Group’s business. F= R eyt Rk o

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk AEEE ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁfbghbﬂ R EBER R

management policies and practice used by the Group to BRANEHERIRE - EETSB R

manage these risks are described below. $%lﬁ«<%/§§ﬁfﬂﬁﬂ %o

(a) Credit risk (a) EARR
Credit risk arises from a customer’s inability or ERR K B A% B ATIRHEER
unwillingness to meet its financial obligations to make IREERNELENITRERE
timely payments under loans the Group guaranteed or TEFBEE - AEEMERR
provided. Credit risk is primarily attributable to unexpired REEREAEBEBELHER -
guarantee issued by the Group and the loan business of B HUE 30 R B FORN JE U % HAth e
the Group, loans and advances to customers and trade WK o

and other receivables.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the net carrying amount of each type of financial assets
as at the end of the year ended 31 December 2015.
Except for the guarantee as disclosed below, the Group
has no credit risk arising from any other guarantee.

Credit risk arising from guarantee business

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from guarantee business. The Group manages
credit risk at every stage of the risk management system,
including pre-approval, review and credit approval and
post-transaction monitoring processes. The Group
conducts customer acceptance and due diligence by
business department and risk management department
during the pre-approval process. A transaction may be
subject to the review and approval of credit approval
officer, regional risk committee, deputy chairman and
chairman depending on the transaction size.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post-
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects, including
but not limited to customers’ product markets, operating
income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from operating
activities to detect potential risks. The Group takes
proactive preventive actions based on the risk analysis
and design contingency plans accordingly.

35 PHEAREEREMTAND
REE (&)

(a)

ERER (&)

FRE S R AERRARERRE
HREREREENFREME -
B TP B RO R RSN - AR HE
B E L E A RR A EAME
& o

EREBELENERARR

AEE DRI BRI ERER
EENERER - AEEEBR
REERGEESERBRNER
Rk BEERELS BE 5
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 FEEREEREMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EREB (&)
Credit risk arising from guarantee business EREEEENEARR (&)
(continued)
When a certain number of clients undertake the same BEETEHENTPETHRBMNZE
business activities, stay in the same geographical HES - ERHERAMIEL E
locations, or bear similar economic features for their HTEEBMRURLCBEEFYE - f
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected IR B Ko BE 11 6 2 Bl B — 48 2
by the same economic changes. Concentration of credit bW E - EREARNEFIEE
risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results RETAEEESEHE —RFET
to specific industries or geographical locations. As the FoMBUENGREE - AR
Group mainly operates its businesses in the PRC, there REBFERPBLEER  H
exists a certain level of geographical concentration risk BEREBEREERALEE—TFEHN
for its guarantee and loan portfolios in that it might be HIBE R R - I AT B E A B A
affected by changes in the PRC economic conditions. BERANEMZRTE -
The guarantees issued and outstanding are analysed by ERBBREBESNOT

type as follows:

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFr

Bank financing guarantees RITRE IR 9,674,723 14,561,417
Bonds financing guarantees ETE RN B R 5,065,000 1,379,700
Other non-bank financing guarantees ~ H i 3ERT1TRLE IR 2,044,263 2,176,156
Financing guarantees BhE PR 16,783,986 18,117,273
Performance guarantees J@%’Jﬁi‘ﬁ 8,585,382 4,684,635
Litigation guarantees SREAER 613,391 764,599
Maximum amount guarantee EIRREE 25,982,759 23,566,507
Less: customer pledged deposits B EARE R (27,097) (27,105)
Net guarantee exposure FERE R 25,955,662 23,539,402
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F12 831 H IFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BIEEREERERMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) ERE (&)
Credit risk arising from guarantee business EREEEENEARR (&)
(continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of A2015%F K2014F 12 A31 8%
guarantees by industry at 31 December 2015 and 2014 TEEDNERMEAENRKE
is as follows: ARkEaT :
At December 2015 At December 2014
20155128311 R2014512A31H
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR T % ARKFT %
Funds performance guarantee  {RAES (R 7,375,673 28.39% 4,586,690 19.46%
Construction s 7,179,419 27.63% 4,936,332 20.95%
Commercial services mE 3,637,765 14.00% 4,917,688 20.87%
Manufacturing and Processing &% 3,446,440 13.26% 5,112,530 21.69%
Household Goods wE 2,007,943 7.73% 2,188,058 9.28%
Public management and NFEIRE
social organization e AL 839,700 3.23% 18,000 0.08%
Service industry G ES 601,150 2.31% 486,054 2.06%
Agriculture B¥ 296,848 1.14% 240,683 1.02%
Energy EE 171,399 0.66% 305,200 1.30%
Telecommunications, computer 12 BIR T RIS &
services and software 152,190 0.59% 212,341 0.90%
Agricultural processing Industry  REMINT 53,750 0.21% 264,300 1.12%
Others Eity 220,482 0.85% 298,631 1.27%
Subtotal of guarantee ARG 25,982,759 100.00% 23,566,507 100.00%
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk arising from micro-lending business

The Group adopts the same pre-approval, review and
credit approval risk management system for credit risk
arising from micro-lending business. During the post-
transaction monitoring process, the Group conducts a
visit of customers within one month after disbursement
of loans, and conducts on-site inspection on a semi-
annual basis. The review focuses on the use of loans,
the financial and operational conditions of the borrowers
or the progress of projects and status of the collateral.

The Group adopts a loan risk classification approach
to manage its loan portfolio risk. Loans are generally
classified as normal, special mention, substandard,
doubtful and loss according to their levels of risk.
Substandard, doubtful and loss loans are considered to
be impaired loans and advances. They are classified as
such when one or more events demonstrate that there is
objective evidence of a loss event. The impairment loss is
assessed collectively or individually as appropriate.

The core definitions of the five categories of loans and
advances are set out below:

Normal: Borrowers can honour the terms of
their loans. There is no reason to
doubt their ability to repay principal
and interest in full on a timely basis.

Special Mention: Borrowers are currently able to service
their loans and interest, although
repayment may be adversely affected
by specific factors.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B 5 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business
(continued)

Substandard: Borrowers’ ability to service their
loans is in question and they cannot
rely entirely on normal business
revenues to repay principal and
interest. Losses may ensue even
when collateral or guarantees are
invoked.

Doubtful: Borrowers cannot repay principal and
interest in full and significant losses
will need to be recognised even when
collateral or guarantees are invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot
be recovered or only a small portion
of them can be recovered after taking
all possible measures or resorting to
all necessary legal procedures.

The Group has established relevant mechanisms to
apply tiered management of credit risks, and set limits
to acceptable risks for different individual or group
counterparties, different industries and geographical
regions. The Group monitors the risk status of these
customers regularly and reviews their risk positions at
least on a quarterly basis.

In accordance with accounting policies and regulations,
if there is objective evidence that indicates the cash flow
for a particular loan is expected to decrease, and the
amount can be estimated, the loan is recorded as an
impaired loan and the impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

HHEEREERETSBMIANA
REE (&)

(@) ERE (&)

EREBNEARR (&)
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B 5 ¥ 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (kX =R EFTFEIN -

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business
(continued)

The Group’s policy requires regular review of the quality
of individually significant financial assets. For assets
for which an allowance for impairment loss is provided
individually, the amount is determined by an evaluation
of the incurred loss at reporting date on a case-by-case
basis. In making such assessments, the Group considers
the value of collateral held and expected future cash flows
from the asset.

Impairment allowances are provided for the following
portfolios according to historical data, experience and
statistical techniques: (i) those consisting of homogeneous
assets that are individually below materiality thresholds;
and (ii) those where losses that have been incurred but
have not yet been individually identified with any specific
asset within the portfolio.

Other credit risks

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluation focus on
the customer ‘s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and advances
to customers and trade and other receivables are set out
in Note 15 and Note 14, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of credit
guarantee, lending and related consulting services to
SME enterprises in the PRC. Its interest rate risk arises
primarily from deposits with banks, loans and advances
to customers and interest-bearing borrowings.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following tables details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s and the Company’s assets and liabilities

MHREREERETBMIANA
REE (&)

(b) FIEEE

AEETFERTEREREEN
ER - DBEERRIEHAEER
R - ARBEHMERRERR
BRITHER - BRERRBREK
FTBMER -

() F=REEER

AEBEARRANEREE
K B BB F = & B 8O 40

as at the end of the year: N
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Fixed interest rate (& 7 Fi| 2

Financial assets CRVEE
— Cash and cash equivalents -E¥ES 730,293 =
- Restricted bank deposits - GFLERRES 1,184,006 1,756,346
- Loans and advances to customers —BRERRET 7,137,771 5,997,175
- Receivable for factoring business — YRR 217,953 -
- Finance lease receivable — YR ERER 69,718 -
9,339,741 7,753,521

Financial liabilities eRAE
— Interest-bearing borrowings — i BER (200,000) (685,367)

- Financial assets sold under - BEHmEE

repurchase agreement TREE (1,388,477) (2,182,446)
- Debts securities issued - ERESR (2,382,243) -
— Other payables — H bR RIE (814,180) -
(4,784,900) (2,867,813)
Net FE 4,554,841 4,885,708
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 e EZ2015F12 A31HIFFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FRX & RE TSN - HUAARET TIR)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

BHEREERESHMIANA
RERE (&)

(b) FIEmEEE (&)

(i) Interest rate profile (continued) (i) F=EEBOR (&)
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT AR FT
Variable interest rate EE S
Financial assets SREE
- Cash and cash equivalents -gkEe 2,073,481 2,531,049
— Restricted bank deposits - FHERRES 216,055 368,119
2,289,536 2,899,168
Financial liabilities EHARE
- Interest-bearing borrowings - FEER (100,000) (130,240)
Net EE 2,189,536 2,768,928
Fixed rate financial liabilities as a EEMEemAaEnE
percentage of total financial Liabilities SRAENESL 97.95% 95.66%
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDH

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased
the Group’s profit before taxation for the next 12
months by approximately RMB10.9 million (2014
RMB13.8 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period.

298 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRLE

M2015F12A8318 » EEAM
BETENBELT  BEF
= IZ50MEEE - KEeEE
AREBRARKRI21E B B F Al
FEEEAHARE10.98
&7t (R2014F128318 4
AREEA138FHETT) ©

ERSBREDNII AR E
BN E RS A R FEH
REMETAMEENRS
AR R o



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 o #Z2015F 12 A31H I FE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X E R A FTiEs - HAARET THIR)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk

Management regularly monitors the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following tables provide an analysis of financial assets
and liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining periods to repayment at the end
of the year:

35
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

BIAARETTIIR)

35 MBEAREEREMIANAD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEMERK (&)
At 31 December 2015
20155128318
Between
three Between
Within months one More
Repayable three and one year and than five
Indefinite  on demand months year five years years Total
EREY EREE =Rk ZERE-% -E£ZIf RENE &3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETL AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFZ
Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents £%%44 - 1,920,522 248,019 635,344 - - 2,803,885
Restricted bank deposits 7L ERFES - 216,055 286,013 895,280 2,713 - 1,400,061
Trade and other receivables JEU 2 KA e Ui zhIE - 503,018 656,666 63,647 30,270 - 1,253,601
Receivables for factoring ~ JEURRIEZUE
business - - 79,217 138,736 - - 217,953
Loans and advancesto  EMET RSN
customers 286,947 41,352 1,903,432 4,486,132 419,908 - 1,181,mM
Available-for-sale financial ~ [t HESREE
assets 91,116 15,770 - - - - 106,886
Finance lease receivables  JEWEIATRE S - - 4,421 11,181 54,116 - 69,718
Total ) 378,063 2,696,717 3,177,768 6,230,320 507,007 - 12,989,875
Financial liabilities tHERE
Customer pledged deposits FAFES - 11,614 5,449 7,412 2,622 - 27,097
Interest-bearing borrowings it 8 & - - 49,000 170,000 81,000 - 300,000
Financial assets sold under ELEESEAE
repurchase agreement - - 189,392 839,085 360,000 - 1,388,477
Debts securities issued EfES - - - - 2,382,243 - 2,382,243
Accruals and other payables [E: % Z i 1208 - - 664,789 421,200 34,900 200,000 1,320,889
Total &% - 11,614 908,630 1,437,697 2,860,765 200,000 5,418,706
Net BE 378,063 2,685,103 2,269,138 4,792,628  (2,353,758)  (200,000) 7,571,169
Guarantee issued RENBEER
Maximum amount ERtReE
guaranteed” - 93,701 2,264,859 14,026,362 5,674,010 3,896,730 25,955,662

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BIEEREERERMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) "EMRAK (&)
At 31 December 2014
#2014512/31H
Between
three Between
Within months one More
Repayable three and one year and than five
Indefinite  on demand months year five years years Total
BB  EREE  CHEAMN Z@ARE-§ -£ERf  nENE ait

RVB000  RMB'000  AMB'000  AMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  AMB'000  RMB000
NERTT  ARRTL  ARRTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT

Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents £%Z€4 - 2,144,855 386,257 - - - 2,531,112
Restricted bank deposits ~ FHERFES = 368,119 524,685 1,231,511 150 - 2,124,465
Trade and other receivables TEW R E BN ZUE - 299,047 67,930 12,390 18,042 - 397,409
Loansand advancesto ~ EMERRBH

customers 75,593 29,997 2,187,644 3,565,335 138,606 - 5997175
Available-for-sale financial ~ A/t HESHEE

assets 11,841 95,000 30,000 21,000 - - 157,841
Total &it 87,434 2,937,018 3,196,516 4,830,236 156,798 - 11,208,002
Financial liabilities E2
Customer pledged deposits ZARES - 11,826 5,116 4,945 4,668 550 27,105
Interest-bearing borrowings 3 8EH = - 98,667 520,700 196,240 - 815,607
Financial assets sold under EHEESEEE

repurchase agresment - - 597,200 1,585,246 - - 2,182,446
Accruals and other payables JEzt R E fti e 508 - - 109,091 - = = 109,091
Total &% - 11,826 810,074 2,110,891 200,908 550 3,134,249
Net B 87,434 2,925,192 2,386,442 2,719,345 (44,110) (650) 8,073,753
Guarantee issued RENREER
Maximum amount ERtRe%

guaranteed® - 311,397 3,764,045 16,145,112 2,573,948 744,900 23,539,402
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

*

expected future cash outflows.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the year ended 31 December
2015 of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the year ended 31 December

The maximum amount guaranteed represents the total
amount of liability less the amount of customer pledged
deposits should all customers default. Since a significant
portion of guarantee is expected to expire without being
called upon, the maximum liabilities do not represent

(c) REERBE (&)

35 MEEREEREBMIAND
INSTRUMENT REHE (&)

YO WMAARPEY ERLELRE
BEREINEREBEREFA
RiEE - HNBAAD W E R
BRI EWERETERESR
%o WAENLEREEL TR

REHARBRERHE -

2015) and the earliest date the Group and the Company

can be required to pay:

2015 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

AEERARBREEHRNIE
TEERBERANRNARR
ERE (BRERARMEFTED
ME - WMREFEHNXAIZRE
HRMBITHERFAENNE) 0
RIASHER - A REERA
MRFHEBMT

NI5EAFANERERERE
Between
three Between Carrying
Within months one year amount
Repayable three and one and five  More than at 31
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total  December
MM2A31R
BRY  ENEER AR c@RE-E -FEEE BENL & REEE
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARETL  AREFL  AREFT  ARKFr  ARKFT  ARETR
Customer pledged FARESR
deposits - 11,614 5,449 7,412 2,622 - 21,097 21,097
Interest-bearing HEER
borrowings - - 54,190 180,143 85,513 - 319,846 300,000
Financial assets sold B EESHAE
under repurchase
agreement - - 191,813 876,257 377,035 - 1445105 1,388,477
Debts securities issued B - - - 146,400 2,930,700 - 3,077,100 2,382,243
Accruals and other et e
payables MR - - 695,987 421,069 60,642 206,583 1,404,281 1,370,889
Total At = 11,614 947,439 1,631,281 3,456,512 226,583 6,273,429 5,468,706

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BIEEREERERMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEMRAK (&)

2014 Contractual undiscounted cash flow
NUERTENARRERE

Between
three Between Carying
Within months one year amount
Repayable three and one andfve  More than at 31
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total  December

R12A31H
#pE  EREE  -fAm zfERE-f -FERF  RfNE At KEEE
RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  AMB000  RMBOO0  AMB'000  RMB000
NEEFT  NEEFT  ARETT AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT

Customer pledged EARES

deposits - 11,826 5,116 4,945 4,668 550 21,105 27,105
Interest-bearing TEER

borrowings - - 114,760 567,366 213,544 - 885,670 815,607
Financial assets sold B EESREE

under repurchase

agreement - - 646,798 1,672,186 - - 2318984 2,182,446
Accruals and other feit kit

payables [EMEIR = S 109,091 - - - 109,091 109,091
Total &t = 11,826 875,765 2,234,497 218,212 550 3,340,850 3,134,249
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the year ended 31 December 2015 on
a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

e |level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE
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(d)

DMREEFE

(i)

TREINAREFBZEEMEE
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the financial
instruments, including the unlisted available-for-
sale equity securities. The team reports directly to
the chief financial officer and the audit committee.
A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at
each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with
the chief financial officer and the audit committee
is held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting

BAARBETITIIR)

35 PHEAREEREMTAND
REE (&)

(d)

DNREETE (F)

(i)

BEAREBEFENERE
ERAE (A)

AABEER (&)

AEERES —SEmMBHEE
BEZEG BEARERT
H (BREFLTAIHEER
RES) ETHE - ZEK
BERAMBRERENRE
WS - MEAAEEFE
HBE DT 2 HERSETIHE
FRERBMRFERSE BB
B WM BAERMR
HoAE - B EBIE RS
REFRMGAERENR
BEETMR @ - AHHR

dates. ERBMRF B
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 categorised into
R2015512831B 2 AR BEHEREA
Fair value at 31
December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2015%
1283102
DER F1BHR F2B M E3ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT ABEFT AEEFT AREFT
Recurring fair value measurement %M A AEEHE
Financial assets; SHEE:
Available-for-sale equity instrument: AEHERSTE
- Unlisted o i 91,116 - - 91,116
Wealth management products BYER 15,770 - - 15,770
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL
(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (continued)

INSTRUMENT

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (continued)

F BUARETTHIR)

BHEREERESHMIANA
REE (&)

(d) DAEEE (&)

) BEAREEFENEHE
ENEE (&)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into

P2014%F12 43182

[EESERER

Fair value at
31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
H2014%
12A318
LRRER F1ER F2ES E3ER
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ANEEFT ANEETT NEEFT ANEETT
Recurring fair value Measurement % # A A& E
Financial assets: TREE:
Available-for-sale equity instrument; AENERERTA
- Unlisted —¥tm = - 11,841
Wealth management products BYER 146,000 - - 146,000
The movement during the year in the balance of FIEM AN BEIAZH
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: REAAZEH T -
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREF T
At 1 January R1A1H 157,841 9,693
Payment for purchases BE 94,261 148,100
Net unrealised gains or losses HIR R 4R G e
recognised in the comprehensive RHY R IR
income during the year 2 ek B 18 )5 RE 784 148
Proceeds from sales fE e (146,000) -
At 31 December ®12A31H 106,886 157,841

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Valuation of financial instruments with
significant unobservable inputs
Financial instruments valued with significant

unobservable inputs are primarily Wealth
management products. These financial instruments
are valued using cash flow discount model. The
models incorporate various non-observable
assumptions such as discount rate and market rate

volatilities.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of financial instrument valued with significant
unobservable inputs were immaterial, and the effects
of changes in significant unobservable assumptions
to reasonably possible alternative assumptions were
also immaterial.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

BAARBETITIIR)

35 PHEAREEREMTAND
REE (&)

(d)

DNREETE (F)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BEAREBEFENERE
ERAE (A)

RBER  BE=F BAK
BHAIER

HEARTUTBEBAEN
ETREENMGE

AT ABEENS
MEETEZREMEM &
LEMEEFTRARSAE
RERETTAE - RBRE
BRI ZEAAEBEEME - W
IR KT IZ R o

R2015%F12A31H * LAEX
TR BRE AEGHFTHS 5
BEMRAEBETEKN - ¥
REARTABRBRRIEE
AITHEBERBENESTE
B TEKH -

BARBEUINIKRZE
MEERABEZAAEER

7K2015%F12 A31H k2014
F12A318 » AEEEKAK
SEEAASR 2RI A
ZAREEEE N EEN &
BAEER -
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36 COMMITMENTS 36 &iE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2015 not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

(a) A2015F12A318 I & R B
Bk KR E R AIETE W

T

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETFT

Commitments in respect of BERFTYWE - BELRE

purchase of property,
plant and equipment

— Contracted for —REEHR 7,839 9,664

(b) At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases of properties are payable as follows:

(b) R2015%12A318 - REAT
BENETECERERAE &
EEEXNHRREEERER

BT

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AREFT

Within 1 year (inclusive) —FRN (E—F) 77,858 82,868
After 1 year but within —FUE=FA

3 years (inclusive) (5=%F) 117,958 130,581

Over 3 years =FF 9,755 54,923

Total Sk 205,571 268,372
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36 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases of properties are payable as follows:
(continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1-5 years, at the end
of which period all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases include contingent rentals.

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with key management personnel

remuneration

36 #iE (&)

(b) R2015F12A31H ' REFT

BENERCEEREAE K
EEEZAHRRFEEER
BT : (&)

AEESREBEELEHERMAZA
MENABEA -  EREEH K
SR—ERF UAREMBARE
MEEAA GR - EBEHR
kAl

37 EXBEBMLXRS

REREEABCZEHNRS

Years ended 31 December

HZE12A31HLLEE

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Key management personnel FAsE IR A B H
remuneration (Note (i) (H1EE0) 98,956 127,430

Notes:

(i) Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
includes amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in Note 7 and the highest paid employees as
disclosed in Note 8.

(i) Al the balances with key management personnel are
disclosed in relevant notes of this section.

() AEENEREEASHFINE
ERI 7T REN N T AR
EENeB RN s RENR
SHEFBAL -

(iy PIEMRERASNEHRNA
ETARRART TR 4 -
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

BIAARETTIIR)

37 EXBMLERE (&)

(b) Transactions with related parties other than key

management personnel

(b) ERBREBGREIE A 8 LAY B B

FTENXS

Years ended 31 December
HZE12B31HLEE

2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
Guarantee income BERKA 113 430
Interest income R EYA 738 -
Interest expenses B H - (371)
Acquisition of equity interests in Uy B BT B N &) e
subsidiaries 49,500 460,650
Repayment of interest-bearing EEFEER
borrowings - (20,000)
Additions of loans and advances BB MERRBR
to customers - 7,000
Repayment of loans and U 18] 2% B SR EA 3R
advances to customers (7,000) -
Additions of other payables 38 E M FE S R (334) =
Providing guarantee (Note (i) HIMELR (B7723)) 5,000 20,000
Releasing guarantee HIMNEBRER (17,000) (33,000)
Other revenue Efbug A 2,820 =

Note:

(i) At 31 December 2014 and 2015 the outstanding guarantee
provided to related parties are RMB17.0 million, and
RMB5.0 million, respectively. The balances of other
transactions with related parties are disclosed in relevant
notes of this section.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules related to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of guarantee
income and other revenue above constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However those transactions are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold under
Rule 14A.76(1).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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38 B FMBMRR K

POSITION
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T AREF T
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents E¥Ee 160,531 80,689
Trade and other receivables JE Ui R EL A JE U R TE 233,904 84,470
Loans and advances to customers BWER LR 1,188,000 =
Interest in associate RHERERE —BEhHE 60,054 =
Investments in subsidiaries AR E — WE AR 6,790,249 6,198,749
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 3,055 1,372
Intangible assets BEEE 1,749 2,067
Total assets BEBE 8,437,542 6,367,347
Liabilities &f&
Provisions for guarantee losses EREBEEES - 122
Customer pledged deposits FEARESR - 130
Accruals and other payables FEET N B fth FE S 1B 78,635 694,595
Debts securities issued FEfHES 2,382,243 -
Total liabilities afEas 2,460,878 694,847
NET ASSETS FEE 5,976,664 5,672,500
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRREE
Share capital e 4,600,000 4,600,000
Reserves HE 1,376,664 1,072,500
TOTAL EQUITY ERE 5,976,664 5,672,500

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 28 March 2016.

Name: Zhang Guoxiang
Position: Chairman of the Board
REDHE
EEERTE

Name: Ren Weidong
Position: Chief Financial Officer
AR
BEEMBE

LEEe i ERIRER2016F3 A28
B FZ -

(Company stamp)

RAHIE

4y
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Note 30 and Note 35 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
share awards granted to directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company and financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of receivables, loans and advances
and available-for-sale financial assets

The Group reviews portfolios of receivables, loans
and advances and available-for-sale financial assets
periodically to assess whether any impairment losses
exist and the amount of impairment losses if there is
any indication of impairment. Objective evidence for
impairment includes observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows for receivables, loans and advances and available-
for-sale financial assets. It also includes observable data
indicating adverse changes in the repayment status of
the debtors, or change in national or local economic
conditions that causes the default in payment.

The impairment loss for receivables and loans and
advances that is individually assessed for impairment
is the net decrease in the estimated discounted future
cash flow of the assets. When the financial assets are
collectively assessed for impairment, the estimate is
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the financial assets. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflect current economic conditions
and the judgement based on management’s historical
experience. Management reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows regularly
to reduce any difference between loss estimates and
actual loss.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of receivables, loans and advances
and available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

The objective evidence of impairment for available-for-sale
financial assets includes significant or continual decline in
fair value of investments. When deciding whether there
is significant or continual decline in fair value, the Group
will consider the historical fluctuation records of market
and debtors’ credit condition, financial position and
performance of related industry.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of long-lived assets as described in Note 1(m).
The carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell
and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected future cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value
of the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
depreciated and amortised using the straight-line method
over their useful lives after taking into account estimated
residual value. The useful lives and residual value are
regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and
amortisation costs charged in each reporting period. The
useful lives are determined based on historical experience
of similar assets and the estimated technical changes. If
there is an indication that there has been a change in the
factors used to determine the depreciation, the rate of
depreciation is revised.

Provisions for guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on costs
required to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee
contracts when the Group computes the provisions of
guarantee losses. Such estimation is made based on the
available information as at the balance sheet date and is
determined by the Group’s practical experience, taking
into consideration of industry information and market
data.

Tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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40 IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS 40 R#ZE2015512A318LFE
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EEME RN RERWIEET ~
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ZANBENTE
DECEMBER 2015
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Up to the date of issue of the Financial Statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments, and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in the Financial
Statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
AT B BAsk bA 1%
FIAEY & 51 BA R A 3

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB SRS ERFE S
2012-2014 Cycle 2012-20144F [Z BifH

1 January 2016
20161 A1H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and BBV BHMEERF105 X 1 January 2016

HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1,
Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

FE G ERF285% (BF]) -
BREEMBEREGLELR
ZEHERRABE

EBGHES LRSS (£3]) -
B E R R )
BEHKE

R G ERF 1 (BF])

REAR
RS ERF169F R E385 (1BFT)
BB MR AR X708
FBM RS ERFE165
REEFPARBKA

BB ISR AR5 -
SRTH

20161 A1H

1 January 2016
201641 H1H

1 January 2016
201641 A1H

1 January 2016
201641 A1H

1 January 2017
20171 A1 H

1 January 2018
2018F1 H1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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41

42

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to current year’s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2015.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 20 January 2016, Shenzhen Hanhua Micro-credit Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhen Hanhua Micro-credit”’), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, was established in Shenzhen,
whose principle activities is small sized and micro enterprises
lending.

According to the resolution of the Company's board of
directors meeting on 28 March 2016, the details of dividends
appropriation is set out in Note 32(b).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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